
Los Olivos Community Services District, P.O. Box 345, Los Olivos, CA 93441, (805) 500-4098 
losolivoscsd@gmail.com, www.losolivoscsd.com 

 
 
 

    2024-2-28 Agenda Los Olivos CSD Regular Meeting  Page 1 of 3 

 

  LOS OLIVOS COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT   Posted: 2-25-2024 
REGULAR MEETING 

February 28, 2024, 6PM (PST) 
Los Olivos Grange Hall 

2374 Alamo Pintado Ave, Los Olivos CA 93441 
Please observe decorum and instructions from the President 

This meeting will be held both in-person and electronically via Zoom meetings. In-person the meeting will be held at the following location: 
St Mark’s in the Valley Episcopal Church, Stacy Hall - 2901 Nojoqui Ave, Los Olivos CA 93441 

The public will also be able to hear and participate electronically by using the following links: 
On Zoom: 
    https://us06web.zoom.us/j/86135156557?pwd=4sl90bmVH88b51RlbLhlyUaGD52CFf.1 
By Phone: 
    Meeting ID: 861 3515 6557         Passcode: 157483 
    One tap mobile: +16699006833,,86135156557#,,,,*157483# US (San Jose) 

The Los Olivos Community Services District (LOCSD) is committed to ensuring equal access to meetings. In compliance with the American  
Disabilities Act (ADA), if you need special assistance to participate in the meeting or need this agenda provided in a disability-related 

alternative format, please call 805.500.4098 or email to losolivoscsd@gmail.com. Agendas and meeting packets are generally available to 
the public at the Los Olivos Post Office - 2880 Grand Avenue. Any public records, which are distributed less than 72 hours prior to this 

meeting to all, or a majority of all, of the District’s Board members in connection with any agenda item (other than closed sessions) will 
be available for public inspection at the time of such distribution at a location to be determined in Los Olivos, California 93441. 

MEETING AGENDA 

1. CALL TO ORDER

2. ROLL CALL

3. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

4. PUBLIC COMMENT
Members of the public may address the Board of Directors on any items of interest within the subject matter and
jurisdiction of the Board but not on the agenda today (Gov. Code - 54954.3). The public may also request future
agenda topics at this time. Speakers are limited to a maximum of 3 minutes. Due to the requirements of the Ralph
M. Brown Act, the Board of Directors cannot take action today on any matter not on the agenda, but a matter
raised during Public Comments can be referred to District staff for discussion and possible action at a future
meeting.

INFORMATIONAL ITEM: 
Per public request, a brief report from the General Manager that conveys District status and updates is being added at 
the beginning of the agenda. This status report may touch on key items in the project plan or schedule. The General 
Manager will leave other detailed reporting, including budgetary reporting until the end of the meeting. 
This item is informational only, no action will be taken, and no public comment will be received. 
5. GENERAL MANAGER’S DISTRICT STATUS REPORT

ADMINISTRATIVE ACTION ITEMS: 
All matters listed hereunder constitute an administrative / consent agenda and will be acted upon by a single vote of 
the Board. Matters listed on the Consent Agenda will be read only on the request of a member of the Board, in which 

Julie Kennedy, President 
Lisa Palmer, Vice President 
Tom Fayram, Director 
Greg Parks, Director 
Nina Stormo, Director 

Agenda Packet 
Page 1 of 124

mailto:losolivoscsd@gmail.com
mailto:districtoffice@smvwcd.org
https://us06web.zoom.us/j/86135156557?pwd=4sl90bmVH88b51RlbLhlyUaGD52CFf.1


Los Olivos Community Services District, P.O. Box 345, Los Olivos, CA 93441, (805) 500-4098 
losolivoscsd@gmail.com, www.losolivoscsd.com 

 
 
 

    2024-2-28 Agenda Los Olivos CSD Regular Meeting  Page 2 of 3 

event the matter may be removed from the Consent Agenda and considered as a separate item. Public may comment 
on any of the items prior to the vote being taken by the Board. 
6. CONSENT AGENDA

A. APPROVAL OF MEETING MINUTES
Meeting minutes of January 10, 2024.

B. APPROVAL PAYMENT OF INVOICES RECEIVED ON OR BEFORE FEBRUARY 1, 2024.
The invoices below have been reviewed by the Finance Subcommittee and are recommended for approval.

No. Invoice Date Invoice # Provider Amount 
1 1/11/2024 83365 Aleshire & Wynder – Legal Services  $  1,122.00 
2 1/22/2024 N55777 County of Santa Barbara – Encroachment Permits (Grant 

Reimbursable) 
$     926.00 

3 1/24/2024 85320 MNS Engineering – Engineering and Support Srvcs. (Portions 
Grant Reimbursable) 

$   3,242.50 

4 2/1/2024 20241 Savage – General Manager Services  (Portions Grant 
Reimbursable) 

$   8,670.89 

Project Vendor To Date 
(inc. above) 

Remaining 
Authorization 

Audit (pre 2022-23) Moss, Levy & Hartzheim, LLP $ 2,780.00 $  4,995.00 
30% Hybrid Design REGEN, LLC. $ 25,306.59 $ 49,693.41 
Groundwater Wells Various $ 9,209.20 $ 112,235.80 

BUSINESS ITEMS: 
7. CONSIDERATION OF REGEN 30% ENGINEERING DESIGN HYBRID COLLECTION CONTRACT – 15% PROGRESS POINT

The Board will receive an update from REGEN and the Technical Subcommittee related to the progress of the
engineering design on a hybrid collection system. The hybrid collection system was originally developed by the
LOCSD Technical Subcommittee and used as a basis for the REGEN contract. Staff and/or the Technical
Subcommittee have met with REGEN on a monthly (minimum) basis since the contract was signed. As noted in the
original 30% engineering design contract (see below), REGEN is returning at the “15% Design” point which marks
the roughly halfway point in the engineering design and costing effort. REGEN and staff will be seeking direction on
which option(s) to develop to the full 30% design level. The final 30% design of a hybrid collection system is
anticipated to be presented at the April 2024 Regular Board meeting. Any issues raised by the contract will also be
discussed. See the October 16, 2023 Regular Meeting agenda for the LOCSD Board of Directors, starting on page
74, for more details on the contract:

https://www.losolivoscsd.com/files/211066245/2023-10-16+Packet+Los+Olivos+CSD+Regular+Meeting.pdf 
Note: The Technical Subcommittee will be meeting with REGEN on 2/26/2024 to discuss the “15% Design” – which 
is after the posting of this agenda. Consequently, an addendum will likely be published subsequent to the 
Technical Subcommittee meeting and prior to this meeting being held. 

8. UPDATE ON THE INSTALLATION OF THREE NEW GROUNDWATER MONITORING WELLS AND TESTING OF THE THREE
NEW WELLS, PLUS TESTING OF TWO EXISTING WELLS
The LOCSD successfully applied for grant funds to install three new groundwater monitoring wells and test the three
new wells plus two existing groundwater monitoring wells. Staff will provide an update on the progress of the effort.
The initial well drilling was completed in early February. Final well development of the three new wells and sampling
of all five wells was completed in mid-February. Samples were sent for testing and results are expected in March or
April. Staff has informed the County of Santa Barbara, Public Works about the additional wells and provided well data
to them.

9. CONSIDERATION OF A CONTRACT WITH MOSS, LEVY, AND HARTZHEIM, LLP. TO PERFORM INDEPENDANT
AUDITOR SERVICES IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $2,900 (TWO THOUSAND, NINE HUNDRED DOLLARS)
The Board will consider the attached contract from Moss, Levy, & Hartzheim, LLP (MLP) to perform Fiscal Year (FY)

Agenda Packet 
Page 2 of 124

mailto:losolivoscsd@gmail.com
mailto:districtoffice@smvwcd.org
https://www.losolivoscsd.com/files/211066245/2023-10-16+Packet+Los+Olivos+CSD+Regular+Meeting.pdf


Los Olivos Community Services District, P.O. Box 345, Los Olivos, CA 93441, (805) 500-4098 
losolivoscsd@gmail.com, www.losolivoscsd.com 

 
 
 

    2024-2-28 Agenda Los Olivos CSD Regular Meeting  Page 3 of 3 

2022-23 Independent Auditor services. MLP has provided similar services for all prior LOCSD FY audits. The 
contract is structured as not to exceed amount of $2,900 (two thousand, nine hundred dollars). 

10. CONSIDERATION OF UPCOMING ACTIVITIES AND 2024 LOCSD CALENDAR
The Board will consider and discuss upcoming activities for calendar year 2024. The Project Management
Subcommittee will meet on 2/26/2024 (after this agenda will be posted) and is expected to have specific
recommendations regarding scheduling of activities.

11. CONSIDERATION OF DONATIONS FOR PUBLIC ANNOUNCEMENT (PA) SYSTEM EQUIPMENT IN THE AMOUNT OF
$500 (FIVE HUNDRED DOLLARS) AND $330.22 (THREE HUNDRED THIRTY DOLLARS AND TWENTY-TWO CENTS) IN
THE COMBINED TOTAL AMOUNT OF $830.22 (EIGHT HUNDRED THIRTY DOLLARS AND TWENTY-TWO CENTS)
The Board will consider two separate donations in the total amount of $830.22 (eight hundred thirty dollars and
twenty-two cents) for the purchase of a public announcement (PA) system (see attached email and staff report).

INFORMATIONAL ITEMS: 
These items are informational only, no action will be taken, and no public comment will be received. 
12. REPORTS

A. SUBCOMMITTEE REPORTS
Finance Subcommittee (President Kennedy Chair)
Grants Subcommittee (President Kennedy Chair)
Project Management Subcommittee (Director Palmer Chair)
Technical Subcommittee (Director Fayram Chair)

B. GENERAL MANAGER AND DISTRICT ENGINEER COMMENTS
The GM and DE will give reports on any meetings that they attended on behalf of the District, report on
various District-related activities and/or provide status on projects. The GM may also review Budget Reports.
See the packet for more details.

Notable upcoming meeting items:
April – REGEN 30% deliverable final presentation 
April – Fiscal Year (FY) 2024-25 Budget and Strategic Planning, GM’s Annual Report 
May – FY 2024-25 Budget Workshop 
July/June – FY 2024-25 Budget Hearing, Gann Limit, Tax Assessment Authorization 

13. DIRECTORS COMMENTS
Directors will give reports on any meetings that they attended on behalf of the Board and/or choose to comment
on various District-related activities. Directors may also request future agenda topics at this time.

14. ADJOURNMENT

Agenda Packet 
Page 3 of 124

mailto:losolivoscsd@gmail.com
mailto:districtoffice@smvwcd.org


M
IN

U
TES

ITEM 6A - MINUTES

Agenda Packet 
Page 4 of 124



Los Olivos Community Services District, P.O. Box 345, Los Olivos, CA 93441, (805) 500-4098 
losolivoscsd@gmail.com, www.losolivoscsd.com 

 
 
 

      2024-1-10 Minutes Los Olivos CSD Regular Meeting                                     Page 1 of 7 

 
 
 

  
 

 

                                                 LOS OLIVOS COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT              Posted: 1-4-2024 
REGULAR MEETING 

January 10, 2024, 6PM (PST) 
St Mark’s in the Valley Episcopal Church, Stacy Hall 

2901 Nojoqui Ave, Los Olivos CA 93441 
Please observe decorum and instructions from the President 

 
This meeting will be held both in-person and electronically via Zoom meetings. In-person the meeting will be held at the following location:  

St Mark’s in the Valley Episcopal Church, Stacy Hall - 2901 Nojoqui Ave, Los Olivos CA 93441 
The public will also be able to hear and participate electronically by using the following links: 

On Zoom: 
    https://us06web.zoom.us/j/86135156557?pwd=4sl90bmVH88b51RlbLhlyUaGD52CFf.1 
By Phone: 
    Meeting ID: 861 3515 6557         Passcode: 157483 
    One tap mobile: +16699006833,,86135156557#,,,,*157483# US (San Jose) 

 
The Los Olivos Community Services District (LOCSD) is committed to ensuring equal access to meetings. In compliance with the American  

Disabilities Act (ADA), if you need special assistance to participate in the meeting or need this agenda provided in a disability-related 
alternative format, please call 805.500.4098 or email to losolivoscsd@gmail.com. Agendas and meeting packets are generally available to 

the public at the Los Olivos Post Office - 2880 Grand Avenue. Any public records, which are distributed less than 72 hours prior to this 
meeting to all, or a majority of all, of the District’s Board members in connection with any agenda item (other than closed sessions) will 

be available for public inspection at the time of such distribution at a location to be determined in Los Olivos, California 93441. 
 

MEETING AGENDA 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER  
President Fayram calls the meeting to order at: 6:01 PM 
 

2. ROLL CALL 
Present: President Fayram, Vice President Kennedy, Director Palmer, Director Parks 
Absent: Director Stormo 
 

3. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

4. PUBLIC COMMENT 
Members of the public may address the Board of Directors on any items of interest within the subject matter and 
jurisdiction of the Board but not on the agenda today (Gov. Code - 54954.3). The public may also request future 
agenda topics at this time. Speakers are limited to a maximum of 3 minutes. Due to the requirements of the Ralph 
M. Brown Act, the Board of Directors cannot take action today on any matter not on the agenda, but a matter 
raised during Public Comments can be referred to District staff for discussion and possible action at a future 
meeting. 
President Fayram opens the floor to public comment. 
No requests to speak. 
 

INFORMATIONAL ITEM: 
Per public request, a brief report from the General Manager that conveys District status and updates is being added at 
the beginning of the agenda. This status report may touch on key items in the project plan or schedule. The General 
Manager will leave other detailed reporting, including budgetary reporting until the end of the meeting. 
This item is informational only, no action will be taken, and no public comment will be received. 

Tom Fayram, President 
Julie Kennedy, Vice President 
Lisa Palmer, Director  
Greg Parks, Director 
Nina Stormo, Director 

Agenda Packet 
Page 5 of 124

mailto:losolivoscsd@gmail.com
mailto:districtoffice@smvwcd.org
https://us06web.zoom.us/j/86135156557?pwd=4sl90bmVH88b51RlbLhlyUaGD52CFf.1


Los Olivos Community Services District, P.O. Box 345, Los Olivos, CA 93441, (805) 500-4098 
losolivoscsd@gmail.com, www.losolivoscsd.com 

 
 
 

    2024-1-10 Minutes Los Olivos CSD Regular Meeting  Page 2 of 7 

5. GENERAL MANAGER’S DISTRICT STATUS REPORT
General Manager Savage provides a brief status noting that Regen is on track to provide a 15% Design review at
the February 14, 2024 meeting and likely will present the final 30% Design at the March 13, 2024 meeting. He
comments that the three Groundwater Monitoring Wells are scheduled for construction beginning February 11,
2024. He adds that the residents of the three closest properties have been notified of the pending construction
and that he will be following up with them as the construction gets nearer.

GM Savage comments that the Bylaws item was listed last on the agenda as he was not certain that the Project
Management Subcommittee would be prepared to recommend a set of Bylaws when the agenda was originally
published. He notes that, at the Board’s discretion, that item could be moved “up“ on the agenda.

ADMINISTRATIVE ACTION ITEMS: 
All matters listed hereunder constitute an administrative / consent agenda and will be acted upon by a single vote of 
the Board. Matters listed on the Consent Agenda will be read only on the request of a member of the Board, in which 
event the matter may be removed from the Consent Agenda and considered as a separate item. Public may comment 
on any of the items prior to the vote being taken by the Board. 
6. CONSENT AGENDA

A. APPROVAL OF MEETING MINUTES
Meeting minutes of December 13, 2023.

B. APPROVAL PAYMENT OF INVOICES RECEIVED ON OR BEFORE DECEMBER 31, 2023.
The invoices below have been reviewed by the Finance Subcommittee and are recommended for approval.

No. Invoice Date Invoice # Provider Amount 
1 11/21/2023 84418 MNS Engineering – Engineering and Support Srvcs.  $  2,615.05 
2 12/4/2023 1277 REGEN, LLC. $ 10,900.00 
3 12/21/2023 85048 MNS Engineering – Engineering and Support Srvcs. $   1,321.25 
4 12/29/2023 202312 Savage – General Manager Services $   6,654.96 

Project Vendor To Date 
(inc. above) 

Remaining 
Authorization 

Audit Moss, Levy & Hartzheim, LLP $ 2,780.00 $  4,995.00 
30% Hybrid Design REGEN, LLC. $ 25,306.59 $ 49,693.41 
Groundwater Wells Various $ 1,109.16 $ 120,335.84 

GM Savage notes that he has contacted Moss, Levy, Hartzheim about performing another year’s worth of audits. Alex 
Hom (MLH) is preparing the contract for Board approval, likely at the February meeting.  

President Fayram opens the floor to public comment. 
No comments. 

Motion to approve Consent Agenda items A and B, as presented. 
Motion by: Director Palmer, Second: Vice President Kennedy 
Voice vote: 4-0 

BUSINESS ITEMS: 
7. CONSIDERATION OF ELECTION OF OFFICERS FOR CALENDAR YEAR 2024

Consistent with Resolution 23-02 (Selection of Board Officers), the Board will consider election of officers to fill the
positions of President and Vice-President.
GM Savage provides a brief introduction to the item. As part of his introduction, he reminds the Board of current
terms for each Director.

President Fayram opens the floor to public comment.
No comments.

Agenda Packet 
Page 6 of 124

mailto:losolivoscsd@gmail.com
mailto:districtoffice@smvwcd.org


Los Olivos Community Services District, P.O. Box 345, Los Olivos, CA 93441, (805) 500-4098 
losolivoscsd@gmail.com, www.losolivoscsd.com 

 
 
 

    2024-1-10 Minutes Los Olivos CSD Regular Meeting  Page 3 of 7 

President Fayram queries the Board regarding President and Vice President positions. 

Motion to elect Director Kennedy as President. 
Motion by: Director Palmer, Second: Director Parks 

Under discussion, Directors Parks, Palmer, and Kennedy all thank President Fayram for his service as President. 
Voice vote: 4-0 

President Fayram opens the floor to public comment. 
No comments. 

Motion to elect Director Palmer as Vice-President. 
Motion by: Director Parks, Second: Director Kennedy 
Voice vote: 4-0 

Following the election, newly elected President Kennedy assumes her role and begins presiding over the meeting. 

8. CONSIDERATION OF APPOINTMENTS TO STANDING COMMITTEES (SUBCOMMITTEES) AND SETTING OF
MEETING SCHEDULES
Consistent with Resolution 23-01 (Standing Committees), the Board will consider appointments to standing
committees/subcommittees. Preliminary selection for meeting days and times may also be considered. Note that
not all standing committees/subcommittees are scheduled to meet on a monthly basis.
GM Savage introduces the standing subcommittees and their related representation by the Board.

Finance – Directors Kennedy and Palmer 
Project Management – Directors Palmer and Stormo 
Technical – Directors Fayram and Parks 
Grants – Directors Kennedy and Parks 

He notes that the subcommittee assignments are made by the President, following input and commentary by the 
full Board of Directors, in an open public meeting such as this one. 

President Kennedy queries Directors for their interest in continuing to serve on subcommittees as currently 
constituted. Director Palmer comments that she believes the current assignments are good. Directors Fayram and 
Parks echo the comment that they too like the assignments. 

President Kennedy opens the floor to public comment. 
Tom Nelson comments. 

President Kennedy confirms the following subcommittee membership: 
Finance – Directors Kennedy and Palmer 
Project Management – Directors Palmer and Stormo 
Technical – Directors Fayram and Parks 
Grants – Directors Kennedy and Parks 

9. CALENDAR PLANNING FOR 2024
The Board will discuss the current high-level project plan for the District. As part of its deliberations, the Board may
consider additional dates for meetings, timing of actions to be taken, and provide direction to staff, as necessary.
GM Savage walks the Board through the attached timelines and schedules.

President Kennedy opens the floor to public comment.
No commenters.

Director Fayram comments about the meeting scheduled for February 14. He suggests that a meeting be held
February 21. Director Parks concurs that moving the meeting makes sense. President Kennedy comments that the
following week is President’s Day. Director Fayram suggests an earlier start on February 14, perhaps at 5:00PM.

Agenda Packet 
Page 7 of 124

mailto:losolivoscsd@gmail.com
mailto:districtoffice@smvwcd.org


Los Olivos Community Services District, P.O. Box 345, Los Olivos, CA 93441, (805) 500-4098 
losolivoscsd@gmail.com, www.losolivoscsd.com 

 
 
 

      2024-1-10 Minutes Los Olivos CSD Regular Meeting                                     Page 4 of 7 

Director Palmer asks about the suggested Siting workshop in May and suggests that hearing from the City of 
Solvang could be helpful. She adds that the Final Project Description may take more than just a workshop. She 
suggests perhaps a workshop in order to give the public and Board an opportunity to discuss and think about a 
Final Project Description, and then vote to finalize it in a separate meeting. 
 
Director Fayram echoes the comments about having two meetings for the Project Description. 
 
President Kennedy comments that she would like to see the meeting in April as early in the month as possible. 
 
Direction to staff is to put together meetings according to the presented schedule, including an added workshop 
for Final Project Description in June. 

 
10. CONSIDERATION OF A LETTER TO CITY OF SOLVANG REGARDING WASTEWATER TREATMENT 

As noted at the December 2023 Regular meeting of the Board of Directors, General Manager Savage noted that he 
and President Fayram met with City of Solvang representatives to discuss the possibility of connecting to the City of 
Solvang’s Wastewater Treatment Plant. The attached letter was written at the request of the City Manager for the 
City of Solvang and will primarily serve two purposes: (1) confirm interest by the current City of Solvang’s City Council 
in having the LOCSD connect to their wastewater infrastructure and (2) express the LOCSD’s interest in exploring 
connectivity. The attached is not a commitment by the LOCSD to connect. Instead, it serves to kick off efforts that will 
lead to a better understanding of the costs and implications of connecting the LOCSD and City of Solvang. 
GM Savage walks the Board through the attached letter to the City of Solvang. He notes that sending the letter is 
not a commitment by the LOCSD to connect to the City. Instead, it will kick off the work necessary to get 
something akin to a 30% design effort to better understand the costs and implications of connecting to the City of 
Solvang. 
 
Director Fayram says that the responsible thing to do is to send the letter and help us understand the costs. He 
comments on issues that could be raised by building a line down Alamo Pintado, but that the costs and option of 
connecting need to be understood. Director Palmer concurs. Director Parks asks about what would be done to 
move wastewater to the City of Solvang. Director Fayram replies that the approach is probably a “force main” with 
booster station(s) as necessary. District Engineer Pike confirms that a force main type approach, with metering, is 
the correct approach should a connection to the City of Solvang be considered. 
 
President Kennedy opens the floor to public comment. 
Tom Nelson, Ken Zigler, and Kathryn Lohmeyer speak. 
 
With the permission of the President, GM Savage responds some of the public commentary and questions. 
  
Motion to approve the letter and send it to the City of Solvang. 
Motion by: Director Fayram, Second: Vice President Palmer 
Voice vote: 4-0 

 
11. CONSIDERATION OF WRDA FUNDING REQUESTS TO CONGRESSMAN CARBAJAL’S OFFICE (CA-24)  

On Monday, December 11, 2023, the District was notified by Congressman Carbajal’s office that a funding opportunity 
is available through the 2024 Water Resources and Development Act (WRDA). Consistent with LOCSD Resolution      
23-07, the Grants Subcommittee considered options and submitted two grant requests on behalf of the LOCSD. The 
two grants, in priority order were: 

1. $300,000 to fund 60% Engineering Design activities 
2. $162,500 to fund Environmental Impact Report ($150,000) plus one year of groundwater monitoring well 

costs ($12,500) 
Consistent with Resolution 23-07, the funding requests will be considered for ratification by the full Board of 
Directors. 
GM Savage walks the Board through the process that led to the submittal of two funding requests through the 
2024 Water Resources and Development Act (WRDA). He notes that the Grants Subcommittee met twice to 
discuss the submittals, on December 22, 2023 and January 2, 2024. GM Savage closes by saying he submitted the 
two funding requests on January 4, 2024, one day prior to the January 5, 2024 deadline. 
 

Agenda Packet 
Page 8 of 124

mailto:losolivoscsd@gmail.com
mailto:districtoffice@smvwcd.org


Los Olivos Community Services District, P.O. Box 345, Los Olivos, CA 93441, (805) 500-4098 
losolivoscsd@gmail.com, www.losolivoscsd.com 

 
 
 

    2024-1-10 Minutes Los Olivos CSD Regular Meeting  Page 5 of 7 

Director Fayram comments that he did talk to the Congressman’s staff a few weeks ago. He notes that these are 
essentially an “ear mark” funding, not a grant. 

President Kennedy opens the floor to public comment. 
No comments. 

Motion to ratify the requests for 2024 WRDA. 
Motion by: Director Fayram, Second: Director Parks 
Voice vote: 4-0 

12. THE BROWN ACT – AN OVERVIEW
District Counsel will provide an overview of the Brown Act to the Board of Directors, staff, and the public.
President Kennedy used her discretion to move this item to after the District Bylaws discussion.

District Counsel Steve O’Neill provides a presentation on the Brown Act (see attached).

President Kennedy opens the floor to public comment.
Anna Marie Gott speaks.

13. CONSIDERATION OF DISTRICT BYLAWS
As part of the discussion on item 12 at the Regular Meeting for the District Board of Directors on August 24, 2023, the
Board of Directors decided that supplementing existing practice, policy, and resolution through the development and
adoption of a set of Bylaws for the District would provide additional guidance to the Board, staff, and the public; while
also increasing public transparency and District efficiencies. As part of the discussion, the Board directed the GM and
Counsel to put together a draft set of Bylaws, review them with the Project Management Subcommittee, and then
bring them back to the full Board of Directors for final adoption. The Project Management Subcommittee met on
December 22, 2023 and January 8, 2024 to discuss the attached draft Bylaws. Note: Due to the timing of the Project
Management Subcommittee’s meeting on January 8, and the posting of the agenda for this meeting, an addendum
may be published with updates made by the Project Management Subcommittee.
President Kennedy used her discretion to move this item to before the Brown Act.

GM Savage walks the Board through the revised Bylaws that he published as an addendum on January 9, 2024. As
he walks through the Bylaws, he notes several sections that received comment at either the December 22, 2023 or
January 8, 2024 Project Management Subcommittee meetings.

President Kennedy opens the floor to public comment.
Kathryn Lohmeyer and Anna Marie Gott speak.

Director Fayram raises the conversation about remote meetings and whether the Board is interested in shifting
back to in-person meetings only. Director Palmer responds that she believes that maximizing public participation
opportunities during this period is important. Director Parks concurs with Director Palmer about the importance of
public participation. President Kennedy comments she supports.

Director Fayram motions that the Bylaws be changed to hold only in-person meetings. Motion fails due to a lack
of a second.

Director Palmer comments that she believes this is a good set of Bylaws. Director Parks asks about adding an item
for the public to add an item to a future agenda. Director Palmer comments that she doesn’t believe it needs to be
in the Bylaws. Director Fayram comments that the President often gets requests to add items to the agenda. He
cautions that not all requests to add items are appropriate. President Kennedy comments on her experiences at
the Los Olivos School Board.

Director Fayram asks about section 5.13. Counsel responds that he would anticipate changes to the document in
the future.

Motion to approve the Bylaws, as presented.

Agenda Packet 
Page 9 of 124

mailto:losolivoscsd@gmail.com
mailto:districtoffice@smvwcd.org


Los Olivos Community Services District, P.O. Box 345, Los Olivos, CA 93441, (805) 500-4098 
losolivoscsd@gmail.com, www.losolivoscsd.com 

 
 
 

      2024-1-10 Minutes Los Olivos CSD Regular Meeting                                     Page 6 of 7 

Motion by: Vice President Palmer, Second: Director Parks 
Voice vote: 4-0 
 

INFORMATIONAL ITEMS: 
These items are informational only, no action will be taken, and no public comment will be received. 
14. REPORTS 

A. SUBCOMMITTEE REPORTS 
Finance Subcommittee (Vice President Kennedy Chair) 
Vice President Palmer (as Chair Kennedy was absent) comments that the Finance Subcommittee met. 
Grants Subcommittee (Vice President Kennedy Chair) 
President Kennedy comments that the Grants Subcommittee met twice with a focus on the WRDA grants. 
She notes that there were several items that were tabled for future meetings. 
Project Management Subcommittee (Vice President Palmer Chair) 
Vice President Palmer comments that the Project Management Subcommittee met twice with a  focus on the 
Bylaws. She expects that future conversations will focus on the calendar. 
Technical Subcommittee (President Fayram Chair) 
Director Fayram comments that the Technical Subcommittee met. 
 

B. GENERAL MANAGER AND DISTRICT ENGINEER COMMENTS 
The GM and DE will give reports on any meetings that they attended on behalf of the District, report on 
various District-related activities and/or provide status on projects. The GM may also review Budget Reports. 
See the packet for more details.  
 
Notable upcoming meeting items: 

February – REGEN 15% check in and direction setting 
March/April – REGEN 30% deliverable final presentation 
April – Fiscal Year (FY) 2024-25 Budget and Strategic Planning, GM’s Annual Report 
May – FY 2024-25 Budget Workshop 
July/June – FY 2024-25 Budget Hearing, Gann Limit, Tax Assessment Authorization 
 

GM Savage reviews attachments to the agenda. He notes that given earlier comment regarding 2024 
schedules, some things in the attachment will change. He comments that there was a significant increase in 
District funds due to the Special Assessment. He adds that he has spoken to the State regarding the $75,000 in 
grant funds, noting that the email he received on December 11 is an indication that a check will be mailed in  
4-6 weeks, so the check should arrive in the next couple of weeks. 
 
GM Savage reiterates that the three Groundwater Monitoring Wells are scheduled for construction beginning 
February 11, 2024. He adds that the residents of the three closest properties have been notified of the 
pending construction and that he will be following up with them as the construction gets nearer. He has 
received the signed contract from BC2, the drilling firm and has follow-up once with the County of Santa 
Barbara regarding the encroachment permits. GM Savage notes that he is still sending monthly updates to the 
CCRWQCB regarding the District’s actions related to the monitoring wells. 
 
GM Savage notes that he and Director Parks visited the Avila Beach MBR plant in December, adding that if 
addtional Directors want to see the plant firsthand, Cloacina is willing to host a walkthrough. 
 
GM Savage notes that he has been in regular contact with Mr. Tristian Bounds from REGEN. Mr. Bounds is 
travelling this evening, so unable to join the meeting. As of 1/9, the general project status includes: 

• On target to present to the Technical Subcommittee the week of January 22, with a 15% design 
presentation target for the February 14, 2024 meeting, and potential full 30% design presentation at 
the March 13, 2024 meeting. 

• Completed a draft Basis of Design, which will be part of the upcoming meetings 
• Completing mapping updates, particularly as it relates to road and collection information 
• Developing a series of scenarios, at least 5 or 6, for collection and treatment 
• Using a three treatment location approach that mirrors what was done by Stantec, the difference 

being that he has added the elementary school as a possible location 

Agenda Packet 
Page 10 of 124

mailto:losolivoscsd@gmail.com
mailto:districtoffice@smvwcd.org


Los Olivos Community Services District, P.O. Box 345, Los Olivos, CA 93441, (805) 500-4098 
losolivoscsd@gmail.com, www.losolivoscsd.com 

 
 
 

      2024-1-10 Minutes Los Olivos CSD Regular Meeting                                     Page 7 of 7 

• Using a slightly modified flow calculation, with the calculation being a little lower for residential 
parcels 

• Looking hard at water lines and smaller parcels on San Marcos, Alta, Stow, and Lucca avenues due to 
setbacks 

• Confirmed that tank setbacks for community water lines is 25‘ and that for service water lines (those 
on your individual parcel) are 5‘. 

 
GM Savage closes his comments by stating he will immediately get the letter off to the City of Solvang. 
 
DE Pike comments that in December, MNS helped put together the information for encroachment permits. 
Now that there is a schedule, he can begin work on the second 75,000. 
 

15. DIRECTORS COMMENTS 
Directors will give reports on any meetings that they attended on behalf of the Board and/or choose to comment 
on various District-related activities. Directors may also request future agenda topics at this time. 
Director Palmer - No comments. 
Director Fayram - No comments. 
Director Parks - No comments. 
Director Kennedy – Comments about her professional relationship with Mr. Herthel. She assues the Board and 
public that there are no issues. 
 
GM Savage – Adds that POLO is preparing to send the rest of their grant funds. 
 

16. ADJOURNMENT  
Motion to adjourn at: 8:18 PM. 
Motion by: Vice President Palmer, Second: Director Fayram 
Voice vote: 4-0 
 

Respectfully submitted: 

 
Guy W. Savage 
General Manager – Los Olivos Community Services District 
 
 
Approved: 
 
 
 
_______________________ 
President Julie Kennedy 

Agenda Packet 
Page 11 of 124

mailto:losolivoscsd@gmail.com
mailto:districtoffice@smvwcd.org


IN
VO

ICES
ITEM 6B – INVOICES

Agenda Packet 
Page 12 of 124



LOS OLIVOS COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT   JANUARY 2024

LOS OLIVOS COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT (01245)
MONTHLY BILLING SUMMARY

Billing Period: December 2023

Federal Tax ID: 55-0814676

1 Park Plaza, Suite 1000
Irvine, CA 92614
P (949) 223-1170 • F (949) 223-1180
awattorneys.com

Matter Description CommentsTotal
Fees

Total
Hours

Total
Costs

Total Other
Charges

Total
Billed

0.00 1,122.005.10 1,122.00 0.000001 General

TOTALS: 5.10 1,122.00 0.00 0.00 1,122.00

Agenda Packet 
Page 13 of 124



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

Attorney AmountHoursDate Description

REVIEW AGENDA AND MEETING 
SCHEDULE RESOLUTION AND PROVIDE 
COMMENTS

110.00MDK12/05/23 0.50

CORRESPONDENCE RE BROWN ACT AND 
MEETINGS

22.00SON12/05/23 0.10

CORRESPONDENCE RE NOTICE 
REQUIREMENTS AND COMMITTEES

22.00SON12/06/23 0.10

REVIEW AND EDIT AGENDA AND 
RESOLUTIONS

88.00SON12/07/23 0.40

REVIEW ADU RESEARCH; DRAFT EMAIL 220.00SON12/11/23 1.00

REVIEW CORRESPONDENCE RE BROWN 
ACT AND ADDING ITEM TO AGENDA; EMAIL 
GS; TELEPHONE CONFERENCE WITH GUY 
RE AGENDA ITEMS; REVIEW GOTT EMAIL; 
ATTEND BOARD MEETING

396.00SON12/13/23 1.80

CORRESPONDENCE RE WFX 
RESOLUTION

22.00SON12/18/23 0.10

CORRESPONDENCE RE FACILITIES TOUR 44.00SON12/20/23 0.20

CORRESPONDENCE WITH GUY RE 
BROWN ACT ISSUE AND MEETING IN AVILA

66.00SON12/26/23 0.30

REVIEW, EXECUTE  WELL MONITORING 
CONTRACT

88.00SON12/28/23 0.40

Los Olivos Community Services District
General Manager
PO Box 345
Los Olivos, CA  93441

January 11, 2024
Bill No. 83365

01245 - Los Olivos Community Services District
0001 - General

CLIENT:
MATTER:

For Legal Services Rendered Through 12/31/23

1 Park Plaza, Suite 1000
Irvine, CA  92614

Phone: (949) 223-1170
Fax: (949) 223-1180

Federal Tax ID: 55-0814676

Bill No. 83365 Continued . . .Agenda Packet 
Page 14 of 124



Attorney AmountHoursDate Description

REVIEW CORRESPONDENCE RE WEBSITE 
AND PRIVACY DATA

44.00SON12/29/23 0.20

$1,122.00Total Professional Services 5.10

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES SUMMARY

AmountRateHoursNameCode

110.00220.00MDK 0.50Martin D. Koczanowicz
1,012.00220.00SON 4.60Steven O'Neill

$1,122.00Total Professional Services 5.10

Page   2
01245 - Los Olivos Community Services District January 11, 2024
0001 - General

Client:
Matter:

Bill No. 83365 Continued . . .

$1,122.00

1,430.00Balance Forward:

Total Due:

CURRENT BILL TOTAL AMOUNT DUE $1,122.00

Payments & Adjustments: -1,430.00

Receipts Since Last Bill

Date Description Total Applied
-1,188.0012/22/23 Wire Transfer Payment - Thank you

-242.0012/22/23 Wire Transfer Payment - Thank you
-1,430.00Less Total Payments

Agenda Packet 
Page 15 of 124



Please return this page with remittance
to

Aleshire & Wynder LLP

Bill Number: 83365
Bill Date: January 11, 2024
Client Code: 01245
Client Name: Los Olivos Community Services District

General
Matter Code:
Matter Name:

0001

Payments & Adjustments:

CURRENT BILL TOTAL AMOUNT DUE

Balance Forward:

$1,122.00

Total Professional Services:

-1,430.00

1,430.00

$1,122.00

1,122.00

Total Due:

Total Disbursements: 0.00

Amount enclosed: ____________________________________

Thank You

Agenda Packet 
Page 16 of 124



����������	
��
��
��
�
��
���������������������	�����
�	����
��������	���������������� ���!"��#��	�$������%���&��
�'(��)�� *�+,)-.�/,���'')������������
�0������������ ��123453�6473�893875�:4;4<23�=>? �@>AB=;�>C�DEFE�G�1EHE�IJ4B5E KLMNOPQ�RSTQUVSLWSXY�ZZ[�Z\Z]Q̂X_OT�̀NaU�--������������b � ���� cWY�dSMSeQ� fgd�gfKhgd���igjjk̀ Klm�dnohKind�RKdloKil �� ĝ�pNq�r]s� fNt�guOMNt�[�iv��wr]]x ���� � v_NWLT�nLPuNtQyU�� lzQ�{NuuN|OLe�}QX_OT�tQXMOPQt�zSMQ�~QQL�}XNMOyQy�TN�YNW~Y�̂W~uOP��NX�t���lXSLt}NXTSTONL�ROMOtONLafNPSTONL�N{�nLPXNSPz_QLTUZZ�\[�Z]]\��gfKhnl�dl�[��fNt�guOMNt�$��#�����$������������"bûSL�oQMOQ|���KLt}QPTONL��QQU �wZ�a\\����
�����	b �'�/*))������ �� �$�����b���'�/*))� �ûQStQ�XQ{QXQLPQ�TzQ�̂QX_OT�̀W_~QX�NL�YNWX�PzQP�aûQStQ�QLPuNtQ�onjKl�PN}Y�|OTz�}SY_QLT�SLy�_SOu�TNU��#�$���#��	�$������%�����% ����#�!"����$"�#�����#$��������������������������� ���!"���*	�$������%���&��
�'(��)K{�YNW�zSMQ�SLY��WQtTONLt[�̂uQStQ�PSuu���\s����x�]ww\vuu�}QX_OTt�{QQt�_WtT�~Q��
����������}XONX�TN�PN_}uQTONL�N{�|NX�a�� �� ������
���	�
������b������#��������
���&������#�������������
Agenda Packet 
Page 17 of 124



Project Manager Douglas Pike
Principal Jeffrey Edwards

Los Olivos Community Services District
P.O. Box 553
Los Olivos, CA  93441

January 24, 2024
Project No: LOCSD.180392.00
Invoice No: 85320

Project LOCSD.180392.00 District Support Services
 

This Invoice includes:

1. General District Support Tasks: $420.00

2. Engineering Tasks:

a. General Support Tasks: Attend Meeting $0.00

b. General Engineering Tasks GIS/CAD Exhibits: $2,822.50

 

Professional Services for the Period:December 01, 2023 to December 31, 2023
          Level 2 TASK01 District Management
 
 Professional Personnel

Hours Rate Amount
Administrative Support

Project Coordinator 4.00 105.00 420.00
Totals 4.00 420.00
Total Labor 420.00

             $420.00Level 2 Subtotal

  Level 2 TASK02 Engineering Tasks
 Professional Personnel

Hours Rate Amount
Project Management

Supervising Technician .50 135.00 67.50
District Engineer 2.00 185.00 370.00

Agenda Packet 
Page 18 of 124



Project 85320LOCSD.180392.00 District Support Services Invoice
Development Review (Plan/Map Checking)

Senior Project Engineer 13.25 180.00 2,385.00
Totals 15.75 2,822.50
Total Labor 2,822.50

             $2,822.50Level 2 Subtotal

         $3,242.50Current Invoice Amount

 Outstanding Invoices
Number Date Balance
84819 11/21/2023 2,615.05
Total 2,615.05

Agenda Packet 
Page 19 of 124



Project 85320LOCSD.180392.00 District Support Services Invoice

12:36:38 PMInvoice 85320 Dated 1/24/2024MNS Engineers, Inc.
Wednesday, January 24, 2024Billing Backup

Project LOCSD.180392.00 District Support Services

Level 2 TASK01 District Management

Professional Personnel
Hours Rate Amount

Administrative Support
Project Coordinator

Zepeda, Mary 12/1/2023    .25 105.00  26.25
File and Upload A&W Invoice; Update Budget Tracking Log

Zepeda, Mary 12/4/2023    .25 105.00  26.25
Follow-up with DP and GS re processing election payment

Zepeda, Mary 12/5/2023    .25 105.00  26.25
File and Upload MNS Invoice; Update Budget Tracking Log;  
Follow-up with DP and GS re Reimbursement Statements

Zepeda, Mary 12/8/2023    .25 105.00  26.25
Follow-up with GS and DP re LOCSD Reimbursement Statement

Zepeda, Mary 12/20/2023    3.00 105.00  315.00
Prepare A&W (2), CSDA, GWS, and Regen Invoices for payment 
via FIN; Create and Process Single Payment Claims for A&W (2), 
CSDA, GWS, and Regen Invoices for DP; Update Budget Tracking 
Log

Totals 4.00 420.00
Total Labor 420.00

Level 2 Subtotal $420.00

Level 2 TASK02 Engineering Tasks

Professional Personnel
Hours Rate Amount

Project Management
Supervising Technician

Starr, Robert 12/14/2023    .50 135.00  67.50
E-transmit district information maps.

District Engineer
Pike, Douglas 12/11/2023    .50 185.00  92.50

Exhibits for 3 new wells
Pike, Douglas 12/12/2023    1.00 185.00  185.00

Field measurements for Sampling Well Exhibits
Pike, Douglas 12/29/2023    .50 185.00  92.50

water use rates from the Water District to Tristian Bounds 
Development Review (Plan/Map Checking)

Senior Project Engineer
Mak, Gabriella 12/8/2023    2.00 180.00  360.00

Prepared 3 exhibits
Mak, Gabriella 12/11/2023    1.50 180.00  270.00

Groundwater wells map
Mak, Gabriella 12/12/2023    1.00 180.00  180.00

Groundwater wells map
Mak, Gabriella 12/13/2023    4.00 180.00  720.00

meeting with Doug and prepared exhibits

Agenda Packet 
Page 20 of 124



Project 85320LOCSD.180392.00 District Support Services Invoice
Mak, Gabriella 12/14/2023    2.75 180.00  495.00

Meeting with Doug and revised exhibits
Mak, Gabriella 12/15/2023    2.00 180.00  360.00

Revised exhibits
Totals 15.75 2,822.50
Total Labor 2,822.50

Level 2 Subtotal $2,822.50

$3,242.50Project Total

$3,242.50Total this Report

Agenda Packet 
Page 21 of 124



Email: GM.LOCSD@gmail.com 
Page 1 of 1 

INVOICE 
FROM:
Guy W. Savage 
PO Box 894 
Los Olivos, Ca 93441 

BILL TO: 
Via electronic delivery 
President Julie Kennedy 
Los Olivos Community Services District 
PO Box 345   Invoice #: 20241 
Los Olivos, Ca 93441 Invoice Date: 2/1/2024 

Dear President Kennedy, 

Please see the below for professional services provided, plus any expenditures made on behalf of the District. The 
attached tally of hours (units) exceeds those being billed below. This is being done to track the hours for future 
reference. Per agreement, the hours will be capped at the number below or as authorized by the District. 

Thank you for your continued support. 

Page 1
Agenda Packet 
Page 22 of 124

mailto:GM.LOCSD@gmail.com


Date Description Hours
Grant 

Reimbursable Rate Amount
 Amount Grant 
Reimbursable 

1-Jan Emails 0.25 138.65$          34.66$             $                               -   
2-Jan Grants subcommittee meeting 1 138.65$          138.65$           $                               -   

Carbajal Office follow-up 0.25 138.65$          34.66$             $                               -   
4-Jan Bylaws and Brown Act discussion w/Counsel 0.75 138.65$          103.98$           $                               -   

Grants meeting minutes, video post 0.25 138.65$          34.66$             $                               -   
WRDA funding requests 0.5 138.65$          69.32$             $                               -   
Regular meeting agenda and related agenda item development 4 138.65$          554.58$           $                               -   
Encroachment permit / BC2 contract follow-up 0.25 138.65$          -$                  $                         34.66 
2023 Audit outreach to Moss, Levy, Hartzheim 0.25 138.65$          34.66$             $                               -   

5-Jan Finance Subcommittee 0.25 138.65$          34.66$             $                               -   
Finance Subcommittee minutes, prior minutes 0.25 138.65$          34.66$             $                               -   

8-Jan PM Meeting 1 138.65$          138.65$           $                               -   
PM Minutes, video, web post 0.5 138.65$          69.32$             $                               -   
Finance Subcommittee minutes, video, web post 0.25 138.65$          34.66$             $                               -   
Administrative - annual activities 1 138.65$          138.65$           $                               -   
Fayram meeting 0.5 138.65$          69.32$             $                               -   
Review 2023 video postings, minutes, etc. to ensure posting 0.75 138.65$          103.98$           $                               -   

9-Jan Regen 0.5 138.65$          69.32$             $                               -   
Bylaws 0.75 138.65$          103.98$           $                               -   
1/10 meeting prep 0.75 138.65$          103.98$           $                               -   
Draft CCRWQCB monthly memo 0.5 138.65$          69.32$             $                               -   

10-Jan Regular meeting 138.65$          -$                  $                               -   
11-Jan CCRWQCB monthly memo regarding Groundwater Monitoring Wells 0.25 138.65$          -$                  $                         34.66 

Letter to Solvang 0.25 138.65$          34.66$             $                               -   
Regular meeting minutes, video, post 1.5 138.65$          207.97$           $                               -   
Administrative - billing, emails, County follow up 0.5 138.65$          69.32$             $                               -   
Responses to City of Solvang related to 1/24 City Council meeting 0.25 138.65$          34.66$             $                               -   
Website updates, Form 700 1 138.65$          138.65$           $                               -   

12-Jan County Recorder follow up 0.5 138.65$          69.32$             $                               -   
16-Jan Emails, CSDA 0.75 138.65$          103.98$           $                               -   
17-Jan 1/22 Tech Agenda, post 1 138.65$          138.65$           $                               -   
19-Jan Kennedy meeting, emails, website updates 2 138.65$          277.29$           $                               -   

BC2 coordination, signs, barricades 1 138.65$          -$                  $                      138.65 
20-Jan Letter to residents near drill sites, dig-alert prep and paint, talk to neighbors 3.25 138.65$          -$                  $                      450.60 
22-Jan Technical Subcommittee meeting, minutes, post video, post prior minu   2.25 138.65$          311.95$           $                               -   

Safety equipment purchasing, No Parking signage, put up barriers 3.5 138.65$          -$                  $                      485.26 
City of Solvang Council Meeting - connection to Solvang 4.25 138.65$          589.24$           $                               -   

23-Jan Coord 1/29 drilling, No Parking signage, put up barriers, encroachment permits 2.5 138.65$          -$                  $                      346.61 
GSI Contract 0.75 138.65$          -$                  $                      103.98 

24-Jan GSI Contract-finish and sign 0.5 138.65$          -$                  $                         69.32 
25-Jan Dunn School meeting 1 138.65$          138.65$           $                               -   
26-Jan Deposits - $75k, $20k, $20 0.5 138.65$          69.32$             $                               -   
30-Jan MW - 4 6.5 138.65$          -$                  $                      901.19 
31-Jan MW - 3, cuttings 5.5 138.65$          -$                  $                      762.55 

138.65$          -$                  $                               -   
Totals 30 24 4,159.35$      3,327.48$                   

Grand Totals Hours 54.00 7,486.83$                

1 of 1  
Page 2

Agenda Packet 
Page 23 of 124



1/22/24, 4:09 PM Gmail - Re: Request regarding hours

https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ik=b7c34f4d46&view=pt&search=all&permmsgid=msg-f:1787904379129475323&simpl=msg-f:17879043791294753… 1/1

Guy Savage <gm.locsd@gmail.com>

Re: Request regarding hours
Julie Kennedy <julie.kennedy.locsd@gmail.com> Fri, Jan 12, 2024 at 8:54 AM
To: General Manager - LOCSD <gm.locsd@gmail.com>

Thank you Guy for the background info, I appreciate it!
Yes, additional hours approved.
Julie

Julie Kennedy   , Los Olivos Community Services District

Phone: 805.946.0431
Mobile: 805.693.4077
Email: julie.kennedy.locsd@gmail.com
Website: www.losolivoscsd.com
Address: PO Box 345, Los Olivos, CA 93441

 

On Thu, Jan 11, 2024 at 3:42 PM General Manager - LOCSD <gm.locsd@gmail.com> wrote:
Julie,

My contract requires that I ask for approval to exceed 30 hours a month. The 30 hours is roughly what is needed to
support the "normal" business of the District. I think you've also noticed that I regularly exceed 30 hours, but donate the
excess hours, unless I get close to or over 40 hours.

The work currently being carried out related to Groundwater Monitoring Wells, which is reimbursable via our EHS grant,
is a workload that could quickly push me over 30 hours in January, February, and March. Therefore, I am requesting
that you approve me to work as many hours as necessary on the wells effort until this current well project is completed.
These hours would be in addition to my contractually agreed to maximum of 30 hours. If I need more than 30 hours for
"normal" business, I will make a separate request.

Hopefully that is clear enough. I would essentially work my 30 hours, plus as many hours as necessary to support the
wells project (without a cap). If you would please respond with an approval or denial of this approach, it would be
appreciated.

Guy
---------------------
Guy Savage
General Manager
Los Olivos Community Services District
PO Box 345, Los Olivos, CA 93441
(805) 500-4098
www.LosOlivosCSD.com

 
Page 3

Agenda Packet 
Page 24 of 124

tel:805.946.0431
tel:805.693.4077
mailto:julie.kennedy.locsd@gmail.com
http://www.losolivoscsd.com/
mailto:gm.locsd@gmail.com
http://www.losolivoscsd.com/


1/22/24, 4:03 PM Gmail - Grainger Online Order Confirmation #1504292365 / P.O. #WEB2484585265

https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ik=b7c34f4d46&view=pt&search=all&permmsgid=msg-f:1788816792208483375&simpl=msg-f:17888167922084833… 1/2

Guy Savage <gm.locsd@gmail.com>

Grainger Online Order Confirmation #1504292365 / P.O. #WEB2484585265
Grainger <Grainger@service.grainger.com> Mon, Jan 22, 2024 at 10:37 AM
Reply-To: Grainger <CustomerFeedback@service.grainger.com>
To: gm.locsd@gmail.com

My Account    |    Order History    |    Help    |    All Products

Hello Guy Savage,
Thank you for placing an order with Grainger. We confirm that the following order has been received.

Order #1504292365
PO #WEB2484585265
Company Name : GUY SAVAGE

Subtotal   $975.80
Estimated Tax   $75.63
Estimated Shipping   $74.83

$1,126.26

Availability, Shipping, Tax &
Promotions are not final until your order
is processed. All final charges will be
reflected on the associated invoice.

  

Los Olivos Community Services
Distr

US

  

VISA ****   

APPROVED VENDOR

Item # 3UTY5

Price $163.89 / each
 

STATUS
Preparing to Ship

Expected to Arrive Between Tue Jan 23*
and Wed Jan 24*

 

TOTAL  $655.56
QTY  4

 PO Line # 1 

 
Page 4

Agenda Packet 
Page 25 of 124

https://e.grainger.com/pub/cc?_ri_=X0Gzc2X%3DAQjkPkSUWQGviJvNnB7cza0fATCCezfFNhF2DCB5tzdnzbze2zdeIBvXJzezePLRzdUY3YbnRVXtpKX%3DSYWUAUWR&_ei_=ENP3AJPH8nr2wFqwV6ni-2HwshaUnSxFM4wNIUhoNWK1V90qyFmQheKNAbIavCwG-XWx2UWN4WdNTtoiyv93bCAtAGUwRzQnelYsRUjBKwgYfaykYiQd2dCLxUSTP7Fv91_PWTcIFJLmcCUTV4IC9osby-6zs9l0N_v3divExRNOCuneFXMaI5yHaktOxgzD0PNoabNXjzc48v1hsnI51dyQsX1kEPw10fsjSHBDieQnk3X9AG5GdSjkp3VtH3efcsqlNZ87MapKuoQGSukttmvAK6jQJJuGroFdV_vuvejrHGpSH8AhI7_Eb7ia4JZd7xTQP6xftjBN27mYloQ1ksvhMJ8fP9nIVTZQ7v2KHLLI_vjKB0LCKbLyoxGL-vIn8OQrPBxIIKCDNVo-zH80befUWW91NzE0Mzb6PNEl1e7M.&_di_=da8vhjuu2mps6sv771mnk4d57u1vc70i8sttn5o03slvurnklek0
https://e.grainger.com/pub/cc?_ri_=X0Gzc2X%3DAQjkPkSUWQGviJvNnB7cza0fATCCezfFNhF2DCB5tzdnzbze2zdeIBvXJzezePLRzdUY3YbnRVXtpKX%3DSYWUAUWR&_ei_=ENP3AJPH8nr2wFqwV6ni-2HwshaUnSxFM4wNIUhoNWK1V90qyFmQheKNAbIavCwG-XWx2UWN4WdNTtoiyv93bCAtAGUwRzQnelYsRUjBKwgYfaykYiQd2dCLxUSTP7Fv91_PWTcIFJLmcCUTV4IC9osby-6zs9l0N_v3divExRNOCuneFXMaI5yHaktOxgzD0PNoabNXjzc48v1hsnI51dyQsX1kEPw10fsjSHBDieQnk3X9AG5GdSjkp3VtH3efcsqlNZ87MapKuoQGSukttmvAK6jQJJuGroFdV_vuvejrHGpSH8AhI7_Eb7ia4JZd7xTQP6xftjBN27mYloQ1ksvhMJ8fP9nIVTZQ7v2KHLLI_vjKB0LCKbLyoxGL-vIn8OQrPBxIIKCDNVo-zH80befUWW91NzE0Mzb6PNEl1e7M.&_di_=da8vhjuu2mps6sv771mnk4d57u1vc70i8sttn5o03slvurnklek0
https://e.grainger.com/pub/cc?_ri_=X0Gzc2X%3DAQjkPkSUWQGviJvNnB7cza0fATCCezfFNhF2DCB5tzdnzbze2zdeIBvXJzezePLRzdUY3YbnRVXtpKX%3DSYWUAUWS&_ei_=ENP3AJPH8nr2wFqwV6ni-2FxLboW_R0RMOzBixJqvfEStUxWMkpVBQYZw9yGeZIlOrKI0a0YKuywXyHLOeHPH_D0OAIWY94iuwyLeand1ZMOvhE_7PL_J-SU7Y08VY2T5E3EcMq4r5vbd3r6B8CQQkPuMI1M9m7G5vtJJlLc1GC5oxRwVdtyvrlrFI0ImnT7rNj24sZ5Wzr9Xc6KL5FkiwzUQV2IAfYFR9OAiNApfV9O8FzKoxJAqOGTwb2J0MbdDlotCWzZCDK86vNxuZbc3pwVSBjqjHJPNLighg8kiBXS0rcHmOkKPDftBx81pns_IMjXuVo4fBCgeO8k5mYy-rzYqpVSFnYG1MAXSxWhmCr-A2zc0DU0Mk7hU6STdlI5gKdKWTqW3NgUcJsC7pJc3irO7CG0ClWBnn5M8Q72mBVYp1RpV9rj5q-6n74.&_di_=0tt6p9ni635hbmpgp5lbshirteudbn12hhs2qbboekvr8tlh9vo0
https://e.grainger.com/pub/cc?_ri_=X0Gzc2X%3DAQjkPkSUWQGviJvNnB7cza0fATCCezfFNhF2DCB5tzdnzbze2zdeIBvXJzezePLRzdUY3YbnRVXtpKX%3DSYWUAUWT&_ei_=ENP3AJPH8nr2wFqwV6ni-2EnvEKdVYNUT1C-GnyQ_eaRzSVqDJM7bZdAa8im7qKGqAalWcZnDIFkQiHdrdSiB_zKtUpSLKio90Zi4SinXZSaS4V5C7I1CKNnziLjgsKmnpdi5NjrglLnQnZFSmPkjYw2V4JiJslVfaDWxqWN_vbKzPsP3vuDyG8px90I_NLyGM8BR_SmNtHJE4vj3hVOiVqvhnjVRSNt0EeOcAy8BYiXwtRwcFveU9bqDgviS-2zRUWoYn9WeaFA0heO6klRWsYtoRvPPyq1tuSMA65_OWWAkjzYAsLNHr_w10h4qQUiguE5ki8nV4Z8mnozhLpr9yJenu5Cv58ZBeMm2Du2clo9an55_oew2ZW_aWDGbHMzrsQkamaW20gMy0iMFoRhxHC_hof8TlXZJzO4KkuGC_DwTc8VAytGS-Y9cb7cxR4.&_di_=hs0fjfa87saehjpioqq1pj24kps2mppass3lhcfk6i1sjbekc4o0
https://e.grainger.com/pub/cc?_ri_=X0Gzc2X%3DAQjkPkSUWQGviJvNnB7cza0fATCCezfFNhF2DCB5tzdnzbze2zdeIBvXJzezePLRzdUY3YbnRVXtpKX%3DSYWUAUWU&_ei_=ENP3AJPH8nr2wFqwV6ni-2HCmX2FErw81GBcvDlhOSXepvnmxYKA-5cJemDkbeZRR2lvirJDd8B-GY3ukaMl_CCcB2GsFiQLBYt5ntDQdPUdpYNyx0FJNTGgbFZzYjFdfrnbIxy8h9auJrk3AJK5PZ78Z1I_z2Z-rbJX47rYZUiVXFo-118fhUFoX1WqS-1JpdUqwzUY5zDMPPpTCen0VdMmkpHrn_Wu_LouypB6GU6l4BBKMRnuLRnqQU4xpBBHtdnvlbjSz4Jm6I5WHMO6vHN1p7_1EdSc58zmxYxeFWH9DQTwBBwdXUTGwofnOisZuPn-dm5iYvCriwF8J0Y50cWTZK6Ih-2snmXAVX1gURkJwlKNTrfI8awaz7Lf69fyK5-vNzfwZA_BEa5_pCefocVvMeWpN35Ia-KA-zRAJ5mlpanyohtd.&_di_=8o94qqpm48143kvb3ad1sk3ho299p5at0697n05473tvkh4jvlg0
https://e.grainger.com/pub/cc?_ri_=X0Gzc2X%3DAQjkPkSUWQGviJvNnB7cza0fATCCezfFNhF2DCB5tzdnzbze2zdeIBvXJzezePLRzdUY3YbnRVXtpKX%3DSYWUAUWW&_ei_=ENP3AJPH8nr2wFqwV6ni-2HFb3io9S7DnPxL5fIcIz0E8Ue9ufv8r_szypujoTbGTe9bFkRB_PZxzBqmTvhkCMmkwd5NmrlmA1YPEM5pARGN7nYUXSFRX9pTMPSZs7jkXb-5FCMrHCu3rKjtybubllD0YQW6KoKJHIP5YIdr3vo6UadVDaBjFLVlSFoMWlEzdoP_iquSULZJJLvI_1S-emB-fGx7hJ1x_NBz7lwCMVZT6c-O9xxh4tCVsI1dO8UPK9U1W8ZGCfLiJ7K7L5yQZbjmvkmuRSyqzNmUVWCMpeB923egNSS9-REhOy3zgQUj-P6gMCvZNiT6Mk6uY5mU9EyPFyHpuLjccpkdwWOmPBc0iExlbHoTGDXyj7zN1yHysY-4OhPVh491UqTL8Y1Jl5VQX9HaeyBpe8INJtUOIK26Ed7yQJ9bmiMN5TuViw.&_di_=p6adp3md0e1lhpikbqfifjhssjk4muhq2f7cucd2gqkoo2hhletg
https://e.grainger.com/pub/cc?_ri_=X0Gzc2X%3DAQjkPkSUWQGviJvNnB7cza0fATCCezfFNhF2DCB5tzdnzbze2zdeIBvXJzezePLRzdUY3YbnRVXtpKX%3DSYWUDSDY&_ei_=ENP3AJPH8nr2wFqwV6ni-2GO9eXSluvtiI15wsUc0RR1jp9G4xqZPX4bg3UBjGLgAzARxAQTEmwUV-99xiiPZw7Sp2tSk3QK-3Pynzo_EhI6fatxNSvmzIvcIAKn_L1kpTP9uQoCpTA5AUgk4YfIUJwzwZhI0ctEy0ZKD8aWfBwv5GNS67dmp2z4SGZGmFs_ZKz8BRNC9VkdR1X_Dm14F8T8JDlfZ8uVcNOI6PlDSskYeVSUAOMZAwKMCBgnlkqEX2iysP16AWUaZr_YMZ-jaWUlCK7fgqdhVKpAI-5VMyc8U9T6Tm8RNj6PN723DJRkzI1oT_38g7u-lah6MhrtPjuX8D-dxMzd7xZ3naxGpD8KxfuL4oVLUgXT7BHslOTVUZux15mnroJoC8kweSUvHx8yI3d1HeANchW_u_qQjUzpKQVHOL8zMM.&_di_=ei57d42spb1hmliarj0io69vk6it09147cian606lh012tjn867g
https://e.grainger.com/pub/cc?_ri_=X0Gzc2X%3DAQjkPkSUWQGviJvNnB7cza0fATCCezfFNhF2DCB5tzdnzbze2zdeIBvXJzezePLRzdUY3YbnRVXtpKX%3DSYWUDSDY&_ei_=ENP3AJPH8nr2wFqwV6ni-2GO9eXSluvtiI15wsUc0RR1jp9G4xqZPX4bg3UBjGLgAzARxAQTEmwUV-99xiiPZw7Sp2tSk3QK-3Pynzo_EhI6fatxNSvmzIvcIAKn_L1kpTP9uQoCpTA5AUgk4YfIUJwzwZhI0ctEy0ZKD8aWfBwv5GNS67dmp2z4SGZGmFs_ZKz8BRNC9VkdR1X_Dm14F8T8JDlfZ8uVcNOI6PlDSskYeVSUAOMZAwKMCBgnlkqEX2iysP16AWUaZr_YMZ-jaWUlCK7fgqdhVKpAI-5VMyc8U9T6Tm8RNj6PN723DJRkzI1oT_38g7u-lah6MhrtPjuX8D-dxMzd7xZ3naxGpD8KxfuL4oVLUgXT7BHslOTVUZux15mnroJoC8kweSUvHx8yI3d1HeANchW_u_qQjUzpKQVHOL8zMM.&_di_=ei57d42spb1hmliarj0io69vk6it09147cian606lh012tjn867g
https://e.grainger.com/pub/cc?_ri_=X0Gzc2X%3DAQjkPkSUWQGviJvNnB7cza0fATCCezfFNhF2DCB5tzdnzbze2zdeIBvXJzezePLRzdUY3YbnRVXtpKX%3DSYWUAUWB&_ei_=ENP3AJPH8nr2wFqwV6ni-2FDfOXNeti7gRSrvsOgsxsQWY0s7STe7075yEkYTpZBDY71AE9qHuQakh30UnmTW79z7xCyTF1shS79mgW355qtceRBTc2AiEcBWPU4SOyB1eTV4bg6GGc1ispUJUV_hyG8Qor0tMQaFLEKZypEQObYM47_cB9919BxbB-vbMb4dk2PI86Tek0NkguwH9xK2vCkevlm-71GdTrLmBlDtXRnlHFpMX9Sif6NI8QfhYNoV7zjNSD6p7rxOBwO3sZPqByXtxFyW_9CRL7W16zZt3L8gCSJw70t-4VMrbs4COx3zORq5v23OuqtA092DtEVoP2R9f6tO7HcZDOhSfQwNzYk99A9xWo5pwxDb9xOIZRO_e7uR2yKyG20nR37ciP2bkbxRjKq7nEnHxE27A9loALIMkRZMCsn3Yw9939wo21kE9hMUWHMWslpvSNG-I3KRnsOhqIKMqxFMSiCus-Yd-oZV4Y5J7Q.&_di_=9r0vqnaqvpijcrie6fptvqslpfro7jp4cshhpstddnk36jnq4ap0
https://e.grainger.com/pub/cc?_ri_=X0Gzc2X%3DAQjkPkSUWQGviJvNnB7cza0fATCCezfFNhF2DCB5tzdnzbze2zdeIBvXJzezePLRzdUY3YbnRVXtpKX%3DSYWUAUWB&_ei_=ENP3AJPH8nr2wFqwV6ni-2FDfOXNeti7gRSrvsOgsxsQWY0s7STe7075yEkYTpZBDY71AE9qHuQakh30UnmTW79z7xCyTF1shS79mgW355qtceRBTc2AiEcBWPU4SOyB1eTV4bg6GGc1ispUJUV_hyG8Qor0tMQaFLEKZypEQObYM47_cB9919BxbB-vbMb4dk2PI86Tek0NkguwH9xK2vCkevlm-71GdTrLmBlDtXRnlHFpMX9Sif6NI8QfhYNoV7zjNSD6p7rxOBwO3sZPqByXtxFyW_9CRL7W16zZt3L8gCSJw70t-4VMrbs4COx3zORq5v23OuqtA092DtEVoP2R9f6tO7HcZDOhSfQwNzYk99A9xWo5pwxDb9xOIZRO_e7uR2yKyG20nR37ciP2bkbxRjKq7nEnHxE27A9loALIMkRZMCsn3Yw9939wo21kE9hMUWHMWslpvSNG-I3KRnsOhqIKMqxFMSiCus-Yd-oZV4Y5J7Q.&_di_=9r0vqnaqvpijcrie6fptvqslpfro7jp4cshhpstddnk36jnq4ap0
https://e.grainger.com/pub/cc?_ri_=X0Gzc2X%3DAQjkPkSUWQGviJvNnB7cza0fATCCezfFNhF2DCB5tzdnzbze2zdeIBvXJzezePLRzdUY3YbnRVXtpKX%3DSYWUAUWB&_ei_=ENP3AJPH8nr2wFqwV6ni-2FDfOXNeti7gRSrvsOgsxsQWY0s7STe7075yEkYTpZBDY71AE9qHuQakh30UnmTW79z7xCyTF1shS79mgW355qtceRBTc2AiEcBWPU4SOyB1eTV4bg6GGc1ispUJUV_hyG8Qor0tMQaFLEKZypEQObYM47_cB9919BxbB-vbMb4dk2PI86Tek0NkguwH9xK2vCkevlm-71GdTrLmBlDtXRnlHFpMX9Sif6NI8QfhYNoV7zjNSD6p7rxOBwO3sZPqByXtxFyW_9CRL7W16zZt3L8gCSJw70t-4VMrbs4COx3zORq5v23OuqtA092DtEVoP2R9f6tO7HcZDOhSfQwNzYk99A9xWo5pwxDb9xOIZRO_e7uR2yKyG20nR37ciP2bkbxRjKq7nEnHxE27A9loALIMkRZMCsn3Yw9939wo21kE9hMUWHMWslpvSNG-I3KRnsOhqIKMqxFMSiCus-Yd-oZV4Y5J7Q.&_di_=9r0vqnaqvpijcrie6fptvqslpfro7jp4cshhpstddnk36jnq4ap0
https://e.grainger.com/pub/cc?_ri_=X0Gzc2X%3DAQjkPkSUWQGviJvNnB7cza0fATCCezfFNhF2DCB5tzdnzbze2zdeIBvXJzezePLRzdUY3YbnRVXtpKX%3DSYWUAUWB&_ei_=ENP3AJPH8nr2wFqwV6ni-2FDfOXNeti7gRSrvsOgsxsQWY0s7STe7075yEkYTpZBDY71AE9qHuQakh30UnmTW79z7xCyTF1shS79mgW355qtceRBTc2AiEcBWPU4SOyB1eTV4bg6GGc1ispUJUV_hyG8Qor0tMQaFLEKZypEQObYM47_cB9919BxbB-vbMb4dk2PI86Tek0NkguwH9xK2vCkevlm-71GdTrLmBlDtXRnlHFpMX9Sif6NI8QfhYNoV7zjNSD6p7rxOBwO3sZPqByXtxFyW_9CRL7W16zZt3L8gCSJw70t-4VMrbs4COx3zORq5v23OuqtA092DtEVoP2R9f6tO7HcZDOhSfQwNzYk99A9xWo5pwxDb9xOIZRO_e7uR2yKyG20nR37ciP2bkbxRjKq7nEnHxE27A9loALIMkRZMCsn3Yw9939wo21kE9hMUWHMWslpvSNG-I3KRnsOhqIKMqxFMSiCus-Yd-oZV4Y5J7Q.&_di_=9r0vqnaqvpijcrie6fptvqslpfro7jp4cshhpstddnk36jnq4ap0


1/22/24, 4:03 PM Gmail - Grainger Online Order Confirmation #1504292365 / P.O. #WEB2484585265

https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ik=b7c34f4d46&view=pt&search=all&permmsgid=msg-f:1788816792208483375&simpl=msg-f:17888167922084833… 2/2

GRAINGER CHOICE REPLACEMENT PARTS KEEPSTOCK KNOWHOW®

CONDOR

Item # 53YN58

Price $19.04 / each
 

STATUS
Preparing to Ship

Expected to Arrive Between Tue Jan 23*
and Wed Jan 24*

 

TOTAL  $19.04
QTY  1

 PO Line # 2 

APPROVED VENDOR

Item # 6FHA1

Price $30.12 / each
 

STATUS
Preparing to Ship

Expected to Arrive Between Tue Jan 23*
and Wed Jan 24*

 

TOTAL  $301.20
QTY  10

 PO Line # 3 

*Within the continental U.S. when your order is received by 5 p.m. local time at your local shipping facility, which may be in a different time zone from
you. Deliveries occur Monday-Friday, excluding holidays. Currently subject to limited product availability on select high-demand, pandemic-related
items.

About Us     Contact Us     Find a Branch     Privacy Policy     Terms of Sale

©1994–2024, W.W. Grainger, Inc. 100 Grainger Parkway, Lake Forest, IL 60045–5201. All rights reserved.

This email was sent to gm.locsd@gmail.com. To ensure emails are inboxed directly, please add grainger@service.grainger.com as a contact. This is an
automated email. Please do not reply.

These items are sold for domestic consumption in the US. If exported, purchaser assumes full responsibility for compliance with US export controls. All
US and Export orders are subject to the Grainger Terms of Sale as set forth on the website and/or an existing contract, if applicable. Products shipped

directly from suppliers to customers are subject to supplier availability. Certain items are not eligible for purchase by individual consumers without a
Grainger business account. If you are not a registered business customer or did not place this order under a logged in account, your order is subject to

review and Grainger may refuse to accept your request for certain products.

    

 
Page 5

Agenda Packet 
Page 26 of 124

https://e.grainger.com/pub/cc?_ri_=X0Gzc2X%3DAQjkPkSUWQGviJvNnB7cza0fATCCezfFNhF2DCB5tzdnzbze2zdeIBvXJzezePLRzdUY3YbnRVXtpKX%3DSYWUAUYT&_ei_=ENP3AJPH8nr2wFqwV6ni-2Fo6g67aTngQ1Vw5IOlQgEVLTLBjlBTwt0iH3N-Fn72u1E0u6yYTc_Bavg79tyGeV5F6Z75BZUwP-Mr_Jcr4ZT33ntv9UdP9yRrpt0mhn5AzoQ8XzGMXzVJ9uvUoThitkEG-tnBNv6RVdh9NiUIW_uNdHOH-lHMNut5feOlriHt4Eh4TA6z_R8LFkDjEuZkyxUqRQRp5bbKoo02uaNUGaM4JOowG5WaNi_xp6N6MeA4XV0EvmJ9YE9_iArr9O2PgN3CV-NUe39hFf2TASnozDSsvosH_kwiYZ9vM522tvbCbQeqloBinWFMf7PtQtbe6nDhsN_OizJ8dLzUYZdjgST_PbrSkwQsQYIyXSwKzFz79OuPtc0ggXjlA-Lx03NoAowWYE_nUfCXKVeL2_7UyKbkE-0wwyxuuN-EAf8-MWEyMugO.&_di_=mja6ih41flm4heco3q0g823g75g3p8iisdu9fmf77tu1pbe434jg
https://e.grainger.com/pub/cc?_ri_=X0Gzc2X%3DAQjkPkSUWQGviJvNnB7cza0fATCCezfFNhF2DCB5tzdnzbze2zdeIBvXJzezePLRzdUY3YbnRVXtpKX%3DSYWUAUYU&_ei_=ENP3AJPH8nr2wFqwV6ni-2ENWbtIeea7dPxLE4fA5_sCFGCT5GqfJkmolKY7WAZ5K7981mGRA4Dc9-hSbPojDbxSrEc9pS30Obnzdoyrv-CyVz24cieopB_-jrgG-6h2iQP7WUT2NUYYc-h9vK46w89_wSuS1yBIgK2JZzvihQ7vtMuz3ASVH2BqOzy7vt1nJnHlbZo7-aLXDilosNgygyN-RdGIN-KfjZhymXtZf_3qGSwBtu3sJLQ-1sv8Rt3qjExOsgpHYkwqicrzvntEKkNnWBIbG32Hpb2S39vVc7XpcHFs6BEispnR2lRNK46PdvOalNv2agqUWFXp8TB6ZP4yRDTPzia-FJGJMm2k6zRrfcUoblcD2Y6G8Za0MAebc5wLjBVOgc7EDeiwIKEn96dBrVxRVekvbjypgewRfhZTYn7HPWqY6YvNiTKZcuQt93bp2Wk.&_di_=b42p9e67edn4v7il375kojmghmdj2lomp87hnd772mhev2oag3a0
https://e.grainger.com/pub/cc?_ri_=X0Gzc2X%3DAQjkPkSUWQGviJvNnB7cza0fATCCezfFNhF2DCB5tzdnzbze2zdeIBvXJzezePLRzdUY3YbnRVXtpKX%3DSYWUAUYW&_ei_=ENP3AJPH8nr2wFqwV6ni-2GYxgyPLgL_q7OigI-X6IaQB4fUMZTzacSQyWvCsfkKHyEVJX8IkIlBbyNjrPSTIZci8Y9KcOYix7cUqfgRPaC7m2OSqT7ZtqXCYFLVaPGL3LPDZRKQp-zaceP5mnBlp32zsCxirh4kZl1N8AfA6tV0T1UZtH0CUNtgsCbfAbYzlRseymbLEabfc6wryPe_69_3lwppSHyTQKIMg_0hRp-VZ4fcCuskiVkoo-2oZu_DQIK0Gxcv1CvidoJ1wwutwGZulHqHyPLkB2kRXV9houWnWle1JpwJjiX9An9pqbkFuvlZZycBs2Tyv6UT8MctYzLie8InABJpkArBBM0JZwedYnriSJLBl_fsqooULcsBXQBVKCe-x5WGVwQh9kz3_8Ps26Og1YUcxMVdzGPkMaS86-XkfNf9m54djg.&_di_=anv63bv50cfcphe7e7om97hniph5q4dii03pnc1ocb9ng44vmgfg
https://e.grainger.com/pub/cc?_ri_=X0Gzc2X%3DAQjkPkSUWQGviJvNnB7cza0fATCCezfFNhF2DCB5tzdnzbze2zdeIBvXJzezePLRzdUY3YbnRVXtpKX%3DSYWUAUYY&_ei_=ENP3AJPH8nr2wFqwV6ni-2GHVXqqOa-PFc7gG3_zJNWC1lG-hPwrO_AB8WGiFixGvFOG_5bIxeYGXJOlIBBtEds4jXSskdKuUKUuOcRuAmQfjcDq5MweEbwTCUTADXVCKBLWODjHXUEEAvtDU8szSDDgggkxoJDR6aijiyeIgZfv7DthxA67TGDTCJJXTF50e4fSnpr--B4KIPAoBeE21xbMBpe8s67GDCyM7KJX3ZJh1d_zDALUa6TwbA8w36PN5i7ePdQfIpmhTg961TSzLdpfnD8cY17DmV76oTsmnZJbE3jtDrdKW_8EtE5v-yk9_O9BPkGR2dGec6gYCj2dOioQ2Vghq4j9djgb-xWizipfTKHAolfnDVGymlQNWBvzSElpEfXRnF5IAHOfXKy9eRYdSSBFN1TBcPIgYZUMmvnB944LbQKqaRrFKYA.&_di_=u6hnnhp2pod0g4fpsk4icsbjdc6q0dj9gqjol8kbjm2fil9ipj90
https://e.grainger.com/pub/cc?_ri_=X0Gzc2X%3DAQjkPkSUWQGviJvNnB7cza0fATCCezfFNhF2DCB5tzdnzbze2zdeIBvXJzezePLRzdUY3YbnRVXtpKX%3DSYWUAUWB&_ei_=ENP3AJPH8nr2wFqwV6ni-2FDfOXNeti7gRSrvsOgsxsQWY0s7STe7075yEkYTpZBDY71AE9qHuQakh30UnmTW79-WCqJU6Jl5Kza8dqaT5g5r63bCHA24fhdncoo73cyGQYCukuHdDrLoR6FIRbk7kpF8QZFIFA3-0RSHKx-cFTMfh2LYxIec7lU4D5wT8G1j49WCoRC5iIeIMEaMfRI89RNWTLPURLdU1NnSUVOMyYWtJKYEjtVMqCrsFPsQOFDInaQ9n7ioeTFx5MJ9UTL1fmQmB_clrKKffqKVIw4g0xbmA78GGdJvATz1T6COcKj1FV39AB3yowkQvn-GFPiH6pAYnuZ-7RSCcwHPBcOA4_LDqyVKVXBZgZRcrcIVktUEiEHm-nkgj_HIh-Dx29Zbr1q1vFgW6NuVpTy5mT0D5yZqFjpyiZC8gcmNb1srXkqy6sZPLNLDLOhcXz79sfUzeP9iuSjjMK2NPkfF1HnJODB4OoZ58Ek.&_di_=qcve3c5sffch8lfgnh4sq6t77tn6qth8fb97cu3tfvs2ddfmd7bg
https://e.grainger.com/pub/cc?_ri_=X0Gzc2X%3DAQjkPkSUWQGviJvNnB7cza0fATCCezfFNhF2DCB5tzdnzbze2zdeIBvXJzezePLRzdUY3YbnRVXtpKX%3DSYWUAUWB&_ei_=ENP3AJPH8nr2wFqwV6ni-2FDfOXNeti7gRSrvsOgsxsQWY0s7STe7075yEkYTpZBDY71AE9qHuQakh30UnmTW79-WCqJU6Jl5Kza8dqaT5g5r63bCHA24fhdncoo73cyGQYCukuHdDrLoR6FIRbk7kpF8QZFIFA3-0RSHKx-cFTMfh2LYxIec7lU4D5wT8G1j49WCoRC5iIeIMEaMfRI89RNWTLPURLdU1NnSUVOMyYWtJKYEjtVMqCrsFPsQOFDInaQ9n7ioeTFx5MJ9UTL1fmQmB_clrKKffqKVIw4g0xbmA78GGdJvATz1T6COcKj1FV39AB3yowkQvn-GFPiH6pAYnuZ-7RSCcwHPBcOA4_LDqyVKVXBZgZRcrcIVktUEiEHm-nkgj_HIh-Dx29Zbr1q1vFgW6NuVpTy5mT0D5yZqFjpyiZC8gcmNb1srXkqy6sZPLNLDLOhcXz79sfUzeP9iuSjjMK2NPkfF1HnJODB4OoZ58Ek.&_di_=qcve3c5sffch8lfgnh4sq6t77tn6qth8fb97cu3tfvs2ddfmd7bg
https://e.grainger.com/pub/cc?_ri_=X0Gzc2X%3DAQjkPkSUWQGviJvNnB7cza0fATCCezfFNhF2DCB5tzdnzbze2zdeIBvXJzezePLRzdUY3YbnRVXtpKX%3DSYWUAUWB&_ei_=ENP3AJPH8nr2wFqwV6ni-2FDfOXNeti7gRSrvsOgsxsQWY0s7STe7075yEkYTpZBDY71AE9qHuQakh30UnmTW79-WCqJU6Jl5Kza8dqaT5g5r63bCHA24fhdncoo73cyGQYCukuHdDrLoR6FIRbk7kpF8QZFIFA3-0RSHKx-cFTMfh2LYxIec7lU4D5wT8G1j49WCoRC5iIeIMEaMfRI89RNWTLPURLdU1NnSUVOMyYWtJKYEjtVMqCrsFPsQOFDInaQ9n7ioeTFx5MJ9UTL1fmQmB_clrKKffqKVIw4g0xbmA78GGdJvATz1T6COcKj1FV39AB3yowkQvn-GFPiH6pAYnuZ-7RSCcwHPBcOA4_LDqyVKVXBZgZRcrcIVktUEiEHm-nkgj_HIh-Dx29Zbr1q1vFgW6NuVpTy5mT0D5yZqFjpyiZC8gcmNb1srXkqy6sZPLNLDLOhcXz79sfUzeP9iuSjjMK2NPkfF1HnJODB4OoZ58Ek.&_di_=qcve3c5sffch8lfgnh4sq6t77tn6qth8fb97cu3tfvs2ddfmd7bg
https://e.grainger.com/pub/cc?_ri_=X0Gzc2X%3DAQjkPkSUWQGviJvNnB7cza0fATCCezfFNhF2DCB5tzdnzbze2zdeIBvXJzezePLRzdUY3YbnRVXtpKX%3DSYWUAUWB&_ei_=ENP3AJPH8nr2wFqwV6ni-2FDfOXNeti7gRSrvsOgsxsQWY0s7STe7075yEkYTpZBDY71AE9qHuQakh30UnmTW79-WCqJU6Jl5Kza8dqaT5g5r63bCHA24fhdncoo73cyGQYCukuHdDrLoR6FIRbk7kpF8QZFIFA3-0RSHKx-cFTMfh2LYxIec7lU4D5wT8G1j49WCoRC5iIeIMEaMfRI89RNWTLPURLdU1NnSUVOMyYWtJKYEjtVMqCrsFPsQOFDInaQ9n7ioeTFx5MJ9UTL1fmQmB_clrKKffqKVIw4g0xbmA78GGdJvATz1T6COcKj1FV39AB3yowkQvn-GFPiH6pAYnuZ-7RSCcwHPBcOA4_LDqyVKVXBZgZRcrcIVktUEiEHm-nkgj_HIh-Dx29Zbr1q1vFgW6NuVpTy5mT0D5yZqFjpyiZC8gcmNb1srXkqy6sZPLNLDLOhcXz79sfUzeP9iuSjjMK2NPkfF1HnJODB4OoZ58Ek.&_di_=qcve3c5sffch8lfgnh4sq6t77tn6qth8fb97cu3tfvs2ddfmd7bg
https://e.grainger.com/pub/cc?_ri_=X0Gzc2X%3DAQjkPkSUWQGviJvNnB7cza0fATCCezfFNhF2DCB5tzdnzbze2zdeIBvXJzezePLRzdUY3YbnRVXtpKX%3DSYWUAUWB&_ei_=ENP3AJPH8nr2wFqwV6ni-2FDfOXNeti7gRSrvsOgsxsQWY0s7STe7075yEkYTpZBDY71AE9qHuQakh30UnmTW7aEBqR7BzHXFTzV-jReaNk0PBDrgPneDNinYwe3EGfcUb6uw8TniLBmW42_tHPiqKqbY9OpZnw6MDxOyJloYmwceQ9o2z6OJhpXXAblk3qItgLwfmsLGe8HS1UZCbOInfH38fOOGFs7y_XdQmv-DG7fgP4Hschu0-py7HInQ9o5GzXhus5CtseAKd6zVNN5hcuajl5R304eb7XGaxKHh1pZwtODeqaSVXeeLEx440PPHF1LsztLvGlxdQB-950R2eHPQWHQc2O3ffZvqD7L5DtvnBYTsXX-BEksuXieermiVoSzbAIP4A8GzrpLChOjM-RltyQ5u4kazfXqdFpRNTuAh5LETlzZLEcQdSh9PRcT8xO2tmi5k-8t7Z9o5P-_d45GKzheFDDTETkO-T1-zDObHcTXPY8.&_di_=ktv0oi0659q17kt4abt106skugebm97irpkoq03tp7h54nuvaokg
https://e.grainger.com/pub/cc?_ri_=X0Gzc2X%3DAQjkPkSUWQGviJvNnB7cza0fATCCezfFNhF2DCB5tzdnzbze2zdeIBvXJzezePLRzdUY3YbnRVXtpKX%3DSYWUAUWB&_ei_=ENP3AJPH8nr2wFqwV6ni-2FDfOXNeti7gRSrvsOgsxsQWY0s7STe7075yEkYTpZBDY71AE9qHuQakh30UnmTW7aEBqR7BzHXFTzV-jReaNk0PBDrgPneDNinYwe3EGfcUb6uw8TniLBmW42_tHPiqKqbY9OpZnw6MDxOyJloYmwceQ9o2z6OJhpXXAblk3qItgLwfmsLGe8HS1UZCbOInfH38fOOGFs7y_XdQmv-DG7fgP4Hschu0-py7HInQ9o5GzXhus5CtseAKd6zVNN5hcuajl5R304eb7XGaxKHh1pZwtODeqaSVXeeLEx440PPHF1LsztLvGlxdQB-950R2eHPQWHQc2O3ffZvqD7L5DtvnBYTsXX-BEksuXieermiVoSzbAIP4A8GzrpLChOjM-RltyQ5u4kazfXqdFpRNTuAh5LETlzZLEcQdSh9PRcT8xO2tmi5k-8t7Z9o5P-_d45GKzheFDDTETkO-T1-zDObHcTXPY8.&_di_=ktv0oi0659q17kt4abt106skugebm97irpkoq03tp7h54nuvaokg
https://e.grainger.com/pub/cc?_ri_=X0Gzc2X%3DAQjkPkSUWQGviJvNnB7cza0fATCCezfFNhF2DCB5tzdnzbze2zdeIBvXJzezePLRzdUY3YbnRVXtpKX%3DSYWUAUWB&_ei_=ENP3AJPH8nr2wFqwV6ni-2FDfOXNeti7gRSrvsOgsxsQWY0s7STe7075yEkYTpZBDY71AE9qHuQakh30UnmTW7aEBqR7BzHXFTzV-jReaNk0PBDrgPneDNinYwe3EGfcUb6uw8TniLBmW42_tHPiqKqbY9OpZnw6MDxOyJloYmwceQ9o2z6OJhpXXAblk3qItgLwfmsLGe8HS1UZCbOInfH38fOOGFs7y_XdQmv-DG7fgP4Hschu0-py7HInQ9o5GzXhus5CtseAKd6zVNN5hcuajl5R304eb7XGaxKHh1pZwtODeqaSVXeeLEx440PPHF1LsztLvGlxdQB-950R2eHPQWHQc2O3ffZvqD7L5DtvnBYTsXX-BEksuXieermiVoSzbAIP4A8GzrpLChOjM-RltyQ5u4kazfXqdFpRNTuAh5LETlzZLEcQdSh9PRcT8xO2tmi5k-8t7Z9o5P-_d45GKzheFDDTETkO-T1-zDObHcTXPY8.&_di_=ktv0oi0659q17kt4abt106skugebm97irpkoq03tp7h54nuvaokg
https://e.grainger.com/pub/cc?_ri_=X0Gzc2X%3DAQjkPkSUWQGviJvNnB7cza0fATCCezfFNhF2DCB5tzdnzbze2zdeIBvXJzezePLRzdUY3YbnRVXtpKX%3DSYWUAUWB&_ei_=ENP3AJPH8nr2wFqwV6ni-2FDfOXNeti7gRSrvsOgsxsQWY0s7STe7075yEkYTpZBDY71AE9qHuQakh30UnmTW7aEBqR7BzHXFTzV-jReaNk0PBDrgPneDNinYwe3EGfcUb6uw8TniLBmW42_tHPiqKqbY9OpZnw6MDxOyJloYmwceQ9o2z6OJhpXXAblk3qItgLwfmsLGe8HS1UZCbOInfH38fOOGFs7y_XdQmv-DG7fgP4Hschu0-py7HInQ9o5GzXhus5CtseAKd6zVNN5hcuajl5R304eb7XGaxKHh1pZwtODeqaSVXeeLEx440PPHF1LsztLvGlxdQB-950R2eHPQWHQc2O3ffZvqD7L5DtvnBYTsXX-BEksuXieermiVoSzbAIP4A8GzrpLChOjM-RltyQ5u4kazfXqdFpRNTuAh5LETlzZLEcQdSh9PRcT8xO2tmi5k-8t7Z9o5P-_d45GKzheFDDTETkO-T1-zDObHcTXPY8.&_di_=ktv0oi0659q17kt4abt106skugebm97irpkoq03tp7h54nuvaokg
https://e.grainger.com/pub/cc?_ri_=X0Gzc2X%3DAQjkPkSUWQGviJvNnB7cza0fATCCezfFNhF2DCB5tzdnzbze2zdeIBvXJzezePLRzdUY3YbnRVXtpKX%3DSYWUAUYA&_ei_=ENP3AJPH8nr2wFqwV6ni-2ELumModJZI4sNc2yUkysNdHFowlHwJbukRyRdM0RehLYhZF9pVgjA-2Nerxd7eGSoBXKdJXYHKvsedR9gn1WBGU66ZanWaD13VfASVfxL4Zvhu9WLVQcsg86PFNcqkmCit74skNfalsk85KsSL3zW05Y8bc2yDufVvcj5w3_LgsGSMDK7SBieLcON3W9x7hemjMJGLrwvCpQ5cCgwEcOM0gxblr5VHPeTl7lFFxWWV5xWhFOV-X90Fx35_-CSMt83Q9NsXAO6HrxBI5uQ1ohLZxt8_3F5Wx-TvYHrT2wFuOA2yeiQXWQ4Px2UsXFyoZ2xuKdv1DLglSLCSzcO-fXhKpIWw2ErRk1GkkOptechsacc-fMq1dv7AcW2PWZgZpxD0gSw2a0f3SFMwhYSCnSBBTtMOr0.&_di_=1bfulevgattg70539n2d7l1rhsfuksqgotk96htfa6ianeurt4h0
https://e.grainger.com/pub/cc?_ri_=X0Gzc2X%3DAQjkPkSUWQGviJvNnB7cza0fATCCezfFNhF2DCB5tzdnzbze2zdeIBvXJzezePLRzdUY3YbnRVXtpKX%3DSYWUAUYA&_ei_=ENP3AJPH8nr2wFqwV6ni-2ELumModJZI4sNc2yUkysNdHFowlHwJbukRyRdM0RehLYhZF9pVgjA-2Nerxd7eGSoBXKdJXYHKvsedR9gn1WBGU66ZanWaD13VfASVfxL4Zvhu9WLVQcsg86PFNcqkmCit74skNfalsk85KsSL3zW05Y8bc2yDufVvcj5w3_LgsGSMDK7SBieLcON3W9x7hemjMJGLrwvCpQ5cCgwEcOM0gxblr5VHPeTl7lFFxWWV5xWhFOV-X90Fx35_-CSMt83Q9NsXAO6HrxBI5uQ1ohLZxt8_3F5Wx-TvYHrT2wFuOA2yeiQXWQ4Px2UsXFyoZ2xuKdv1DLglSLCSzcO-fXhKpIWw2ErRk1GkkOptechsacc-fMq1dv7AcW2PWZgZpxD0gSw2a0f3SFMwhYSCnSBBTtMOr0.&_di_=1bfulevgattg70539n2d7l1rhsfuksqgotk96htfa6ianeurt4h0
https://e.grainger.com/pub/cc?_ri_=X0Gzc2X%3DAQjkPkSUWQGviJvNnB7cza0fATCCezfFNhF2DCB5tzdnzbze2zdeIBvXJzezePLRzdUY3YbnRVXtpKX%3DSYWUAUYB&_ei_=ENP3AJPH8nr2wFqwV6ni-2GQR9HnGkA--94eK3hyoS097lLqQcXj2LL2q9MFo-3bG6rjScklyxMvE6AMa-aqIAchR6ZfeDvYHODjbpz2KCiCD8KwTzlkEakKwrVzrrIrxz_Y_Tyx8zrBMWPwJnlhHNBpV3s6GAF51qAj5z7B3jEZx8DXOEYw7XUOuiaYjlOQT55x1XxsMi87P8dJ2mtcpgVMkbVquodhEfCv7CTZWApeu6K9TZPpqrLkm5F9jJY-HrLBqKCIRWCDztlhiP5AstfnF9_SbP8PokuS5TPgQGf_MEdlGfSc0rlSPSDp1XWruRoGHx3z3SixU6_N_J_6tPdEE6r5Fq5rgzlayEf_9LZ3RWBPthIv_aEba_dy1Jc6cDMh8F5a8Zijq_Wo1CaTt58ZDDa_hmH6UHO629oHTjVT_iB5.&_di_=ndnvl73l1ff3npeogtaate83qihd8909gj6ft2nef5ov05g4v4pg
https://e.grainger.com/pub/cc?_ri_=X0Gzc2X%3DAQjkPkSUWQGviJvNnB7cza0fATCCezfFNhF2DCB5tzdnzbze2zdeIBvXJzezePLRzdUY3YbnRVXtpKX%3DSYWUAUYB&_ei_=ENP3AJPH8nr2wFqwV6ni-2GQR9HnGkA--94eK3hyoS097lLqQcXj2LL2q9MFo-3bG6rjScklyxMvE6AMa-aqIAchR6ZfeDvYHODjbpz2KCiCD8KwTzlkEakKwrVzrrIrxz_Y_Tyx8zrBMWPwJnlhHNBpV3s6GAF51qAj5z7B3jEZx8DXOEYw7XUOuiaYjlOQT55x1XxsMi87P8dJ2mtcpgVMkbVquodhEfCv7CTZWApeu6K9TZPpqrLkm5F9jJY-HrLBqKCIRWCDztlhiP5AstfnF9_SbP8PokuS5TPgQGf_MEdlGfSc0rlSPSDp1XWruRoGHx3z3SixU6_N_J_6tPdEE6r5Fq5rgzlayEf_9LZ3RWBPthIv_aEba_dy1Jc6cDMh8F5a8Zijq_Wo1CaTt58ZDDa_hmH6UHO629oHTjVT_iB5.&_di_=ndnvl73l1ff3npeogtaate83qihd8909gj6ft2nef5ov05g4v4pg
https://e.grainger.com/pub/cc?_ri_=X0Gzc2X%3DAQjkPkSUWQGviJvNnB7cza0fATCCezfFNhF2DCB5tzdnzbze2zdeIBvXJzezePLRzdUY3YbnRVXtpKX%3DSYWUAUYC&_ei_=ENP3AJPH8nr2wFqwV6ni-2GPN5imkROuEsStPuRjPc8SbWDFGMLnrLNg4m4pbK5mXKpRZvil991rkzDV3iT2a-FcAjcXZZArUO_cMiD_glNxxSf0drZlkAcExbXtb0k4L21X7fhQH8HepQkqj2BEUbTmFFXmYb7TIWP8EmBdNXWyWZxTqnj_SUdsViOKhm3dgirmRfHPXJCcyq3OfXIhymkLmJNdQLnpbabypwjEuKiBCVEwBMyf1ZoxWvI-QLKnOGiKyZPDuKJC--Pw-YH1k5H8w17_GEifo_JErLVuNjwnBePUmMjONzHO23b0Miyr77W47zqAgiggAV6JAr9vkFikt9j2JQM4hTPZM3-2VwPSvivrC6RC-xrsnoTx7-vioryb60x-6EtDD-kIdQ9OG0XgnZgu1j1GVRimn3SjFMWCDDWR.&_di_=jsnm6l27j6hsagme3m3l3hp8il7rlna88vrkgft9j1qt62sf8to0
https://e.grainger.com/pub/cc?_ri_=X0Gzc2X%3DAQjkPkSUWQGviJvNnB7cza0fATCCezfFNhF2DCB5tzdnzbze2zdeIBvXJzezePLRzdUY3YbnRVXtpKX%3DSYWUAUYC&_ei_=ENP3AJPH8nr2wFqwV6ni-2GPN5imkROuEsStPuRjPc8SbWDFGMLnrLNg4m4pbK5mXKpRZvil991rkzDV3iT2a-FcAjcXZZArUO_cMiD_glNxxSf0drZlkAcExbXtb0k4L21X7fhQH8HepQkqj2BEUbTmFFXmYb7TIWP8EmBdNXWyWZxTqnj_SUdsViOKhm3dgirmRfHPXJCcyq3OfXIhymkLmJNdQLnpbabypwjEuKiBCVEwBMyf1ZoxWvI-QLKnOGiKyZPDuKJC--Pw-YH1k5H8w17_GEifo_JErLVuNjwnBePUmMjONzHO23b0Miyr77W47zqAgiggAV6JAr9vkFikt9j2JQM4hTPZM3-2VwPSvivrC6RC-xrsnoTx7-vioryb60x-6EtDD-kIdQ9OG0XgnZgu1j1GVRimn3SjFMWCDDWR.&_di_=jsnm6l27j6hsagme3m3l3hp8il7rlna88vrkgft9j1qt62sf8to0
https://e.grainger.com/pub/cc?_ri_=X0Gzc2X%3DAQjkPkSUWQGviJvNnB7cza0fATCCezfFNhF2DCB5tzdnzbze2zdeIBvXJzezePLRzdUY3YbnRVXtpKX%3DSYWUAUYD&_ei_=ENP3AJPH8nr2wFqwV6ni-2GfqPc6rw77B-iW44DVVzDcbk3e1l-9KL9MoGBNJmjLKLB3Nhszx4PUSoTnlOQ-kAOBTpTQKaI2I7Giprubf9EbvgifGY0TqIMdEw5N0yXXmxYjSsq0VkKv06wbJomNw5SHUQwIOXNsnqItuTBx00N2tE6lEL1_wg95Gf9PAxtU3-Re8VClwtuXM3FalOCwgmkVRMB_s8-TFQd78NutQnB4oZCpFuhj9RTnLVti6ESjg8GPG6zAu6d_4VnstUfjqtyO2sVNzXJlfPkkJJIgJQRzmoNTQ-x_QA1l7t99z-0VYrxVK-xKdWVjgGy15TTA9vvEZquR_T4YoxmuXAGYqSaOXXLRC_uHHUr3nHmuISylGc-AcLOzuwCfnKqrAQQBPvtEZFSgJj8J8jCSxpza2Y6GA2w1Kg.&_di_=k23k65ojurdv6ijc8mboavq47410qk4n1f9gbgd1harpul28g1bg
https://e.grainger.com/pub/cc?_ri_=X0Gzc2X%3DAQjkPkSUWQGviJvNnB7cza0fATCCezfFNhF2DCB5tzdnzbze2zdeIBvXJzezePLRzdUY3YbnRVXtpKX%3DSYWUAUYD&_ei_=ENP3AJPH8nr2wFqwV6ni-2GfqPc6rw77B-iW44DVVzDcbk3e1l-9KL9MoGBNJmjLKLB3Nhszx4PUSoTnlOQ-kAOBTpTQKaI2I7Giprubf9EbvgifGY0TqIMdEw5N0yXXmxYjSsq0VkKv06wbJomNw5SHUQwIOXNsnqItuTBx00N2tE6lEL1_wg95Gf9PAxtU3-Re8VClwtuXM3FalOCwgmkVRMB_s8-TFQd78NutQnB4oZCpFuhj9RTnLVti6ESjg8GPG6zAu6d_4VnstUfjqtyO2sVNzXJlfPkkJJIgJQRzmoNTQ-x_QA1l7t99z-0VYrxVK-xKdWVjgGy15TTA9vvEZquR_T4YoxmuXAGYqSaOXXLRC_uHHUr3nHmuISylGc-AcLOzuwCfnKqrAQQBPvtEZFSgJj8J8jCSxpza2Y6GA2w1Kg.&_di_=k23k65ojurdv6ijc8mboavq47410qk4n1f9gbgd1harpul28g1bg
https://e.grainger.com/pub/cc?_ri_=X0Gzc2X%3DAQjkPkSUWQGviJvNnB7cza0fATCCezfFNhF2DCB5tzdnzbze2zdeIBvXJzezePLRzdUY3YbnRVXtpKX%3DSYWUAUAR&_ei_=ENP3AJPH8nr2wFqwV6ni-2FE0sLR9WAMDSAxOXWk5BQev4IHLMYPb80Is8PSd_QQ4Vpb0zlsW2Sm6FnHWrWGLYMayD3sy6xaFPtN4Gp5RSGt1zinO0deiGs6GdKT6ATQnjdE0tcV4qnEZeABDjw6noodFwr4abM0hMbAKo_SuTxyXymcI7jSo95SJzdmUpApITz_zbZCKmAUS75BjvXWoovCFquNF5WZBwPbIYIIbCS1AzGET5uxNlTxaJxGNVq4oBOmVmCIIPQ6_Y5Qz5bMMIB53D1TDKm9F9-q3hWFawVPlWSjc88ekhL9Vb99lJ0WQKNTwQjkeNr3meMblAGOKTIZsmwya23YgbyqLazvvBi8eKKmaGnLOVr2L1oYlS7GaYP5Mo2EYA49Cd7LeboC9SlTvpjCbx00HYc-7a0rwAMl4sko60g.&_di_=e7658fh0bhf5g2pe3earo7n4ik4s2fj0dn37sa4a4rs50s8po9hg
https://e.grainger.com/pub/cc?_ri_=X0Gzc2X%3DAQjkPkSUWQGviJvNnB7cza0fATCCezfFNhF2DCB5tzdnzbze2zdeIBvXJzezePLRzdUY3YbnRVXtpKX%3DSYWUAUAR&_ei_=ENP3AJPH8nr2wFqwV6ni-2FE0sLR9WAMDSAxOXWk5BQev4IHLMYPb80Is8PSd_QQ4Vpb0zlsW2Sm6FnHWrWGLYMayD3sy6xaFPtN4Gp5RSGt1zinO0deiGs6GdKT6ATQnjdE0tcV4qnEZeABDjw6noodFwr4abM0hMbAKo_SuTxyXymcI7jSo95SJzdmUpApITz_zbZCKmAUS75BjvXWoovCFquNF5WZBwPbIYIIbCS1AzGET5uxNlTxaJxGNVq4oBOmVmCIIPQ6_Y5Qz5bMMIB53D1TDKm9F9-q3hWFawVPlWSjc88ekhL9Vb99lJ0WQKNTwQjkeNr3meMblAGOKTIZsmwya23YgbyqLazvvBi8eKKmaGnLOVr2L1oYlS7GaYP5Mo2EYA49Cd7LeboC9SlTvpjCbx00HYc-7a0rwAMl4sko60g.&_di_=e7658fh0bhf5g2pe3earo7n4ik4s2fj0dn37sa4a4rs50s8po9hg
https://e.grainger.com/pub/cc?_ri_=X0Gzc2X%3DAQjkPkSUWQGviJvNnB7cza0fATCCezfFNhF2DCB5tzdnzbze2zdeIBvXJzezePLRzdUY3YbnRVXtpKX%3DSYWUDSAA&_ei_=ENP3AJPH8nr2wFqwV6ni-2G3l3iNJ1fZb3yIGb5p69y0N7iQzbXO5jKeC2xFZkvQsLx8sgoU-AUgo2yp35HRGx4WxK6vtA3PsHpy4qgdge5rzuLEFweKpZ4lC209GYiSleb0DbdAreNsLmrUxhz4jTwdXoJkvAhqeit7RkOLchkHF8JTMBWydxLq8u6NO3a_5j_ETnV5_XAgo803g56D_INGnL5yfnSHyaErAMLo_vwyqc1sYpHDN8d8GiBFosxMXkQRTVHj0cGVoYnOaOCyVaiUpaS5AF18jVEFQbzf7_5ZZkG0-eg7XDjxjmdLWEftqkuUj_c4f0mX7zgT8MXVfDaUkcT5DWSXELzmBZQbJeGuAva3SPcNNgSb2RibWnxFnYiVaYeLR5XgXsnK6Ixr-m2Y1UDL_8h_DIxWOmzYy_YkbgGfEuf-vOWlBBWwTOoH6-n029D34_7jR-usFyz1xQcKti_cM-p1F-XqX3duTu_9OMC5.&_di_=q3iaurmvmvij6bqfcko50oru6g6ne432kl2jsbuj3ecmmhm89010
https://e.grainger.com/pub/cc?_ri_=X0Gzc2X%3DAQjkPkSUWQGviJvNnB7cza0fATCCezfFNhF2DCB5tzdnzbze2zdeIBvXJzezePLRzdUY3YbnRVXtpKX%3DSYWUDSAA&_ei_=ENP3AJPH8nr2wFqwV6ni-2G3l3iNJ1fZb3yIGb5p69y0N7iQzbXO5jKeC2xFZkvQsLx8sgoU-AUgo2yp35HRGx4WxK6vtA3PsHpy4qgdge5rzuLEFweKpZ4lC209GYiSleb0DbdAreNsLmrUxhz4jTwdXoJkvAhqeit7RkOLchkHF8JTMBWydxLq8u6NO3a_5j_ETnV5_XAgo803g56D_INGnL5yfnSHyaErAMLo_vwyqc1sYpHDN8d8GiBFosxMXkQRTVHj0cGVoYnOaOCyVaiUpaS5AF18jVEFQbzf7_5ZZkG0-eg7XDjxjmdLWEftqkuUj_c4f0mX7zgT8MXVfDaUkcT5DWSXELzmBZQbJeGuAva3SPcNNgSb2RibWnxFnYiVaYeLR5XgXsnK6Ixr-m2Y1UDL_8h_DIxWOmzYy_YkbgGfEuf-vOWlBBWwTOoH6-n029D34_7jR-usFyz1xQcKti_cM-p1F-XqX3duTu_9OMC5.&_di_=q3iaurmvmvij6bqfcko50oru6g6ne432kl2jsbuj3ecmmhm89010
https://e.grainger.com/pub/cc?_ri_=X0Gzc2X%3DAQjkPkSUWQGviJvNnB7cza0fATCCezfFNhF2DCB5tzdnzbze2zdeIBvXJzezePLRzdUY3YbnRVXtpKX%3DSYWUAUAT&_ei_=ENP3AJPH8nr2wFqwV6ni-2FUW_40ItQ1b9ajYLJb2dV3AyDEICh-XXjt1bQUD9B4i1V4lzEuATShGVgoYhODuIMdB2uh338jMJmTLfGopvE6gRxZjlv1pEJEqFajsdxDCZz34P0UJo02VhDTFOEOBuGePVJSWC_KatqhS4zec_Q_qYqEMWscCYeQ6sQqVNp0VHqMuHRbD9OEsxfC9Hsir0yXoZm6zklVTdA_wqugXnDa17azfTz0IJ55XIPBDviz6k9EVnI3anxqXodEztgN_IIaoFlz0etNZ7ygRfuzsAxnWJC-dqVLCE5td6TA7VOF0ENgLb3J35ExiZyiK-hcm6F6002K7U4Jl6JdGwhc9pgV1YPwSrcIe5FPg42xNKS0_JGDrtvvBQn4IIGF2sfDQ6xamkCPLS76Hk_Y1F0PMUBRC3DwbwKC.&_di_=drk9sealv3rpcms7ab91ndop3d628flnf2vl7f89a5i4328u2vf0
https://e.grainger.com/pub/cc?_ri_=X0Gzc2X%3DAQjkPkSUWQGviJvNnB7cza0fATCCezfFNhF2DCB5tzdnzbze2zdeIBvXJzezePLRzdUY3YbnRVXtpKX%3DSYWUAUAT&_ei_=ENP3AJPH8nr2wFqwV6ni-2FUW_40ItQ1b9ajYLJb2dV3AyDEICh-XXjt1bQUD9B4i1V4lzEuATShGVgoYhODuIMdB2uh338jMJmTLfGopvE6gRxZjlv1pEJEqFajsdxDCZz34P0UJo02VhDTFOEOBuGePVJSWC_KatqhS4zec_Q_qYqEMWscCYeQ6sQqVNp0VHqMuHRbD9OEsxfC9Hsir0yXoZm6zklVTdA_wqugXnDa17azfTz0IJ55XIPBDviz6k9EVnI3anxqXodEztgN_IIaoFlz0etNZ7ygRfuzsAxnWJC-dqVLCE5td6TA7VOF0ENgLb3J35ExiZyiK-hcm6F6002K7U4Jl6JdGwhc9pgV1YPwSrcIe5FPg42xNKS0_JGDrtvvBQn4IIGF2sfDQ6xamkCPLS76Hk_Y1F0PMUBRC3DwbwKC.&_di_=drk9sealv3rpcms7ab91ndop3d628flnf2vl7f89a5i4328u2vf0
https://e.grainger.com/pub/cc?_ri_=X0Gzc2X%3DAQjkPkSUWQGviJvNnB7cza0fATCCezfFNhF2DCB5tzdnzbze2zdeIBvXJzezePLRzdUY3YbnRVXtpKX%3DSYWUAUAU&_ei_=ENP3AJPH8nr2wFqwV6ni-2EKutJwiDCn6LEafeCAiAkJTwhaSATHqO6iw6_LWAmmTJIJ_TUyGETui3SXIwOfAZgW42afLF_w5r3BzJtNKKoSRW2rZPJF6gMMgIVL0EC3QDG6QZHnxETCnq7fMl6xbhhSzuOrOHWEqRioEWLMryw9lNaIzt-azw0CqKzLACPa7u94mQuWSZFt7T1wUfKP7QbDde4E78y-4YDzcpxYA8uax5COkekAQS6N16KMxY2rlLqOE9Maop5oTtdSOlVrI93kBYN_wVOOlGSrg51UcfeZONWfBwZ5HdpK8yvcqJGT94JBjZg-ykpiQaTVaxGPB8--fJZCxTTRAdHmZf0pYvEy5WQT4d9npaFhUH_8UBH07BNdKu2yQK2l-yBE6NC2SsIGKtb0BUNp6f0gtyKynqvNV7Cxhg.&_di_=8b6ksrnqp5huoblkkkdhv15ig7u3fq6dbndnva97hakkd2m11uv0
https://e.grainger.com/pub/cc?_ri_=X0Gzc2X%3DAQjkPkSUWQGviJvNnB7cza0fATCCezfFNhF2DCB5tzdnzbze2zdeIBvXJzezePLRzdUY3YbnRVXtpKX%3DSYWUAUAU&_ei_=ENP3AJPH8nr2wFqwV6ni-2EKutJwiDCn6LEafeCAiAkJTwhaSATHqO6iw6_LWAmmTJIJ_TUyGETui3SXIwOfAZgW42afLF_w5r3BzJtNKKoSRW2rZPJF6gMMgIVL0EC3QDG6QZHnxETCnq7fMl6xbhhSzuOrOHWEqRioEWLMryw9lNaIzt-azw0CqKzLACPa7u94mQuWSZFt7T1wUfKP7QbDde4E78y-4YDzcpxYA8uax5COkekAQS6N16KMxY2rlLqOE9Maop5oTtdSOlVrI93kBYN_wVOOlGSrg51UcfeZONWfBwZ5HdpK8yvcqJGT94JBjZg-ykpiQaTVaxGPB8--fJZCxTTRAdHmZf0pYvEy5WQT4d9npaFhUH_8UBH07BNdKu2yQK2l-yBE6NC2SsIGKtb0BUNp6f0gtyKynqvNV7Cxhg.&_di_=8b6ksrnqp5huoblkkkdhv15ig7u3fq6dbndnva97hakkd2m11uv0
https://e.grainger.com/pub/cc?_ri_=X0Gzc2X%3DAQjkPkSUWQGviJvNnB7cza0fATCCezfFNhF2DCB5tzdnzbze2zdeIBvXJzezePLRzdUY3YbnRVXtpKX%3DSYWUAUAW&_ei_=ENP3AJPH8nr2wFqwV6ni-2FWP3mDmLIuIt4kQsCSTZ0_7MOXx4Q6KlCakpkl9gXlR_Zzv2r7kZRKs5O4Go1HQOL3n4xkGSaCrTdvz7PwyGfJc20gqzzTZgc6X0D3Tqe6EUr24YAsroAeHoL167ff4FN0Xg9xba0dEooC4OJz9aAF6g_OQvmSggbZuZXeUVIVi_jFFo6UjWmmNc3jqG5TzzaESSDRgzREqvPKxyXX9OsXfxu7kShKwLa_rPDwv9SK08PjRGf8LMA9kFx1vBxMo3VeaVtO84nIznM2hAxBRs3dL2OEIqWMkUixciPLfffc-jZuokdH9pUVEuuCeB0_2FbZslsf9fX1tKmzJ3D44ex8JYrnsCMrsa4YF3Qz6FG8N-K4uAbIME1Kh7nBDldv-iqLrzY8iP67Bm2ibyiVyVcP3rmT.&_di_=tat1tq6ldglscvgiajlsvlifqepcmuc16mk06icndfv3dmlv18lg
https://e.grainger.com/pub/cc?_ri_=X0Gzc2X%3DAQjkPkSUWQGviJvNnB7cza0fATCCezfFNhF2DCB5tzdnzbze2zdeIBvXJzezePLRzdUY3YbnRVXtpKX%3DSYWUAUAY&_ei_=ENP3AJPH8nr2wFqwV6ni-2FgJJ2KOM-q6rIXjAwbGIcOqyEoyjvmPa6iYo-DSKfJcuYVTUIMC14EghmPmxu2uB9jywKzxzspfFWOO9fhvKYSghBdk9lSe6iqJ-4BwLXoy7bWoVema-fWcr1Wke-L5mQlxVMC8Kt49mdpRsVmvQkWGs3MmTDcdtYQ5vXRnhjtruMKj1HgAGn5EH4oFfNpX0CQnuChtO1udpc1v-qt_vdxzbdP1F28dPYhxThWq68aREY6iQiNw1M3Nfnytw5yXPBbQQMLDZd5JSvKsLU2y-ZQlw4-O8r5jrtgIMcO-hmJfkfbZMaZ5iSB3fXSgYa0iL0DbBXwskMOO2DQiyV2mQV4Y8aEMB_1Fyj8sVQKyVH-_GTz6MFz7Lr40D4yOItVtKLNyCxWilJ-hzc9hdbhSfVbxOSeVTM.&_di_=ojipanpnkami25s04bg74f3i29j6b65vvfbunr2u4002b2v3c7ig
https://e.grainger.com/pub/cc?_ri_=X0Gzc2X%3DAQjkPkSUWQGviJvNnB7cza0fATCCezfFNhF2DCB5tzdnzbze2zdeIBvXJzezePLRzdUY3YbnRVXtpKX%3DSYWUAUAB&_ei_=ENP3AJPH8nr2wFqwV6ni-2GbOItU_pmwAcvnH-qXa1Gd8lcQMnrome365lmUl7pcloQiBqCmjiiIGwWHUSYBwtWbx2iRlzBDPFbH1uMHSvBtRK5i-Y1qZP6lohPvPi6jHvSbi5WeEAmjVg5-XTsf7QdTrt7Zh8ZSov9RRd8o3mCEQVr5z_qiACGHocBbXzE3MTDeUGmJ2W7fTi-xtCIlrX2nr28R7JnngS1uP6kn6aKtrBhYT_vZi7_jz0jVUnerdFMUzgw4P2B8Yhpc8xEi2380LTNEiojPTO7aeYWBnSCRTo4qNjRzkh1Debt5lCm84b1suSE2UDXN44zHEHcUBwFONKcIBCVJXIDQqHhWcwFwwNCqtB_kFdjZxw65_vkHT197czs993q3HbBV7MbIj-0KVenAl5jqEG4oZNHsRaXWuVwNu9RT.&_di_=nhmnv0d0dle2o6umkh07m1l6k4ohc3rgvc1r9gouuqqokhc50as0
https://e.grainger.com/pub/cc?_ri_=X0Gzc2X%3DAQjkPkSUWQGviJvNnB7cza0fATCCezfFNhF2DCB5tzdnzbze2zdeIBvXJzezePLRzdUY3YbnRVXtpKX%3DSYWUAUAC&_ei_=ENP3AJPH8nr2wFqwV6ni-2HUrqRfN0DwsomtkSCOXKoe9DhTz2V707lJbZ5M2WznvPaphJ3RHueyU6_8A8r-Z84VqKDi_jnpPj7REez_JUnbvrALw25PW8Cf1_vmlbgoSI3ppx5M0Dc8OgBzcnhAy8JlEv4n3Gy5ve3NNXr1yx8eT9F7fRJjoWRG7-LAdbnc3o-kODDqYLvnQBRjtt-RAFtq7KwHTEjkZzpBteOee6tXp2BEK7Qws1KPKNhm-tSBbRYt2WyJGph8B_P-IJTGUoCYt65d67wV-GwXJh8OL1yfKdXlYCYVuDgUv1u9GM-P_w_-uUODUtvOnZPZv5Anl3hxpbVBangDsjXA3sOBa11_X81yVVG7WrMQR4hCgqPZM00kCcJIKbAmICLMIEFVXZ8m4xJyHdSkwMhP2JxFZPB4q5Nlx0tf7zAz.&_di_=63tnq540tgn0jneqo04oigckg2tod47ihmh76ffmmoaeoh2pl2rg
https://e.grainger.com/pub/cc?_ri_=X0Gzc2X%3DAQjkPkSUWQGviJvNnB7cza0fATCCezfFNhF2DCB5tzdnzbze2zdeIBvXJzezePLRzdUY3YbnRVXtpKX%3DSYWUAUAD&_ei_=ENP3AJPH8nr2wFqwV6ni-2F2QzXbjLSnZNAPiyyR-TfEvHCqOzZQcFrj3SflK9MmLIXnzvr8y11Bxz31h-GBLcENWYImfxoBSGH6sBiaEnSzX9Z2ACzH7DBEqVrhXM4tQkEBLkESuwHEZCgSx2zGYtCp_N-Q39w8y6yoR3F9ccXxaG68s1GkApkSDlC-hQuXxeO4k3qIw1jh-KNmIrQUpi6jcSZ_4c3bN7kpfAePL7paCfVlsRynAvxZmLdzs_KPnO_HoTXQHbHwecZq4bVt0tNiB28HWo5C9hEJlTA29sFW8YE7l8cFuRidbq1ftq8p7at1EFnXsx-e6DhhDtanuZXm9qTMX4hdf0kN3_AwduGrm_OOqQ6qXh5gChqa8w4bw_b0vVyezUdZvBVZ-uu2wgwFlpMAf5bSS-PcFlb2knW0JFIkjIK1RM.&_di_=ft8ce33e8mce7j90klte0j04aemv08p785v6mff0f8djst9emnkg
mailto:gm.locsd@gmail.com
mailto:gm.locsd@gmail.com
https://e.grainger.com/pub/cc?_ri_=X0Gzc2X%3DAQjkPkSUWQGviJvNnB7cza0fATCCezfFNhF2DCB5tzdnzbze2zdeIBvXJzezePLRzdUY3YbnRVXtpKX%3DSYWUAUBR&_ei_=ENP3AJPH8nr2wFqwV6ni-2F2QzXbjLSnZNAPiyyR-TfEvHCqOzZQcFrj3SflK9MmLIXnzvr8y11Bxz31h-GBLcENWYImfxoBSGH6sBiaEnSzX9Z2ACzH7DBEqVrhXM4tQkEBLkESuwHEZCgSx2zGYtCp_N-Q39w8y6yoR3F9ccXxaG68s1GkApkSDlC-hQuXxeO4k3qIw1jh-KNmIrQUpi6jcSZ_4c3bN7kpfAePL7paCfVlsRynAvxZmLdzs_KPnO_HoTXQHbHwecZq4bVt0tNiB28HWo5C9hEJlTA29sFW8YE7l8cFuRidbq1ftq8p7at1EFnXsx-e6DhhDtanuZXm9qTMX4hdf0kN3_AwduGrm_OOqQ6qXh5gChqa8w4bw_b0vVyezUdZvBVZ-uu2wgwFlpMAf5bSS-PcFlb2knW0JFIkjIK1RM.&_di_=cmvuh2vak9soag8mg0ou7u1bu0gmd974jhuo1mrhi3bcb6iib7fg


THANK YOU FOR SHOPPING AT

VALTEY HARDFJARE

1565 t'lISSIO|\l I)R.
SOLVAI'IO, CA 93463

(805) 688-4lel

30 UAY RETURN/REFUND EXCHANGE

01/22124 1:50Ptl DG S5l $ALE

5028140 1 EA

$TEI'ICIL KIT HD 3'' 36PK

$UB-T0TAL:$ 6.99 TAX:

TOTAL:

BC AIIT:

irrhiirr*: F'r irrtir-re ft,
16FI His-<iorr ilrir.rs,,, Ir;i t+ f-trit

Solti.rns [ft ?I{6I
iilflS) $fid-,.7r15

ilti?7"/14 tI:Elir Eu

$6,99 EA

$

fi
$

$5,99

,61

7 ,60
7 ,60

BK CARI)#: XX)(XXXXXXXX)(0I53

|.lID:*tc*****+48ff5 TII):***?4g5
AUTH I 9855?G AF|T: fi
Host reference #:476gbg Batf

Authorlzing liletwnrk: I/ISA

Chlp Read
CARI) TYFE;VISA EXPR;

[ - fiolor [op.'J i],Sili4

7,50

FEsIIIIFII$II irTT f-Yrlrli

lB,14

XXXX
AID

TVR

IAD

T$I
ARC

FIODE

CV|,1

40000000031010
8080008000
06010A03602000

6800
00

; Issuer
No CVt4

5irbtoial
I+rt
Tstai
TendEred f,;:tr
[h;*rrsp

lft, l4
ir" fi?

ll.lr-?
11. fi3
[r. riil

t{ame : VISA CREDIT

ATC :05C1

AC : F260F92BD2314A19

TxnID/valCodo: sz8szo

Bank card USD$ 7,60

lil llll lt tllltlllltlll ltl ltf tll lil

==>> JRNL#E76959

CUST tr|0:*12363

THANK YOU GUY SAI/AGE

FOR YOUIT PATROI'IAGE

ACE REWARD$ ID # 1971447600

GUY $AVAGE

Oustomer Copy

Acct:

 
Page 6

Agenda Packet 
Page 27 of 124



THANK YOU FOR SHOPPING AT

VALLEY HARDIIIARE

1665 I',|ISSION DR.

$0LVANG, CA 93463
(805) 688-41e1

30 DAY RETURN/REFUND EX(]HANGE

01120/?4 12 :?4Pt'| RC 552 $AL E

2721e 1 EA $9,99
TAPE BARACD CAUTION ?OO

1804855 1

}'IARKING PAIFIT PL t'lB

1396084 1

SPRYFNT 2X $AT CANYN

SUB-T0TAL :$ ?7 ,97 TAX : $
T0TAL: $

BC Al'lT: $

EA

$9 .99
EA

$e. ee

A

i7,99

2,44
30,4.|
s0 ,41

Ch'lp Read

CARD TYPE:VISA EXPR: )(XXX

AID

TVR

IAD

TSI

ARC

l4ODE

CVI'l

Name : VISA CREDIT

ATC:058F
AC t 0747?1054724AAc0

TxnID/ValCodo:528513

Bank card

Acct: 0UY SAVAGE

Customer Copy

A0000000031010
8080008000
0601 0403602000
6800
00

: Issuer

ilr iltililil]ilililililil]t|]l

==>> JRNL#E76512 ((==
CUST N0:*12363

THANK YOU GUY $AVACE

FOR YOUR PATRONAGE

ACE REiIIARD$ ID # 1971447600

usD$ 30.41

TAXABLE 8.75fr ,87
TA)(ABLE 8.75fr 1 .57

006

006

 
Page 7

Agenda Packet 
Page 28 of 124



Jims Service Center
2015 Mission Drive
Solvang, CA 93463

2015 ]'lISSI[)N DR

JIMS SERVICE STATIO

XXXXXXXXXTOOl

SOLVANG, CA

93463
01/30/2024 820316437
1 0 :04 :20 AM

XXXX XXXX XXXX 0153
Visa
INVOICE O5BO?4

AUTH O8O99G

**" REPRINT *nx REPRINT """ REPRINT ***
PUMF# 5

REGULAR 2.136G
PRICE/GAL $4.099

FUEL TOTAL $ 8,76

TOTAL = $ 8,76
"*r* REPRINT x** REPRINT """ REPRINT x**

CREDIT $ 8.76

Custonen-acti vated Purchase/Capture
Sequence Nunber 04887
Contact I ess
APPROVED OBO99G

Thanks for coning inl
Come back soon !

 
Page 8

Agenda Packet 
Page 29 of 124



Project Manager Douglas Pike
Principal Jeffrey Edwards

Los Olivos Community Services District
P.O. Box 553
Los Olivos, CA  93441

January 24, 2024
Project No: LOCSD.180392.00
Invoice No: 85320

Project LOCSD.180392.00 District Support Services

This Invoice includes:

1. General District Support Tasks: $420.00

2. Engineering Tasks:

a. General Support Tasks: Attend Meeting $0.00

b. General Engineering Tasks GIS/CAD Exhibits: $2,822.50

Professional Services for the Period:December 01, 2023 to December 31, 2023
          Level 2 TASK01 District Management

Professional Personnel
Hours Rate Amount

Administrative Support
Project Coordinator 4.00 105.00 420.00

Totals 4.00 420.00
Total Labor 420.00

$420.00Level 2 Subtotal

Level 2 TASK02 Engineering Tasks
 Professional Personnel

Hours Rate Amount
Project Management

Supervising Technician .50 135.00 67.50
District Engineer 2.00 185.00 370.00

Agenda Packet 
Page 30 of 124



Project 85320LOCSD.180392.00 District Support Services Invoice
Development Review (Plan/Map Checking)

Senior Project Engineer 13.25 180.00 2,385.00
Totals 15.75 2,822.50
Total Labor 2,822.50

$2,822.50Level 2 Subtotal

$3,242.50Current Invoice Amount

Outstanding Invoices
Number Date Balance
84819 11/21/2023 2,615.05
Total 2,615.05

Agenda Packet 
Page 31 of 124



Project 85320LOCSD.180392.00 District Support Services Invoice

12:36:38 PMInvoice 85320 Dated 1/24/2024MNS Engineers, Inc.
Wednesday, January 24, 2024Billing Backup

Project LOCSD.180392.00 District Support Services

Level 2 TASK01 District Management

Professional Personnel
Hours Rate Amount

Administrative Support
Project Coordinator

Zepeda, Mary 12/1/2023 .25 105.00 26.25
File and Upload A&W Invoice; Update Budget Tracking Log

Zepeda, Mary 12/4/2023 .25 105.00 26.25
Follow-up with DP and GS re processing election payment

Zepeda, Mary 12/5/2023 .25 105.00 26.25
File and Upload MNS Invoice; Update Budget Tracking Log;  
Follow-up with DP and GS re Reimbursement Statements

Zepeda, Mary 12/8/2023 .25 105.00 26.25
Follow-up with GS and DP re LOCSD Reimbursement Statement

Zepeda, Mary 12/20/2023 3.00 105.00 315.00
Prepare A&W (2), CSDA, GWS, and Regen Invoices for payment 
via FIN; Create and Process Single Payment Claims for A&W (2), 
CSDA, GWS, and Regen Invoices for DP; Update Budget Tracking 
Log

Totals 4.00 420.00
Total Labor 420.00

Level 2 Subtotal $420.00

Level 2 TASK02 Engineering Tasks

Professional Personnel
Hours Rate Amount

Project Management
Supervising Technician

Starr, Robert 12/14/2023 .50 135.00 67.50
E-transmit district information maps. For Tristain's use in his WW Report in process.

District Engineer
Pike, Douglas 12/11/2023 .50 185.00 92.50

Exhibits for 3 new wells for Groundwater Well Permit Application
Pike, Douglas 1.00 185.00 185.0012/12/2023   
Field measurements for Sampling Well Exhibits for Groundwater Well Permit Application
Pike, Douglas 12/29/2023 .50 185.00 92.50
Water use rates from the Water District to Tristian Bounds For Tristain's use in his WW Report in process.
Development Review (Plan/Map Checking)

Senior Project Engineer
Mak, Gabriella 12/8/2023 2.00 180.00 360.00
Prepared 3 exhibits for Groundwater Well Permit Application
Mak, Gabriella 12/11/2023 1.50 180.00 270.00

Groundwater wells map for Groundwater Well Permit Application
Mak, Gabriella 12/12/2023 1.00 180.00 180.00

Groundwater wells map for Groundwater Well Permit Application
Mak, Gabriella 12/13/2023 4.00 180.00 720.00

Meeting with Doug and prepared exhibits for Groundwater Well Permit Application

Agenda Packet 
Page 32 of 124



Project 85320LOCSD.180392.00 District Support Services Invoice
Mak, Gabriella 12/14/2023 2.75 180.00 495.00

Meeting with Doug and revised exhibits for Groundwater Well Permit Application
Mak, Gabriella 12/15/2023 2.00 180.00 360.00

Revised exhibits for Groundwater Well Permit Application
Totals 15.75 2,822.50
Total Labor 2,822.50

Level 2 Subtotal $2,822.50

$3,242.50Project Total

$3,242.50Total this Report

Agenda Packet 
Page 33 of 124



 

 

 

 

 

 

REG
EN

 15%
 DESIG

N
 CHECKPO

IN
T

 
ITEM 7 – REGEN 15% DESIGN CHECKPOINT 

Agenda Packet 
Page 34 of 124



 
 

Preliminary Basis of Design Report 

LOS OLIVOS WASTEWATER HYBRID 

COLLECTION ANALYSIS 
Initial Draft 

 
 

Prepared for: 
Los Olivos Community Service District 

 
Prepared by: 

Regen AEC, PLLC 
220 N 10th St 

Boise, Id 83702 
(541) 580-2980 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

February 21, 2024 
Rev 1.0 

 

Agenda Packet 
Page 35 of 124



                 

    2 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

TABLE OF CONTENTS ............................................................................................................................ 2 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY ........................................................................................................................ 10 

INTRODUCTION .................................................................................................................................... 2 

STUDY AREA CHARACTERISTICS ............................................................................................................ 2 

PREVIOUS STUDIES ............................................................................................................................... 5 

BASIS OF PLANNING ............................................................................................................................. 5 

ZONE AREA BOUNDARIES ........................................................................................................................... 5 
PROPOSED ZONE COLLECTIONS SYSTEM ALTERNATIVES ..................................................................................... 6 
PROPOSED TREATMENT PLANT LOCATIONS .................................................................................................... 6 

COLLECTION SYSTEM ............................................................................................................................ 6 

GRAVITY COLLECTION ................................................................................................................................ 6 
DESIGN CRITERIA .............................................................................................................................................. 6 
LATERAL CONNECTION REQUIREMENTS ................................................................................................................ 7 
RIGHT-OF-WAY REQUIREMENTS .......................................................................................................................... 8 
SEWAGE LIFT STATION ....................................................................................................................................... 8 
EFFLUENT SEWER COLLECTION ..................................................................................................................... 9 
DESIGN CRITERIA .............................................................................................................................................. 9 
ON LOT PROCESSING TANK ................................................................................................................................ 9 
LATERAL CONNECTION REQUIREMENTS .............................................................................................................. 10 
RIGHT-OF-WAY REQUIREMENTS ........................................................................................................................ 11 
WATER LATERAL SEPARATION REQUIREMENTS .................................................................................................... 11 

WASTEWATER TREATMENT FACILITY SITING ...................................................................................... 11 

WASTEWATER COLLECTION SYSTEM OPTIONAL LAYOUTS .................................................................... 1 

WASTEWATER FLOW AND COMPOSITION ANALYSIS ............................................................................ 5 

ZONE POPULATIONS .................................................................................................................................. 5 
VARIOUS SYSTEMS LOADING ESTIMATES ........................................................................................................ 5 
GRAVITY WASTEWATER HYDRAULIC AND CONSTITUENTS ESTIMATES ................................................................... 5 
EFFLUENT SEWER WASTEWATER HYDRAULIC AND CONSTITUENT ESTIMATES ......................................................... 6 

Agenda Packet 
Page 36 of 124



                 

    3 

WASTEWATER TREATMENT FACILITY HYDRAULIC LOAD ESTIMATES ...................................................................... 6 

SUMMARY ............................................................................................................................................ 8 

PRELIMINARY COST SUMMARY .................................................................................................................... 8 
 
 

Agenda Packet 
Page 37 of 124



                 

    4 
Agenda Packet 
Page 38 of 124



                 

    5 

Figure 8 – Proposed Hybrid Sewer Collection System Alternative B ............................................ 2 

Agenda Packet 
Page 39 of 124



                 

    6 
Agenda Packet 
Page 40 of 124



                 

    7 

Figure 9 – Proposed Hybrid Sewer Collection System Alternative C ............................................ 3 

Agenda Packet 
Page 41 of 124



                 

    8 
Agenda Packet 
Page 42 of 124



                 

    9 

Figure 10 – Proposed Hybrid Sewer Collection System Alternative D .......................................... 4 
 

Table 1 – Gravity Sewer Main Slopes and Design Depths ............................................................. 7 
Table 2 - Installed Unit Costs: Gravity Sewer Pipe USD/Linear Ft (PVC).2 .................................. 8 
Table 3 – Zone Populations ............................................................................................................. 5 
Table 4 - Typical wastewater loading rates from effluent sewer, grinder sewer and gravity sewer
 ......................................................................................................................................................... 5 
Table 5 – Gravity Collection Hydraulic Estimates .......................................................................... 5 
Table 6 – Gravity Collection Wastewater Constituent Estimates ................................................... 6 
Table 7 – Effluent Sewer Hydraulic Estimates ............................................................................... 6 
Table 8 – Effluent Sewer Collection Wastewater Constituent Estimates ....................................... 6 
Table 9 – Collection Hydraulic Load Estimates .............................................................................. 6 
Table 10 – Alternative Option Constituent Estimates ..................................................................... 7 
Table 11 – Estimated Options Costs ............................................................................................... 8 
Table 12 – Estimated Total Cost ..................................................................................................... 8 

 

Agenda Packet 
Page 43 of 124



 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
The purpose of this Basis of Design (BOD) is to compare alternative hybrid collection systems 
configuration and make an initial recommendation on the best approach for the unincorporated 
community of Los Olivos. This BOD has been conducted by Regen AEC (Regen) for the Los Olivos 
Community Service District (LOCSD) and the Los Olivos Wastewater Reclamation Program Project 
(LOWRPP).  
 
  

Agenda Packet 
Page 44 of 124



    Regen                              Los Olivos Reclamation Program Project | Basis of Design Hybrid Collection System     

 
    

INTRODUCTION 
 
This Basis of Design (BOD) report had been developed to provide the Los Olivos Community Service 
District (CSD or District) with a foundational design basis for the development of a hybrid wastewater 
collection system design. Regen has been contracted to assist the Los Olivos Community Services 
District with the design of a hybrid wastewater collection system.  
 

STUDY AREA CHARACTERISTICS 

The Los Olivos area is located within Santa Barbara County off California highway 154. The proposed 
wastewater collection area consists of 391 parcels and roughly 840 residents. Per adopted Resolution 
2019-04, the Los Olivos Wastewater Reclamation Program Project (LOWRPP) was initiated to help 
identify strategies to provide viable wastewater collection and treatment for the residents and business 
owners within the District.  

 
 
 

Agenda Packet 
Page 45 of 124



    Regen                              Los Olivos Reclamation Program Project | Basis of Design Hybrid Collection System     

 
    

 
 

Figure 1 – Vicinity Map 

Agenda Packet 
Page 46 of 124



    Regen                              Los Olivos Reclamation Program Project | Basis of Design Hybrid Collection System     

 
    

 

 
Figure 2 – Community Service District Area Boundary 

Agenda Packet 
Page 47 of 124



    Regen                              Los Olivos Reclamation Program Project | Basis of Design Hybrid Collection System     

 
    

PREVIOUS STUDIES 
 
The community of Los Olivos has had several studies conducted over the past two decades to evaluate 
wastewater alternatives to address groundwater quality concerns. Key previous studies include:  
 
1. Santa Ynez Valley Community Plan Environmental Impact Report (EIR 2009) 
2. Los Olivos Wastewater Management Plan (LOWWMP 2010) 
3. Los Olivos Wastewater System Preliminary Engineering Report (AECOM 2013) 
4. Los Olivos Special Problems Area Sewer Calculations (Stantec 2015) 
5. Final Draft Plan for Services and Feasibility Study (Berkson 2016) 
6. Update to Los Olivos Wastewater System Preliminary Engineering Report (AECOM 2016) 
7. Desktop Study- Proposed Wastewater Treatment Plant Siting Study (UPC 2021) 
8. Septic to Sewer Task Order No. 1 
9. Wastewater Collection and Treatment Basis of Design Report (Stantec 2022) 
 

BASIS OF PLANNING 

Zone Area Boundaries 

 
Figure 3 –Proposed Service District Zoning Map 

Zone 6 - “Remainder of District” Served 
by Individual Advanced Onsite Systems

Agenda Packet 
Page 48 of 124



    Regen                              Los Olivos Reclamation Program Project | Basis of Design Hybrid Collection System     

 
    

 

Proposed Zone Collections System Alternatives 

Collection system alternatives traditionally evaluated for residential development include gravity 
centralized lift stations, effluent collection systems (also known as step or liquid only sewers), and 
grinder systems.  
 
Gravity sewers utilize large diameter lines, which gravity flow to a centralized location for further 
conveyance. in the step system, the effluent is pumped from the septic tank under pressure to a small-
diameter, pressurized collector sewer. In the individual grinder lift stations, household sewage is 
collected in a small basin and macerated into the conveyance line with the grinder pumps. Residential 
step and grinder systems consist of an electrical panel, tank or basin, pump vault containing a single 
pump and level control.  

Proposed Treatment Plant Locations 

The wastewater treatment works are outside of the scope of Regen’s collection system design work.   
 
Treatment plant capacities are based on estimated flows from all residential and commercial properties. 
Estimated residential flows of 200 gpd average have been assumed, commercial property flows have 
been estimated based on water records and potential growth.  
 
Hydraulic analysis will be based on the approved configuration when determined.  
 

COLLECTION SYSTEM 

Gravity Collection  

Conventional gravity sewage collection systems are the oldest forms of sewage collection and sanitation 
dating back to the Roman Empire. These systems generally require no mechanical or electrical facilities 
and rely solely on gravity to transport sewage from the points of connection to a central receiving 
location, either a transfer lift station or a wastewater treatment plant (WWTP). Gravity collection 
systems are designed with network of pipes placed at slopes sufficient to maintain minimum velocities 
to transport solids and prevent deposition and accumulation of materials in the system. Typically, the 
network is subdivided into primary pipes (sewer mainlines along main roads), secondary pipes, and 
tertiary pipes collecting wastes from individual neighborhoods and properties.  

Design Criteria 

Gravity sewer wastewater contains human waste solids, grit, and other solids that down the drain. In 
considering the solid content in gravity sewers they must be designed to “self-clean” which requires 
specific velocities to be maintained to “flush” the solids to their destination. Velocities must be 
maintained at a minimum of 2 to 3 fps (feet per second) to ensure minimal build-up of material within 
collection lines. Velocities are maintained by designing gravity sewer collection lines to have slopes as 
is related of flow and pipe diameter.   
 

Agenda Packet 
Page 49 of 124



    Regen                              Los Olivos Reclamation Program Project | Basis of Design Hybrid Collection System     

 
    

Manholes are required for access at given straight distances along the gravity sewer lines, at pipe 
intersections, and at any change in pipe direction. Manholes allow for maintenance, inspection, and 
cleaning of the gravity collection system. Manholes are generally required at the end of each line, at all 
changes in grade, size, or alignment, at all intersections, and at distances not to exceed 400 ft for sewers 
15” or less (Recommended Standards for Wastewater Facilities, 2004).  
 
Minimum pipe diameters are required in gravity sewers to minimize blockages and allow for adequate 
space for cleaning equipment and cameras. Although the District does not currently have standard 
design criteria established for gravity sewer collection systems there are standards set forth in the 
industry and by local agencies that will be the basis for design. Based on agency and industry standards 
(and previous studies), a 6-inch minimum gravity sewer main line will be utilized. Gravity sewer pipe 
materials are assumed to be either PVC SDR3-35 or HDPE PE3408.  
 
Manning’s equation for open channel flow will be utilized with a minimum allowable pipe slope and 
coefficient “n” equal to 0.013, where “n” is the roughness coefficient of the pipe material.  
 

Table 1 – Gravity Sewer Main Slopes and Design Depths 

Pipe Size 
(inches) 

Minimum Slope1  
(%) 

Maximum Liquid Depth to 
Diameter Ratio (d/D) 

Maximum Percent 
Full (%) 

8 0.4 0.5 50 
10 0.28 0.5 50 
12 0.22 0.5 50 
15 0.16 0.75 75 

1 Table 5.1 2013 AECOM Report 
 
Estimated minimum cover over gravity sewer pipes should be maintained at 5 feet with an additional 1-
foot vertical separation from existing or future utilities.  

Lateral Connection Requirements 

Each individual property will be required to connect to the gravity sewer collection system (where 
appropriate) with private laterals. Laterals are typically owned and maintained by the individual property 
owners. Each property owner is expected to be responsible for the construction of the lateral connection. 
Laterals are typically a minimum of 4-inch diameter at a minimum of 2 percent slope per the California 
Plumbing Code.  
 

 
Figure 4 - Typical gravity sewer service lateral (Water Supply and Wastewater Removal, 2011). 

Agenda Packet 
Page 50 of 124



    Regen                              Los Olivos Reclamation Program Project | Basis of Design Hybrid Collection System     

 
    

Constructed costs for gravity sewers service laterals vary based upon main line depth, geological 
conditions, groundwater elevation, pipe material, and service lateral length. 
 
Lateral size serving commercial multiple family dwellings must maintain pipe slope uniform from the 
sewer main to the property line. Minimum depths for laterals shall be maintained at 4 feet. Wye 
branches are used for lateral connections to mainline connections. Cleanouts shall be required with all 
lateral connections. 

Right-of-way Requirements 

ROW equipment for gravity sewers consists of large diameter mainline laid at a constant slope, 
manholes, lift stations (if required), and air release valves (if required). Costs fluctuate based upon 
bedding material, location (rural versus urban), clearing costs, topography, geological conditions, depth, 
and surface restoration costs. Table 2 excludes manholes, lift-stations, service wye’s, and terminal 
cleanouts. It also assumes ideal soil conditions, no dewatering, and an 8-ft mean burial depth.  
 

 
Figure 5 - Profile of gravity sewer (Water Supply and Wastewater Removal, 2011). 

Table 2 - Installed Unit Costs: Gravity Sewer Pipe USD/Linear Ft (PVC).2 

Item Cost (2022 Stantec) 
6" dia Mainline (USD/linear ft) $180 
8" dia Mainline (USD/linear ft) $240 

2  Fair, Geyer, and Okun, Water Supply and Wastewater Removal, 3rd ed. (Wiley, 2011), Table 16.3. 

Sewage Lift Station 

When gravity sewers are installed in trenches deeper than 10 ft, the cost of sewer line installation 
increases significantly because of the more complex and costly excavation equipment and trench shoring 
techniques required. Lift stations are used to reduce mainline installation depth and, in some cases, 

Agenda Packet 
Page 51 of 124



    Regen                              Los Olivos Reclamation Program Project | Basis of Design Hybrid Collection System     

 
    

reduce the capital cost of sewer system construction. Lift station construction has a significant economy 
of scale and is generally expensive and difficult to apply to small communities. For example, if the 
capacity of a lift station is increased by 100%, the construction cost would increase only by 50 to 55%.  
 
A sewage lift station will be required to convey wastewater from the District gravity sewer collection 
system to a wastewater treatment plant regardless of the plant location. For estimating purposes, it is 
assumed the lift station will include a round manhole wet well, duplex submersible pumps, and 
telemetry controls. The lift station should include odor control systems.  
 
The force main from the pump station to the WWTP shall be a dual force main to provide redundancy 
and reliability. It shall be two 6-inch diameter force mains, to be confirmed during design (Stantec 
2022). 

Effluent Sewer Collection 

Effluent sewers utilize small settling tanks with pumping filters and effluent filtration units, small 
diameter transport lines (typically 2”-4”) buried with the contours of the land just below frost depth, and 
small simple cleaning and air release ports throughout the pressurized line network. Since solids in an 
effluent sewer system are collected and digested in the on-lot tank, only liquid effluent is conveyed to 
the collection system. Line cleanings are eliminated as a result, so effluent sewer owners and users 
should be exempt from the charges typically associated with cleaning activities. In addition, effluent 
sewer collection systems are watertight, reducing infiltration costs in both conveyance and at the 
treatment facility. 

Design Criteria  

Transporting wastewater from the primary tanks to the centralized treatment facility will be 
accomplished with a 2”-4” force main lines. Assumptions include Hazen-Williams C-Factor of 150 and 
Battelle Institute Flows of DU3 (250 gpd, 3.5 people/dwelling unit). 
The force mains in the conveyance system are typically only a few feet deep; therefore, there is potential 
of breakage due to future excavation events. Location wire and route markers will be used and strict 
enforcement controlling excavations in proximity of pipe should be exercised. Still, damage can occur 
and the used of isolation valves can be critical. Odor issues are a potential if primary tanks are not 
properly installed. All equipment should be installed to ensure proper seal of lids.  
Because effluent sewers provide primary treatment on-lot and convey primary-treated and clarified 
effluent through a watertight, pressurized collection system that’s largely immune to infiltration and 
inflow, they allow bioreactor volume reductions compared to other collection systems (gravity or 
grinder).  

On Lot Processing Tank 

A primary septic, or interceptor, tank will collect and retain raw sewage from each dwelling. In the 
interceptor tank, heavy solids (known as sludge) settle to the bottom while the lighter material (known 
as scum) floats to the top of the liquid contents. The organic material at the bottom of the tank (sludge) 
undergoes facultative and anaerobic digestion converting the organic matter to gases.  Facultative 
microbes solubilize the complex organic material to volatile organic acids while strict anaerobes ferment 
the volatile organic acids to gases (methane, carbon dioxide, etc.). The rate at which both scum and 
sludge accumulates decreases as the biological process in the tank matures. It allows sufficient storage 

Agenda Packet 
Page 52 of 124



    Regen                              Los Olivos Reclamation Program Project | Basis of Design Hybrid Collection System     

 
    

capacity for sludge and scum, resulting in long intervals between septage pump-outs. With long solids 
retention times, the tanks provide natural digestion, greatly reducing the impact of solids on a treatment 
facility. An effluent filter prevents any solids larger than 1/8-inch from reaching the pump. Typically, 
40% to 60% of the BOD will be removed in the interceptor tank. It provides enough reserve space for 24 
to 48 hours of normal operation before an emergency condition must be corrected, which minimizes the 
need for immediate maintenance. It provides an operating zone sufficient for modulating peak inflows 
without causing nuisance alarms or excessive hydraulic gradients. 
 
The tanks in effluent sewers provide passive, long-term anaerobic digestion of primary sludge, flow 
equalization internal to the collection system, resistance to infiltration and inflow (I/I), and fine-screened 
effluent to the wastewater treatment facility. They facilitate the downsizing or complete elimination of 
influent fine-screen processes directly upstream of any wastewater secondary treatment process. The 
lower organic load of effluent sewers and their near elimination of I/I also permit smaller bioreactors (up 
to ~ 57% smaller), reduce bioreactor aeration requirements (lowering bioprocess aeration by ~ 57%), 
and reduce biosolids management demands (by up to 75%).  
For smaller clustered units such as the cottages and villas, and for commercial buildings such as retail 
shops and offices, one interceptor tank may serve more than one building.  Tanks will be furnished 
appropriately sized for the expected waste flows, typically at a minimum of 2.2 times design flow.  For 
larger users, such as the restaurant and clubhouse, two tanks in series may be used.  Grease traps will be 
required for all commercial kitchen facilities. 
 

 
Figure 6 - Typical STEP system components.      courtesy of Orenco Systems Inc. 

Lateral Connection Requirements  

Effluent sewers use watertight tanks and low-pressure sewer mains. The mains are also watertight and 
do not include manholes; therefore, they are largely resistant to I/I. Per capita average flows are typically 
50 gpcd. 

Agenda Packet 
Page 53 of 124



    Regen                              Los Olivos Reclamation Program Project | Basis of Design Hybrid Collection System     

 
    

Right-of-way Requirements 

Mainline and appurtenances for pressure sewers typically consist of small diameter mainlines (2” to 6” 
typical) that follow the contour of the land, service saddles, air release valves, clean-outs, pigging ports, 
and mainline isolation valves. Mainline material is generally polyvinyl chloride (PVC), polyethylene 
(PE or HDPE), with pipe buried at shallow depths and with fewer joints compared to gravity sewer due 
to their increased individual pipe lengths.  

Water Lateral Separation Requirements 

Individual lot water lateral separation will be required at a minimum of 5 horizontal feet. Primary tank 
separation from main water lines shall be maintained at a minimum of 25 horizontal feet.  
 

WASTEWATER TREATMENT FACILITY SITING  
 
Based on the Stantec Basis of Design Report the preliminary WWTP site will need a minimum of 1.6 
acres to accommodate the treatment process, influent/effluent storage, truck access, equipment, 
buildings/screening, and other onsite needs at buildout of the facility. In addition to the two top 
recommendations from the Stantec report there is an additional option to utilize land at the school for 
treatment and dispersal of effluents. This cooperative with the school district would have to be met 
before moving forward with additional analysis.  
 
Alternatively, distributed treatment facilities could be an alternative option for future evaluation. 
Distributed treatment and dispersal alternatives would be appropriate if high demands of water usage at 
specific locations could utilize the benefit of treated reuse for irrigation or other industrial water reuse 
applications. Variations in collection costs from this report would be minimal if distributed treatment 
facilities are deemed to be the appropriate solution for treating the districts wastewater.  
 

Agenda Packet 
Page 54 of 124



    Regen                              Los Olivos Reclamation Program Project | Basis of Design Hybrid Collection System     

 
    

WASTEWATER COLLECTION SYSTEM OPTIONAL LAYOUTS 

 

Figure 7 – Proposed Hybrid Sewer Collection System Alternative A 

Agenda Packet 
Page 55 of 124



    Regen                              Los Olivos Reclamation Program Project | Basis of Design Hybrid Collection System     

 
    

Figure 8 – Proposed Hybrid Sewer Collection System Alternative B 

Agenda Packet 
Page 56 of 124



    Regen                              Los Olivos Reclamation Program Project | Basis of Design Hybrid Collection System     

 
    

Figure 9 – Proposed Hybrid Sewer Collection System Alternative C 

Agenda Packet 
Page 57 of 124



    Regen                              Los Olivos Reclamation Program Project | Basis of Design Hybrid Collection System     

 
    

Figure 10 – Proposed Hybrid Sewer Collection System Alternative D 

Agenda Packet 
Page 58 of 124



    Regen                              Los Olivos Reclamation Program Project | Basis of Design Hybrid Collection System     

 
    

WASTEWATER FLOW AND COMPOSITION ANALYSIS 
Wastewater collection options such as Gravity, grinder, and effluent sewers each deliver unique 
hydraulics and wastewater characteristics to downstream wastewater treatment facilities that greatly 
affect the design, capital costs, performance, and operational costs of treatment facilities. 

Zone Populations 

Table 3 – Zone Populations 

Zone 
Parcels 

Equivalent 
Dwelling 

Unit 

Population  
Equivalent 

 
 (EDU) (2.5/EDU) 

#1 149 249 623 
#2 58 58 145 
#3 46 46 115 
#4 43 43 108 
#5 26 26 65 
#6 74 74 185 

Various Systems Loading Estimates 

Table 4 - Typical wastewater loading rates from effluent sewer, grinder sewer and gravity sewer 

 

Gravity Wastewater Hydraulic and Constituents Estimates 

Table 5 – Gravity Collection Hydraulic Estimates 

Zone 
Avg Day  Max Month Max Day  Peak 

Hour Peak Hour 
Factor (gpd) (gpd) (gpd) (gpm) 

#1 46,781 53,798 65,493 130 4 
#2 11,600 13,340 16,240 32 4 

Agenda Packet 
Page 59 of 124



    Regen                              Los Olivos Reclamation Program Project | Basis of Design Hybrid Collection System     

 
    

 
Table 6 – Gravity Collection Wastewater Constituent Estimates 

Contaminant Typical Composition Design Values 
Total Suspended Solids (TSS) 300 to 400 mg/L 350 mg/L 

BODs at 20°C 200 to 350 mg/L 275 mg/L 
Nitrogen (total as N) 60 to 120 mg/L 75 mg/L 

Phosphorous (total as P) 8 to 18 mg/L 12 mg/L 

 

Effluent Sewer Wastewater Hydraulic and Constituent Estimates 

Table 7 – Effluent Sewer Hydraulic Estimates 

Zone 
Avg Day  Max Month Max Day  Peak 

Hour Peak Hour 
Factor (gpd) (gpd) (gpd) (gpm) 

#1 46,781 53,798 65,493   
#2 11,600 13,340 16,240   
#3 9,200 10,580 12,880   
#4 8,600 9,890 12,040   
#5 5,200 5,980 7,280   
#6 14,800 17,020 20,720   

 
Table 8 – Effluent Sewer Collection Wastewater Constituent Estimates 

Contaminant Typical Composition Design Values 
Total Suspended Solids (TSS) 40 to 50 mg/L 40 mg/L 

BODs at 20°C 110 to 220 mg/L 150 mg/L 
Nitrogen (total as N) 40 to 70 mg/L 65 mg/L 

Phosphorous (total as P) 8 to 12 mg/L 8 mg/L 
 

Wastewater Treatment Facility Hydraulic Load Estimates 

The design flows for the collection system within the identified zones will be based on population 
estimates and commercial establishment water records. Flow estimates are based on 180 gpd per 
equivalent dwelling unit (EDU).  
 

 
 
 

Table 9 – Collection Hydraulic Load Estimates 

Agenda Packet 
Page 60 of 124



    Regen                              Los Olivos Reclamation Program Project | Basis of Design Hybrid Collection System     

 
    

Option 
Avg Day  Max Month Max Day  

(gpd) (gpd) (gpd) 
A 96,181 110,608 134,653 
B 96,181 110,608 134,653 
C 81,381 93,588 113,933 
D 81,381 93,588 113,933 

 
Table 10 – Alternative Option Constituent Estimates 

Option 
Avg BOD  Avg TSS Avg TKN  

(mg/L) (mg/L) (mg/L) 
A 183 271 71 
B 150 40 65 
C 209 293 72 
D 150 40 65 

 
The type of wastewater collection system also influences primary and biosolid accumulation and 
management requirements at treatment facilities. Effluent sewers, when paired with MBRs, reduce the 
overall volume of primary solids and waste-activated sludge generated by up to 75%. With the trend for 
more stringent regulations governing the disposal of solids, design options that reduce the overall 
amount of solids warrant close attention. The reduction of solids management requirements at the 
treatment facility also correlates to additional overall project savings, estimated to be roughly 2.5% of 
the centralized treatment facility capital cost (potentially around $500,000). 
 
Additionally, there may be hydraulic and organic loading benefits in sizing and capital cost for treatment 
capacity. Solids within the effluent sewer collection system will be removed on an estimated frequency 
of 5-10 years and will need to be handled by an appropriate solids handling facility.  
  

Agenda Packet 
Page 61 of 124



    Regen                              Los Olivos Reclamation Program Project | Basis of Design Hybrid Collection System     

 
    

SUMMARY 
Based on the analysis above and attached estimated construction cost for each option, the lowest capital 
options include the differed costs with the use of advanced onsite alternatives in zone 6. The reduced 
impact from the organic load is utilizing and Effluent Sewer 82%, and the reduced impact from the 
suspended solids load is 85%. Effluent sewers also allow for a reduction in biosolids handling costs and 
eliminate sewer line cleaning, however they do require annual onsite visits for maintenance and 
infrequent solids pumping and hauling.  

Preliminary Cost Summary 

Small communities face enormous challenges when constructing and maintaining wastewater 
infrastructure. Conventional collection system technologies — when applied to small, rural communities 
— typically result in costs that exceed affordability thresholds and ultimately require grant subsidies to 
attain reasonable user rates.  
 

Table 11 – Estimated Options Costs 

Option 
Overhead and 
Construction 

Gravity Sewer 
Construction 

Effluent Sewer 
Construction  

Collection 
Contingency 

Costs 

Advanced 
Onsite 

Construction 

Engineering 
Costs 

Costs Provided 
by District 

($US) ($US) ($US)  ($US) ($US) ($US) 

A $2,830,000 $6,777,000 $3,969,000 $4,072,800 $0 $5,294,640 $2,760,000 

B $2,830,000 $0 $8,756,800 $3,422,040 $0 $4,488,652 $2,360,000 

C $2,830,000 $6,777,000 $2,553,000 $3,648,000 $6,734,000 $4,742,400 $2,760,000 

D $2,830,000 $0 $7,160,800 $2,997,240 $6,734,000 $3,896,412 $2,360,000 

 
Table 12 – Estimated Total Cost 

Option 

Collection 
System 

Subtotal 

Advanced 
Onsite 

Subtotal 
($US) ($US) 

A $25,703,440 $0 

B $21,637,492 $0 

C $23,310,400 $6,734,000 

D $19,244,452 $6,734,000 

 
 
Alternative collection systems were developed and designed to avoid the shortcomings associated with 
applying gravity sewers to small communities. Effluent sewer systems are largely immune to extraneous 
flows, resulting in a major cost savings, both capital and electrical, at the WWTP. Effluent sewer 
systems, by design, also enable simpler operations, less expensive operational equipment, and less 
reactive maintenance with respect to immediate response time relative to individual onsite problems 
versus gravity or lift station problems.  
 

Agenda Packet 
Page 62 of 124



Item Description Unit Quantity Unit Price Total Cost Responsible Lead Notes

1
Mobilization, Demobilization, Road Permits, 
Bonds, & Insurance LS 1 2,000,000$          2,000,000$            Unknown Stantec Report

2 Construction Survey LS 1 250,000$             250,000$               Unknown Stantec Report
3 Pothole Existing Utilities LS 1 250,000$             250,000$               Unknown Stantec Report
4 Traffic Control LS 1 330,000$             330,000$               Unknown Should be unnecessasary for Effluent zones with boring

2,830,000$            

Zone 1
5 6-inch PVC Sewer Main (<15 ft cover) LF 8000 180$                    1,440,000$            Unknown Stantec Report
6 8-inch PVC Sewer Main (<15 ft cover) LF 4000 240$                    960,000$               Unknown Stantec Report
7 48-inch Standard Manhole EA 30 17,500$               525,000$               Unknown Stantec Report
8 Service Connection EA 149 12,000$               1,788,000$            Unknown 4 in service connection (<14 ft) @ 50', landscape repair

4,713,000$            

Zone 2
9 6-inch PVC Sewer Main (<15 ft cover) LF 900 180$                    162,000$               Unknown Stantec Report

10 8-inch PVC Sewer Main (<15 ft cover) LF 400 240$                    96,000$                 Unknown Stantec Report
11 48-inch Standard Manhole EA 8 17,500$               140,000$               Unknown Stantec Report
12 48-inch Drop Manhole EA 2 20,000$               40,000$                 Unknown Stantec Report
13 Service Connection EA 58 12,000$               696,000$               Unknown 4 in service connection (<14 ft) @ 50', landscape repair

14
Lift Station (duplex pumps, 350 gpm each, 25 HP 
each, 25 ft deep, 8 ft diameter, site gate, fence, 
electrical, SCE meter, backup power)

LS 1 600,000$             600,000$               Unknown Stantec Report

15 4-inch PVC Sewer Forcemain (5 ft cover, 
separate trench)

LF 3,000 110$                    330,000$               Unknown Stantec Report

2,064,000$            

6,777,000$            

Zone 3
16 2-inch PVC Sewer Main (<4 ft cover) LF 2400 51$                      122,400$               Unknown Direct boring estimate (Ventura Drilling)
17 3-inch PVC Sewer Main (<4 ft cover) LF 2000 54$                      108,000$               Unknown Direct boring estimate (Ventura Drilling)
18 4-inch VC Sewer Main (<4 ft cover) LF 0 63$                      -$                       Unknown Direct boring estimate (Ventura Drilling)
19 Primary Treatment Tanks EA 46 15,000$               690,000$               Unknown Primary tank, service connection, repair (Biosolutions)

920,400$               

Zone 4
20 2-inch PVC Sewer Main (<4 ft cover) LF 2800 51$                      142,800$               Unknown Direct boring estimate (Ventura Drilling)
21 3-inch PVC Sewer Main (<4 ft cover) LF 1250 54$                      67,500$                 Unknown Direct boring estimate (Ventura Drilling)
22 4-inch VC Sewer Main (<4 ft cover) LF 1500 63$                      94,500$                 Unknown Direct boring estimate (Ventura Drilling)
23 Primary Treatment Tanks EA 43 15,000$               645,000$               Unknown Primary tank, service connection, repair (Biosolutions)

949,800$               

Zone 5
24 2-inch PVC Sewer Main (<4 ft cover) LF 1400 51$                      71,400$                 Unknown Direct boring estimate (Ventura Drilling)
25 3-inch PVC Sewer Main (<4 ft cover) LF 600 54$                      32,400$                 Unknown Direct boring estimate (Ventura Drilling)
26 4-inch VC Sewer Main (<4 ft cover) LF 3000 63$                      189,000$               Unknown Direct boring estimate (Ventura Drilling)
27 Primary Treatment Tanks Each 26 15,000$               390,000$               Unknown Primary tank, service connection, repair (Biosolutions)

682,800$               

Zone 6
28 2-inch PVC Sewer Main (<4 ft cover) LF 6000 51$                      306,000$               Unknown Direct boring estimate (Ventura Drilling)
29 3-inch PVC Sewer Main (<4 ft cover) LF 0 54$                      -$                       Unknown Direct boring estimate (Ventura Drilling)
30 4-inch VC Sewer Main (<4 ft cover) LF 0 63$                      -$                       Unknown Direct boring estimate (Ventura Drilling)
31 Primary Treatment Tanks Each 74 15,000$               1,110,000$            Unknown Primary tank, service connection, repair (Biosolutions)

1,416,000$            

3,969,000$            

13,576,000$          
32 Construction Contingency (30%) 4,072,800$            

17,648,800$          

33 Final Design Engineering & Support LS 1 2,647,320$          2,647,320$            Unknown Assume 15% of construction
34 Construction Management and Inspections LS 1 2,647,320$          2,647,320$            Unknown Assume 15% of construction

5,294,640$            

22,943,440$          

35 Legal and Administration LS 1 250,000$             250,000$               District Assumed
36 Property Acquisition for Lift Station AC 0.4 1,000,000$          400,000$               District Assume $1M/Acre, 0.4 acres assumed
37 Property Acquisition for Easements AC 2.11 1,000,000$          2,110,000$            District Assume $1M/Acre, placeholder to match Stantec Estimate

2,760,000$            

25,703,440$      

Zone 2 Construction Subtotal:

Zone 1 Construction Subtotal:

Overhead and Construction Support Services Subtotal:

Overhead and Construction Support

Gravity Collection System Construction 

Zone 6 Construction Subtotal:

Zone 4  Construction Subtotal:

Zone 5 Construction Subtotal:

Zone 3 Construction Subtotal:

Gravity Collection Subtotal:

Effluent Sewer Collection System Construction 

District Costs Subtotal:

Option #1 Collection System Total Costs:

Los Olivos Wastewater Collection Option A - Gravity Collection Zone 1 & 2, Effluent Sewer Zones 3-6

Engineering & Construction Management

Engineering & Construction Management Subtotal:

Option #1 Collection System Total:

Costs to be Provided by District

Effluent Collection Subtotal:

Collection Construction Subtotal:

Collection Construction & Contingency Total

Agenda Packet 
Page 63 of 124



Item Description Unit Quantity Unit Price Total Cost Responsible Lead Notes

1
Mobilization, Demobilization, Road Permits, 
Bonds, & Insurance LS 1 2,000,000$          2,000,000$            Unknown Stantec Report

2 Construction Survey LS 1 250,000$             250,000$               Unknown Stantec Report
3 Pothole Existing Utilities LS 1 250,000$             250,000$               Unknown Stantec Report
4 Traffic Control LS 1 330,000$             330,000$               Unknown Should be unnecessasary for Effluent zones with boring

2,830,000$            

Zone 1
5 2-inch PVC Sewer Main (<4 ft cover) LF 0 51$                      -$                       Unknown Direct boring estimate
6 3-inch PVC Sewer Main (<4 ft cover) LF 8000 54$                      432,000$               Unknown Direct boring estimate
7 4-inch PVC Sewer Main (<4 ft cover) LF 4000 63$                      252,000$               Unknown Direct boring estimate
8 Primary Treatment Tanks Each 149 20,000$               2,980,000$            Unknown Primary tank, service connection, landscape repair

3,664,000$            

Zone 2
9 2-inch PVC Sewer Main (<4 ft cover) LF 0 51$                      -$                       Unknown Direct boring estimate

10 3-inch PVC Sewer Main (<4 ft cover) LF 900 54$                      48,600$                 Unknown Direct boring estimate
11 4-inch PVC Sewer Main (<4 ft cover) LF 400 63$                      25,200$                 Unknown Direct boring estimate
12 Primary Treatment Tanks Each 58 15,000$               870,000$               Unknown Primary tank, service connection, landscape repair

943,800$               

Zone 3
13 2-inch PVC Sewer Main (<4 ft cover) LF 2400 51$                      122,400$               Unknown Direct boring estimate
14 3-inch PVC Sewer Main (<4 ft cover) LF 2000 54$                      108,000$               Unknown Direct boring estimate
15 4-inch PVC Sewer Main (<4 ft cover) LF 0 63$                      -$                       Unknown Direct boring estimate
16 Primary Treatment Tanks Each 46 15,000$               690,000$               Unknown Primary tank, service connection, landscape repair

920,400$               

Zone 4
17 2-inch PVC Sewer Main (<4 ft cover) LF 2800 51$                      142,800$               Unknown Direct boring estimate (Ventura Drilling)
18 3-inch PVC Sewer Main (<4 ft cover) LF 1250 54$                      67,500$                 Unknown Direct boring estimate (Ventura Drilling)
19 4-inch PVC Sewer Main (<4 ft cover) LF 1500 63$                      94,500$                 Unknown Direct boring estimate (Ventura Drilling)
20 Primary Treatment Tanks Each 43 15,000$               645,000$               Unknown Primary tank, service connection, repair (Biosolutions)

949,800$               

Zone 5
21 2-inch PVC Sewer Main (<4 ft cover) LF 1400 51$                      71,400$                 Unknown Direct boring estimate (Ventura Drilling)
22 3-inch PVC Sewer Main (<4 ft cover) LF 600 54$                      32,400$                 Unknown Direct boring estimate (Ventura Drilling)
23 4-inch PVC Sewer Main (<4 ft cover) LF 3000 63$                      189,000$               Unknown Direct boring estimate (Ventura Drilling)
24 Primary Treatment Tanks Each 26 15,000$               390,000$               Unknown Primary tank, service connection, repair (Biosolutions)

682,800$               

Zone 6
25 2-inch PVC Sewer Main (<4 ft cover) LF 6000 51$                      306,000$               Unknown Direct boring estimate (Ventura Drilling)
26 3-inch PVC Sewer Main (<4 ft cover) LF 0 54$                      -$                       Unknown Direct boring estimate (Ventura Drilling)
27 4-inch PVC Sewer Main (<4 ft cover) LF 0 63$                      -$                       Unknown Direct boring estimate (Ventura Drilling)
28 Primary Treatment Tanks Each 74 15,000$               1,110,000$            Unknown Primary tank, service connection, repair (Biosolutions)

1,416,000$            

8,576,800$            

11,406,800$          
29 Construction Contingency (30%) 3,422,040$            

14,828,840$          

30 Final Design Engineering & Support LS 1 2,224,326$          2,224,326$            Unknown Assume 15% of construction
31 Construction Management and Inspections LS 1 2,224,326$          2,224,326$            Unknown Assume 15% of construction

4,448,652$            

19,277,492$          

32 Legal and Administration LS 1 250,000$             250,000$               District Assume 
33 Property Acquisition for Lift Station AC 0 -$                     -$                       District Assume $1M/Acre, Not needed with option #2
34 Property Acquisition for Easements AC 2.11 1,000,000$          2,110,000$            District Assume $1M/Acre, placeholder to match Stantec Estimate

2,360,000$            

21,637,492$      

Overhead and Construction Support Services Subtotal:

Overhead and Construction Support

Effluent Sewer Collection System Construction 

Zone 1 Construction Subtotal:

Zone 2 Construction Subtotal:

Zone 6 Construction Subtotal:

Zone 3 Construction Subtotal:

Zone 4  Construction Subtotal:

Zone 5 Construction Subtotal:

District Costs Subtotal:

Option #2 Collection System Total Costs:

Los Olivos Wastewater Collection Option B - Effluent Sewer Zones 1-6

Engineering & Construction Management

Engineering & Construction Management Subtotal:

Option #2 Collection System Total:

Costs to be Provided by District

Effluent Collection Subtotal:

Collection Construction Subtotal:

Collection Construction & Contingency Total

Agenda Packet 
Page 64 of 124



Item Description Unit Quantity Unit Price Total Cost Responsible Lead Notes

1
Mobilization, Demobilization, Road Permits, 
Bonds, & Insurance LS 1 2,000,000$          2,000,000$            Unknown Stantec Report

2 Construction Survey LS 1 250,000$             250,000$               Unknown Stantec Report
3 Pothole Existing Utilities LS 1 250,000$             250,000$               Unknown Stantec Report
4 Traffic Control LS 1 330,000$             330,000$               Unknown Should be unnecessasary for Effluent zones with boring

2,830,000$            

Zone 1
5 6-inch PVC Sewer Main (<15 ft cover) LF 8000 180$                    1,440,000$            Unknown Stantec Report
6 8-inch PVC Sewer Main (<15 ft cover) LF 4000 240$                    960,000$               Unknown Stantec Report
7 48-inch Standard Manhole EA 30 17,500$               525,000$               Unknown Stantec Report
8 Service Connection EA 149 12,000$               1,788,000$            Unknown 4 in service connection (<14 ft) @ 50', landscape repair

4,713,000$            

Zone 2
9 6-inch PVC Sewer Main (<15 ft cover) LF 900 180$                    162,000$               Unknown Stantec Report

10 8-inch PVC Sewer Main (<15 ft cover) LF 400 240$                    96,000$                 Unknown Stantec Report
11 48-inch Standard Manhole EA 8 17,500$               140,000$               Unknown Stantec Report
12 48-inch Drop Manhole EA 2 20,000$               40,000$                 Unknown Stantec Report
13 Service Connection EA 58 12,000$               696,000$               Unknown 4 in service connection (<14 ft) @ 50', landscape repair

14
Lift Station (duplex pumps, 350 gpm each, 25 HP 
each, 25 ft deep, 8 ft diameter, site gate, fence, 
electrical, SCE meter, backup power)

LS 1 600,000$             600,000$               Unknown Stantec Report

15 4-inch PVC Sewer Forcemain (5 ft cover, 
separate trench)

LF 3,000 110$                    330,000$               Unknown Stantec Report

2,064,000$            

6,777,000$            

Zone 3
16 2-inch PVC Sewer Main (<4 ft cover) LF 2400 51$                      122,400$               Unknown Direct boring estimate (Ventura Drilling)
17 3-inch PVC Sewer Main (<4 ft cover) LF 2000 54$                      108,000$               Unknown Direct boring estimate (Ventura Drilling)
18 4-inch VC Sewer Main (<4 ft cover) LF 0 63$                      -$                       Unknown Direct boring estimate (Ventura Drilling)
19 Primary Treatment Tanks Each 46 15,000$               690,000$               Unknown Primary tank, service connection, repair (Biosolutions)

920,400$               

Zone 4
20 2-inch PVC Sewer Main (<4 ft cover) LF 2800 51$                      142,800$               Unknown Direct boring estimate (Ventura Drilling)
21 3-inch PVC Sewer Main (<4 ft cover) LF 1250 54$                      67,500$                 Unknown Direct boring estimate (Ventura Drilling)
22 4-inch VC Sewer Main (<4 ft cover) LF 1500 63$                      94,500$                 Unknown Direct boring estimate (Ventura Drilling)
23 Primary Treatment Tanks Each 43 15,000$               645,000$               Unknown Primary tank, service connection, repair (Biosolutions)

949,800$               

Zone 5
24 2-inch PVC Sewer Main (<4 ft cover) LF 1400 51$                      71,400$                 Unknown Direct boring estimate (Ventura Drilling)
25 3-inch PVC Sewer Main (<4 ft cover) LF 600 54$                      32,400$                 Unknown Direct boring estimate (Ventura Drilling)
26 4-inch VC Sewer Main (<4 ft cover) LF 3000 63$                      189,000$               Unknown Direct boring estimate (Ventura Drilling)
27 Primary Treatment Tanks Each 26 15,000$               390,000$               Unknown Primary tank, service connection, repair (Biosolutions)

682,800$               

2,553,000$            

12,160,000$          
28 Construction Contingency (30%) 3,648,000$            

15,808,000$          

Zone 6
29 Individual Advanced Onsite Systems LF 74 70,000$               5,180,000$            Unknown Assumed TN requirement of 20 mg/L

5,180,000$            

5,180,000$            

30 Construction Contingency (30%) 1,554,000$            
6,734,000$            

30 Final Design Engineering & Support LS 1 2,371,200$          2,371,200$            Unknown Assume 15% of construction (Advanced Onsite Not Included)
31 Construction Management and Inspections LS 1 2,371,200$          2,371,200$            Unknown Assume 15% of construction (Advanced Onsite Not Included)

4,742,400$            

27,284,400$          

32 Legal and Administration LS 1 250,000$             250,000$               District Assumed
33 Property Acquisition for Lift Station AC 0.4 1,000,000$          400,000$               District Assume $1M/Acre, 0.4 acres assumed
34 Property Acquisition for Easements AC 2.11 1,000,000$          2,110,000$            District Assume $1M/Acre, placeholder to match Stantec Estimate

2,760,000$            

23,310,400$      

30,044,400$      

Collection Construction & Contingency Total

District Costs Subtotal:

Option #3 Collection & Advanced Onsite Systems Total Costs:

Engineering & Construction Management Subtotal:

Option #3 Collection & Advanced Onsite System Total:

Costs to be Provided by District

Option #3 Gravity & Effluent Collection Systems Total Costs:

Los Olivos Wastewater Collection Option C - Gravity Collection Zone 1 & 2, Effluent Sewer Zones 3-5, Alt Onsite Zone 6

Zone 6 Construction Subtotal:

Advanced Onsite Systems Subtotal:

Effluent Collection Subtotal:

Engineering & Construction Management

Advanced Onsite Collection Construction Total

Zone 3 Construction Subtotal:

Collection Construction Subtotal:

Zone 4  Construction Subtotal:

Zone 2 Construction Subtotal:

Zone 1 Construction Subtotal:

Overhead and Construction Support Services Subtotal:

Overhead and Construction Support

Gravity Collection System Construction 

Gravity Collection Subtotal:

Effluent Sewer Collection System Construction 

Zone 5 Construction Subtotal:

Agenda Packet 
Page 65 of 124



Item Description Unit Quantity Unit Price Total Cost Responsible Lead Notes

1
Mobilization, Demobilization, Road Permits, 
Bonds, & Insurance LS 1 2,000,000$          2,000,000$            Unknown Stantec Report

2 Construction Survey LS 1 250,000$             250,000$               Unknown Stantec Report
3 Pothole Existing Utilities LS 1 250,000$             250,000$               Unknown Stantec Report
4 Traffic Control LS 1 330,000$             330,000$               Unknown Should be unnecessasary for Effluent zones with boring

2,830,000$            

Zone 1
5 2-inch PVC Sewer Main (<4 ft cover) LF 0 51$                      -$                       Unknown Direct boring estimate
6 3-inch PVC Sewer Main (<4 ft cover) LF 8000 54$                      432,000$               Unknown Direct boring estimate
7 4-inch VC Sewer Main (<4 ft cover) LF 4000 63$                      252,000$               Unknown Direct boring estimate
8 Primary Treatment Tanks Each 149 20,000$               2,980,000$            Unknown Primary tank, service connection, landscape repair

3,664,000$            

Zone 2
9 2-inch PVC Sewer Main (<4 ft cover) LF 0 51$                      -$                       Unknown Direct boring estimate

10 3-inch PVC Sewer Main (<4 ft cover) LF 900 54$                      48,600$                 Unknown Direct boring estimate
11 4-inch VC Sewer Main (<4 ft cover) LF 400 63$                      25,200$                 Unknown Direct boring estimate
12 Primary Treatment Tanks Each 58 15,000$               870,000$               Unknown Primary tank, service connection, landscape repair

943,800$               

Zone 3
13 2-inch PVC Sewer Main (<4 ft cover) LF 2400 51$                      122,400$               Unknown Direct boring estimate
14 3-inch PVC Sewer Main (<4 ft cover) LF 2000 54$                      108,000$               Unknown Direct boring estimate
15 4-inch VC Sewer Main (<4 ft cover) LF 0 63$                      -$                       Unknown Direct boring estimate
16 Primary Treatment Tanks Each 46 15,000$               690,000$               Unknown Primary tank, service connection, landscape repair

920,400$               

Zone 4
17 2-inch PVC Sewer Main (<4 ft cover) LF 2800 51$                      142,800$               Unknown Direct boring estimate
18 3-inch PVC Sewer Main (<4 ft cover) LF 1250 54$                      67,500$                 Unknown Direct boring estimate
19 4-inch VC Sewer Main (<4 ft cover) LF 1500 63$                      94,500$                 Unknown Direct boring estimate
20 Primary Treatment Tanks Each 43 15,000$               645,000$               Unknown Primary tank, service connection, landscape repair

949,800$               

Zone 5
21 2-inch PVC Sewer Main (<4 ft cover) LF 1400 51$                      71,400$                 Unknown Direct boring estimate
22 3-inch PVC Sewer Main (<4 ft cover) LF 600 54$                      32,400$                 Unknown Direct boring estimate
23 4-inch VC Sewer Main (<4 ft cover) LF 3000 63$                      189,000$               Unknown Direct boring estimate
24 Primary Treatment Tanks Each 26 15,000$               390,000$               Unknown Primary tank, service connection, landscape repair

682,800$               

7,160,800$            

9,990,800$            
25 Construction Contingency (30%) 2,997,240$            

12,988,040$          

Zone 6
26 Individual Advanced Onsite Systems LF 74 70,000$               5,180,000$            Unknown Assumed TN requirement of 20 mg/L

5,180,000$            

5,180,000$            

27 Construction Contingency (30%) 1,554,000$            
6,734,000$            

28 Final Design Engineering & Support LS 1 1,948,206$          1,948,206$            Unknown Assume 15% of construction (Advanced Onsite Not Included)
29 Construction Management and Inspections LS 1 1,948,206$          1,948,206$            Unknown Assume 15% of construction (Advanced Onsite Not Included)

3,896,412$            

23,618,452$          

30 Legal and Administration LS 1 250,000$             250,000$               District Assumed
31 Property Acquisition for Lift Station AC 0.4 -$                     -$                       District Assume $1M/Acre, Not needed option #4
32 Property Acquisition for Easements AC 2.11 1,000,000$          2,110,000$            District Assume $1M/Acre, placeholder to match Stantec Estimate

2,360,000$            

19,244,452$      

25,978,452$      

Zone 1 Construction Subtotal:

Zone 2 Construction Subtotal:

Zone 3 Construction Subtotal:

Zone 4  Construction Subtotal:

Effluent Collection Subtotal:

Zone 5 Construction Subtotal:

Option #4 Effluent Sewer Collection & Advanced Onsite Total Costs:

District Costs Subtotal:

Option #4 Effluent Sewer Collection Total Costs:

Option #4 Collection & Advanced Onsite System Total:

Costs to be Provided by District

Los Olivos Wastewater Collection Option D - Effluent Sewer Zones 1-5, Alt Onsite Zone 6

Zone 6 Construction Subtotal:

Advanced Onsite Systems Subtotal:

Engineering & Construction Management

Engineering & Construction Management Subtotal:

Advanced Onsite Construction Total

Collection Construction & Contingency Total

Collection Construction Subtotal:

Overhead and Construction Support Services Subtotal:

Overhead and Construction Support

Effluent Sewer Collection System Construction 

Agenda Packet 
Page 66 of 124



 

 

 

 

 

 

G
RO

U
N

DW
ATER M

O
N

ITO
RIN

G
 W

ELLS
 

ITEM 8 – GROUNDWATER MONITORING WELLS 

Agenda Packet 
Page 67 of 124



MW #1 MW #2

Planned
MW #4
Near 2440 Olivet

Planned
MW #5
Near 2455 Grand

Planned
MW #3
Near 2280 Olivet

FINAL LOCATIONS – 1/22/24

Agenda Packet 
Page 68 of 124



PROJECT NUMBER: BORING NUMBER

SHEET    __ OF __

SOIL BORING LOG

PROJECT :      LOCATION : 
ELEVATION : DRILLING CONTRACTOR : 
DRILLING METHOD AND EQUIPMENT USED : 
WATER LEVELS : START : END :   LOGGER : Nehuen Fortunelli 
DEPTH BELOW SURFACE (FT) CORE DESCRIPTION COMMENTS

INTERVAL (FT)

RECOVERY (IN) LITHOLOGIC   SOIL NAME, USCS GROUP SYMBOL, COLOR,   DEPTH OF CASING, DRILLING RATE,

#/TYPE LOG   MOISTURE CONTENT, RELATIVE DENSITY,   DRILLING FLUID LOSS,

  OR CONSISTENCY, SOIL STRUCTURE,   TESTS, AND INSTRUMENTATION.

  MINERALOGY.

_ _ _
_ _ _
_ _ _
_ _ _

GSI Lithologic Log Template.xlsx

876.876 1            2

Los Olivos MW-3 2280 Olivet Street, Los Olivos
BC2

Hollow Stem Auger

BLOWS

11/13/20
CL

Silty Clay ; light brown ;  fine-grained

5/10/14
CL

Some small gravel; slightly moist; fine
grained

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

45

50

GW
10/14/19

Gravel w/ sand; yellowish brown; sub 
rounded gravel; fine to coarse 
grained; dry

6/11/14 CL

Gravelly clay; yellowish brown; with fine to 
coarse grained sand; slightly moist

5/7/13 CL
No gravel; some fine to medium grained
sand; organic matter (black filament 
similar to MW-5); moist

8/13/16 CL

Sandy clay; fine to medium grained;
moister

8/11/11 SW

Sand with some clay; dark grayish 
brown; fine grained; moist;

5/7/9 SW

Coarser grains; fine to medium grained;
moist

10/12/15? SW

Coarser grains; wet 

5/13/18 SW
fine to medium grained; soaked

MW-3

Agenda Packet 
Page 69 of 124



PROJECT NUMBER: BORING NUMBER

SOIL BORING LOG

PROJECT :      LOCATION : 
ELEVATION : DRILLING CONTRACTOR : 
DRILLING METHOD AND EQUIPMENT USED : 
WATER LEVELS : START : END :   LOGGER : Nehuen Fortunelli 
DEPTH BELOW SURFACE (FT) CORE DESCRIPTION COMMENTS

INTERVAL (FT)

RECOVERY (IN) LITHOLOGIC   SOIL NAME, USCS GROUP SYMBOL, COLOR,   DEPTH OF CASING, DRILLING RATE,

#/TYPE LOG   MOISTURE CONTENT, RELATIVE DENSITY,   DRILLING FLUID LOSS,

  OR CONSISTENCY, SOIL STRUCTURE,   TESTS, AND INSTRUMENTATION.

  MINERALOGY.

_ _ _
_ _ _
_ _ _
_ _ _

GSI Lithologic Log Template.xlsx

876.876 SHEET    2 O1            2F __

Los Olivos MW-3 2280 Olivet Street, Los Olivos
BC2

Hollow Stem Auger

BLOWS

16/22/25
SW

Gravelly sand; dark gray; fine to coarse
grained; some clay; wet

5/10/15
SW

Finer

55

60

65

70

75

80

85

90

GW
4/7/11

Sandy Gravel; wetter

3/9/11 GW

Coarser

9/7/24 GW
Gravel up to 2.5" in diameter; wet

8/13/16 SW

Gravelly sand; medium to coarse 
grained; soaked

15/17/20 SW

With some clay, yellowish brown; 
finer sand

CL

Clay; dark gray

0-50 blank
50-90 screen
Total Depth: 90 ft

0-47 grout
44-47 bentonite
47-90 #3 sand

18 bags of concrete
28 gal of water
Bentonite 5%

End of Boring

Agenda Packet 
Page 70 of 124



PROJECT NUMBER: BORING NUMBER

SOIL BORING LOG

PROJECT :      LOCATION : 
ELEVATION : DRILLING CONTRACTOR : 
DRILLING METHOD AND EQUIPMENT USED : 
WATER LEVELS : START : END :   LOGGER : 
DEPTH BELOW SURFACE (FT) CORE DESCRIPTION COMMENTS

INTERVAL (FT)

RECOVERY (IN) LITHOLOGIC   SOIL NAME, USCS GROUP SYMBOL, COLOR,   DEPTH OF CASING, DRILLING RATE,

#/TYPE LOG   MOISTURE CONTENT, RELATIVE DENSITY,   DRILLING FLUID LOSS,

  OR CONSISTENCY, SOIL STRUCTURE,   TESTS, AND INSTRUMENTATION.

  MINERALOGY.

_ _ _
_ _ _
_ _ _
_ _ _

GSI Lithologic Log Template.xlsx

876.876 SHEET    _1_ OF __2

Los Olivos MW-4 2440 Olivet Street, Los Olivos
BC2

Hollow Stem Auger
Nehuen Fortunelli

BLOWS

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

45

50

17/22/26 SW

Gravelly sand; brown; fine sand; sub
angular gravel; trace clay   

11/13/17 SM

Silty sand w/ small gravel; fine sand; 
sub-angular gravel

20/50x4 GW

Gravel and sand; light brown; fine to
medium grained; some silt

14/21/26 GW-SM

Gravel and sand; yellowish brown; fine to
coarse grained; some silt; slightly moist

12/14/17
GW

Moister; reddish brown

8/16/19 GW

Sandy gravel; moderate brown; fine to 
coarse grained; damp.

5 ft of water in borehole

8/16/19?

Wet

8/12/15 GC

Clayey gravel; yellowish brown; wetter

50x6 GC

Smaller gravel; soaked minimal recovery

No recovery

MW-4

Agenda Packet 
Page 71 of 124



PROJECT NUMBER: BORING NUMBER

SOIL BORING LOG

PROJECT :      LOCATION : 
ELEVATION : DRILLING CONTRACTOR : 
DRILLING METHOD AND EQUIPMENT USED : 
WATER LEVELS : START : END :   LOGGER : 
DEPTH BELOW SURFACE (FT) CORE DESCRIPTION COMMENTS

INTERVAL (FT)

RECOVERY (IN) LITHOLOGIC   SOIL NAME, USCS GROUP SYMBOL, COLOR,   DEPTH OF CASING, DRILLING RATE,

#/TYPE LOG   MOISTURE CONTENT, RELATIVE DENSITY,   DRILLING FLUID LOSS,

  OR CONSISTENCY, SOIL STRUCTURE,   TESTS, AND INSTRUMENTATION.

  MINERALOGY.

_ _ _
_ _ _
_ _ _
_ _ _

GSI Lithologic Log Template.xlsx

876.876 SHEET    _2_ OF __2

Los Olivos MW-4 2440 Olivet Street, Los Olivos
BC2

Hollow Stem Auger
Nehuen Fortunelli

BLOWS

55

60

No recovery

CL

Clay with gravel; very hard; wet

0-25 blank
25-60 screen
Total Depth= 60 ft

0-20 grout
20-23 bentonite
23-60 #3 sand

9 bags of concrete
27 gal of water
5% bentonite

End of Boring

Agenda Packet 
Page 72 of 124



PROJECT NUMBER:
876.876 

BORING NUMBER

SHEET    _1_ OF _2_

SOIL BORING LOG

PROJECT : Los Olivos MW-5      LOCATION : Alamo Pintado and Grand Ave, Los Olivos 
ELEVATION : DRILLING CONTRACTOR : BC2 
DRILLING METHOD AND EQUIPMENT USED : Hollow Stem Auger 
WATER LEVELS : START : END :   LOGGER : Nehuen F. / Andy L. 
DEPTH BELOW SURFACE (FT) CORE DESCRIPTION COMMENTS

INTERVAL (FT)

RECOVERY (IN) LITHOLOGIC   SOIL NAME, USCS GROUP SYMBOL, COLOR,   DEPTH OF CASING, DRILLING RATE,

#/TYPE LOG   MOISTURE CONTENT, RELATIVE DENSITY,   DRILLING FLUID LOSS,

  OR CONSISTENCY, SOIL STRUCTURE,   TESTS, AND INSTRUMENTATION.

  MINERALOGY.

_ _ _
_ _ _
_ _ _
_ _ _

GSI Lithologic Log Template.xlsx

BLOWS

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

45

50

SM-SW

Silty sand with gravel; dark brown; fine to 
coarse grained

11/14/20

7/14/15 CL

Clayey silt; yellowish brown; trace fine
sand

8/9/11 ML

Silt with sand; grayish brown

5/9/12 ML

Sandy silt; gray; very fine grained to fine
grained; very moist

5/7/12 CL

Clay; dark gray; trace coarse sand;
trace organics (hairlike roots) Tagged borehole, it was

muddy

4/5/7 GC

Gravelly clay; well graded; brown; wet

5/8/11 GM

36 ft; sand and gravel; well graded;
brown; trace fines; saturated

2 ft of water in borehole

4/10/14 GM 

Some gravel bigger than 2 inches in
diameter

5/7/17 GM

Alternating beds of clay

7/14/19 CL

Silty clay; yellowish brown

MW-5

Agenda Packet 
Page 73 of 124



PROJECT NUMBER:
876.876 

BORING NUMBER

SHEET    _1_ OF _2_

SOIL BORING LOG

PROJECT : Los Olivos MW-5      LOCATION : Alamo Pintado and Grand Ave, Los Olivos 
ELEVATION : DRILLING CONTRACTOR : BC2 
DRILLING METHOD AND EQUIPMENT USED : Hollow Stem Auger 
WATER LEVELS : START : END :   LOGGER : Nehuen F. / Andy L. 
DEPTH BELOW SURFACE (FT) CORE DESCRIPTION COMMENTS

INTERVAL (FT)

RECOVERY (IN) LITHOLOGIC   SOIL NAME, USCS GROUP SYMBOL, COLOR,   DEPTH OF CASING, DRILLING RATE,

#/TYPE LOG   MOISTURE CONTENT, RELATIVE DENSITY,   DRILLING FLUID LOSS,

  OR CONSISTENCY, SOIL STRUCTURE,   TESTS, AND INSTRUMENTATION.

  MINERALOGY.

_ _ _
_ _ _
_ _ _
_ _ _

GSI Lithologic Log Template.xlsx

BLOWS

55

60

65

6/12/13 CL

Silty clay, yellowish brown; more silt

12/16/19 CL

Same as previous
No recovery

0-30 blank
30-65 screen
Total Depth = 65 ft

0-24 grout seal
24-27 bentonite
27-65 #3 sand

9 bags of concrete
27 gal of water
5% bentonite

End of Boring

Agenda Packet 
Page 74 of 124



 

 

 

 

 

 

AU
DIT CO

N
TRACT W

ITH M
O

SS, LEVY, AN
D HARTZHEIM

 
 

ITEM 9 – AUDIT CONTRACT WITH MOSS, LEVY, AND 
HARTZHEIM 

Agenda Packet 
Page 75 of 124



 
 

2400 Professional Parkway, Suite 205  Santa Maria, CA 93455   Tel 805.925.2579 Fax 805.925.2147   mlhcpas.com 
 

BEVERLY HILLS ∙ CULVER CITY ∙ SANTA MARIA 
 
 

February 2, 2024 

Los Olivos Community Services District 
PO Box 345 
Los Olivos, CA 93441 

We are pleased to confirm our understanding of the services we are to provide Los Olivos Community Services 
District for the period ended June 30, 2023. We will audit the financial statements of the business-type activities, 
the major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information, including the related notes to the financial 
statements, which collectively comprise the basic financial statements of Los Olivos Community Services District 
as of and for the period year ended June 30, 2023. Accounting standards generally accepted in the United States 
of America provide for certain required supplementary information (RSI), such as management’s discussion and 
analysis (MD&A), to supplement Los Olivos Community Services District’s basic financial statements. Such 
information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial 
statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. As part of our engagement, we will 
apply certain limited procedures to Los Olivos Community Services District’s RSI in accordance with auditing 
standards generally accepted in the United States of America. These limited procedures will consist of inquiries of 
management regarding the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency 
with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained 
during our audit of the basic financial statements. We will not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the 
information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or 
provide any assurance. The following RSI is required by U.S. generally accepted accounting principles and will be 
subjected to certain limited procedures, but will not be audited:  

1) Management’s Discussion and Analysis. 

2) Budgetary Comparison 

Audit Objectives 

The objective of our audit is the expression of opinions as to whether your financial statements are fairly 
presented, in all material respects, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles and to report 
on the fairness of the supplementary information referred to in the second paragraph when considered in relation 
to the financial statements as a whole. Our audit will be conducted in accordance with auditing standards 
generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards for financial audits contained in 
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, and will include tests of 
the accounting records of Los Olivos Community Services District and other procedures we consider necessary to 
enable us to express such opinions. We will issue a written report upon completion of our audit of Los Olivos 
Community Services District’s financial statements. Our report will be addressed to the Board of Directors of Los 
Olivos Community Services District. We cannot provide assurance that unmodified opinions will be expressed. 
Circumstances may arise in which it is necessary for us to modify our opinions or add emphasis-of-matter or 
other-matter paragraphs. If our opinions are other than unmodified, we will discuss the reasons with you in 
advance. If, for any reason, we are unable to complete the audit or are unable to form or have not formed 
opinions, we may decline to express opinions or issue reports, or may withdraw from this engagement.  

We will also provide a report (that does not include an opinion) on internal control related to the financial 
statements and compliance with the provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, 
noncompliance with which could have a material effect on the financial statements as required by Government 
Auditing Standards. The report on internal control and on compliance and other matters will include a paragraph 
that states (1) that the purpose of the report is solely to describe the scope of testing of internal control and 
compliance, and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s 
internal control on compliance, and (2) that the report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance. The paragraph will 

Agenda Packet 
Page 76 of 124



also state that the report is not suitable for any other purpose. If during our audit we become aware that Los 
Olivos Community Services District is subject to an audit requirement that is not encompassed in the terms of this 
engagement, we will communicate to management and those charged with governance that an audit in 
accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards and the standards for financial audits contained in 
Government Auditing Standards may not satisfy the relevant legal, regulatory, or contractual requirements. 

Audit Procedures—General  

An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements; therefore, our audit will involve judgment about the number of transactions to be examined and the 
areas to be tested. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall 
presentation of the financial statements. We will plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement, whether from (1) errors, (2) fraudulent 
financial reporting, (3) misappropriation of assets, or (4) violations of laws or governmental regulations that are 
attributable to the government or to acts by management or employees acting on behalf of the government. 
Because the determination of abuse is subjective, Government Auditing Standards do not expect auditors to 
provide reasonable assurance of detecting abuse. 

Because of the inherent limitations of an audit, combined with the inherent limitations of internal control, and 
because we will not perform a detailed examination of all transactions, there is a risk that material misstatements 
may exist and not be detected by us, even though the audit is properly planned and performed in accordance with 
U.S. generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing Standards. In addition, an audit is not 
designed to detect immaterial misstatements or violations of laws or governmental regulations that do not have a 
direct and material effect on the financial statements. However, we will inform the appropriate level of 
management of any material errors, fraudulent financial reporting, or misappropriation of assets that comes to our 
attention. We will also inform the appropriate level of management of any violations of laws or governmental 
regulations that come to our attention, unless clearly inconsequential, and of any material abuse that comes to 
our attention. Our responsibility as auditors is limited to the period covered by our audit and does not extend to 
later periods for which we are not engaged as auditors.  

Our procedures will include tests of documentary evidence supporting the transactions recorded in the accounts, 
and may include tests of the physical existence of inventories, and direct confirmation of receivables and certain 
other assets and liabilities by correspondence with selected individuals, funding sources, creditors, and financial 
institutions. We will request written representations from your attorneys as part of the engagement, and they may 
bill you for responding to this inquiry. At the conclusion of our audit, we will require certain written representations 
from you about your responsibilities for the financial statements; compliance with laws, regulations, contracts, and 
grant agreements; and other responsibilities required by generally accepted auditing standards. 

Audit Procedures—Internal Control  

Our audit will include obtaining an understanding of the government and its environment, including internal control, 
sufficient to assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements and to design the nature, timing, 
and extent of further audit procedures. Tests of controls may be performed to test the effectiveness of certain 
controls that we consider relevant to preventing and detecting errors and fraud that are material to the financial 
statements and to preventing and detecting misstatements resulting from illegal acts and other noncompliance 
matters that have a direct and material effect on the financial statements. Our tests, if performed, will be less in 
scope than would be necessary to render an opinion on internal control and, accordingly, no opinion will be 
expressed in our report on internal control issued pursuant to Government Auditing Standards. 

An audit is not designed to provide assurance on internal control or to identify significant deficiencies or material 
weaknesses. However, during the audit, we will communicate to management and those charged with 
governance internal control related matters that are required to be communicated under AICPA professional 
standards and Government Auditing Standards.  

Audit Procedures—Compliance  

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material 
misstatement, we will perform tests of Los Olivos Community Services District’s compliance with the provisions of 
applicable laws, regulations, contracts, agreements, and grants. However, the objective of our audit will not be to 
provide an opinion on overall compliance and we will not express such an opinion in our report on compliance 
issued pursuant to Government Auditing Standards. 

 

Agenda Packet 
Page 77 of 124



Other Services  

We will also assist in preparing the financial statements and related notes of Los Olivos Community Services 
District in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles based on information provided by you. 
These nonaudit services do not constitute an audit under Government Auditing Standards and such services will 
not be conducted in accordance with Government Auditing Standards. We will perform the services in accordance 
with applicable professional standards. The other services are limited to the financial statement services 
previously defined. We, in our sole professional judgment, reserve the right to refuse to perform any procedure or 
take any action that could be construed as assuming management responsibilities. 

Management Responsibilities 

Management is responsible for designing, implementing, and maintaining effective internal controls, including 
evaluating and monitoring ongoing activities to help ensure that appropriate goals and objectives are met; 
following laws and regulations; and ensuring that management and financial information is reliable and properly 
reported. Management is also responsible for implementing systems designed to achieve compliance with 
applicable laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements. You are also responsible for the selection and 
application of accounting principles, for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements and all 
accompanying information in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles, and for compliance 
with applicable laws and regulations and the provisions of contracts and grant agreements.  

Management is also responsible for making all financial records and related information available to us and for the 
accuracy and completeness of that information. You are also responsible for providing us with (1) access to all 
information of which you are aware that is relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of the financial 
statements, (2) additional information that we may request for the purpose of the audit, and (3) unrestricted 
access to persons within the government from whom we determine it necessary to obtain audit evidence.  

Your responsibilities include adjusting the financial statements to correct material misstatements and for 
confirming to us in the written representation letter that the effects of any uncorrected misstatements aggregated 
by us during the current engagement and pertaining to the latest period presented are immaterial, both 
individually and in the aggregate, to the financial statements taken as a whole. 

You are responsible for the design and implementation of programs and controls to prevent and detect fraud, and 
for informing us about all known or suspected fraud affecting the government involving (1) management, (2) 
employees who have significant roles in internal control, and (3) others where the fraud could have a material 
effect on the financial statements. Your responsibilities include informing us of your knowledge of any allegations 
of fraud or suspected fraud affecting the government received in communications from employees, former 
employees, grantors, regulators, or others. In addition, you are responsible for identifying and ensuring that the 
government complies with applicable laws, regulations, contracts, agreements, and grants and for taking timely 
and appropriate steps to remedy fraud and noncompliance with provisions of laws, regulations, contracts or grant 
agreements, or abuse that we report. 

You are responsible for the preparation of the supplementary information, which we have been engaged to report 
on, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. You agree to include our report on the 
supplementary information in any document that contains and indicates that we have reported on the 
supplementary information. You also agree to include the audited financial statements with any presentation of 
the supplementary information that includes our report thereon OR make the audited financial statements readily 
available to users of the supplementary information no later than the date the supplementary information is issued 
with our report thereon. Your responsibilities include acknowledging to us in the written representation letter that 
(1) you are responsible for presentation of the supplementary information in accordance with GAAP; (2) you 
believe the supplementary information, including its form and content, is fairly presented in accordance with 
GAAP; (3) the methods of measurement or presentation have not changed from those used in the prior period (or, 
if they have changed, the reasons for such changes); and (4) you have disclosed to us any significant 
assumptions or interpretations underlying the measurement or presentation of the supplementary information.   

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining a process for tracking the status of audit findings and 
recommendations. Management is also responsible for identifying and providing report copies of previous 
financial audits, attestation engagements, performance audits or other studies related to the objectives discussed 
in the Audit Objectives section of this letter. This responsibility includes relaying to us corrective actions taken to 
address significant findings and recommendations resulting from those audits, attestation engagements, 
performance audits, or other studies. You are also responsible for providing management’s views on our current 
findings, conclusions, and recommendations, as well as your planned corrective actions, for the report, and for the 
timing and format for providing that information.  

Agenda Packet 
Page 78 of 124



You agree to assume all management responsibilities relating to the financial statements and related notes and 
any other nonaudit services we provide. You will be required to acknowledge in the management representation 
letter our assistance with preparation of the financial statements and related notes and that you have reviewed 
and approved the financial statements and related notes prior to their issuance and have accepted responsibility 
for them. Further, you agree to oversee the nonaudit services by designating an individual, preferably from senior 
management, with suitable skill, knowledge, or experience; evaluate the adequacy and results of those services; 
and accept responsibility for them.  

Engagement Administration, Fees, and Other  

We understand that your employees will prepare all cash, accounts receivable, or other confirmations we request 
and will locate any documents selected by us for testing.  

We will provide copies of our reports to the Agency; however, management is responsible for distribution of the 
reports and the financial statements. Unless restricted by law or regulation, or containing privileged and 
confidential information, copies of our reports are to be made available for public inspection. 

The audit documentation for this engagement is the property of Moss, Levy & Hartzheim LLP and constitutes 
confidential information. However, subject to applicable laws and regulations, audit documentation and 
appropriate individuals will be made available upon request and in a timely manner to the State of California or its 
designee, a federal agency providing direct or indirect funding, or the U.S. Government Accountability Office for 
purposes of a quality review of the audit, to resolve audit findings, or to carry out oversight responsibilities. We will 
notify you of any such request. If requested, access to such audit documentation will be provided under the 
supervision of Moss, Levy & Hartzheim LLP personnel. Furthermore, upon request, we may provide copies of 
selected audit documentation to the aforementioned parties. These parties may intend, or decide, to distribute the 
copies or information contained therein to others, including other governmental agencies.  

The audit documentation for this engagement will be retained for a minimum of five years after the report release 
date or for any additional period requested by the State of California. If we are aware that a federal awarding 
agency or auditee is contesting an audit finding, we will contact the party(ies) contesting the audit finding for 
guidance prior to destroying the audit documentation. 

We expect to begin our audit on approximately April 15, 2024 and to issue our reports no later than June 30, 2024. 
Alexander C. Hom, CPA is the engagement partner and is responsible for supervising the engagement and 
signing the reports or authorizing another individual to sign them.  

Our fee for these services will be at our standard hourly rates plus out-of-pocket costs (such as report 
reproduction, word processing, postage, travel, copies, telephone, etc.) except that we agree that our gross fee, 
including expenses, will not exceed $2,900. Our standard hourly rates vary according to the degree of 
responsibility involved and the experience level of the personnel assigned to your audit. Our invoices for these 
fees will be rendered each month as work progresses and are payable on presentation. In accordance with our 
firm policies, work may be suspended if your account becomes 90 days or more overdue and may not be 
resumed until your account is paid in full. If we elect to terminate our services for nonpayment, our engagement 
will be deemed to have been completed upon written notification of termination, even if we have not completed 
our report. You will be obligated to compensate us for all time expended and to reimburse us for all out-of-pocket 
costs through the date of termination. The above fee is based on anticipated cooperation from your personnel and 
the assumption that unexpected circumstances will not be encountered during the audit. If significant additional 
time is necessary, we will discuss it with you and arrive at a new fee estimate before we incur the additional costs. 

We appreciate the opportunity to be of service to Los Olivos Community Services District and believe this letter 
accurately summarizes the significant terms of our engagement. If you have any questions, please let us know. If 
you agree with the terms of our engagement as described in this letter, please sign the enclosed copy and return 
it to us.  

Very truly yours, 
 

 

Moss, Levy & Hartzheim LLP 

 

 

Agenda Packet 
Page 79 of 124



RESPONSE: 

This letter correctly sets forth the understanding of Los Olivos Community Services District.  

Management signature:    
 
Title:    
 
Date:    
 

Governance signature:   
  
Title:   
  
Date:    
 

Agenda Packet 
Page 80 of 124



 

 

 

 

 

 

U
PCO

M
IN

G
 ACTIVITIES AN

D EVEN
TS

 
ITEM 10 – UPCOMING ACTIVITIES AND EVENTS 

Agenda Packet 
Page 81 of 124



LOCSD - Septic to Sewer / Water Reclamation Roadmap - WORKING DRAFT Last Update: 2/17/2024

Task Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4
Board and Public Education

Public workshops and outreach Y
Engineering / Design

Collection Study $70k Amended $70k
Treatment Study $90k+ N $90k+
Confirm Disposal Options Y
Siting options Y
Final Project Description Y
60% Design $50k N $300k+
Assessment Engineer Report including benefit factors/rates N $50k+

Environmental Review
Environmental study, assessment and report (incl. public review) N $150k+

Grants and Financing
Discussion about cost allocations (by parcel type) Y
Develop financing plan Y
Seek grants and financing Y

Prop 218 - Property Owner vote on proposed project
Polling for election feasibility N $25K
Conduct Prop 218 workshops with public N
Voting process N $125k

Monitoring Well(s)
Drill three additional monitoring wells $121K Amended $121k
Data from all five wells Y
Monitoring of wells, completed every 6 months (5 years) N $12K

Total $331k+ $943k+

2024 FY 2023-24 
Costs

FY 2023-24 
Budgeted?

Est Total 
Costs

Agenda Packet 
Page 82 of 124



By Funded / Unfunded

Task Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4
FUNDABLE (Funds exist in existing budget)

Public workshops and outreach Y
Collection, Treatment, Disposal Options Y
Siting options Y
Final Project Description Y
Develop financing plan Y
Seek grants and financing Y
Find funding for well monitoring program Y
Data from all five wells Y
Collection Study $70k Amended $70k
Drill three additional monitoring wells, sample all five wells $121K Amended $121k

UNFUNDED OR NO SPECIFIC FUNDING ACTION
Treatment Study $90k+ N $90k+
60% Design $50K N $300k+
Assessment Engineer Report including benefit factors/rates N $50k+
Environmental study, assessment and report (incl. public review) N $150k+
Polling for election feasibility N $25K
Voting process N $125k
Monitoring of wells, completed every 6 months (5 years) N $12k

Total $331k+ $943k+
Legend:
Can be completed prior to (or without) a Final Project Description
Cannot be completed prior to Final Project Description

2024 FY 2023-24 
Costs

FY 2023-24 
Budgeted?

Est Total 
Costs

Agenda Packet 
Page 83 of 124



January

February
REGEN 15%

March
REGEN Report

April
60% Design RFP Authorization
Fiscal Year (FY) 2024-25 Budget and Strategic Planning, GM’s Annual Report
WS - Collection, Treatment, Disposal

May
FY 2024-25 Budget
WS - Siting
OUTSIDE MTG - CCRWQCB / EHS

June
WS - Final Project Description
Final Project Description
FY 2024-25 Budget Hearing, Gann Limit, Tax Assessment Authorization
WS - Capital Cost Distribution

July
60% Design Contract

August
EIR Contract
WS - EIR Process

September
WS - 218 Process

October

November
Assessment Engineer Contract

December

LOCSD - MEETINGS CALENDAR YEAR 2024 - WORKING DRAFT

Q2

Q1

Q3

Q4

Agenda Packet 
Page 84 of 124



 

 

 

 

 

 

PA SYSTEM
 DO

N
ATIO

N
S

 
ITEM 11 – PA SYSTEM DONATIONS 

Agenda Packet 
Page 85 of 124



2/24/24, 10:52 AM Gmail - Re: $500.00 Donation to Purchase PA System for LOCSD Meetings

https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ik=b7c34f4d46&view=pt&search=all&permthid=thread-f:1790188502540161726%7Cmsg-f:1791021993351301668… 1/4

Guy Savage <gm.locsd@gmail.com>

Re: $500.00 Donation to Purchase PA System for LOCSD Meetings
1 message

Anna Marie Gott <anna.marie.gott@gmail.com> Thu, Feb 15, 2024 at 6:47 PM
To: Kathryn Lohmeyer Rohrer <lohrohrer@gmail.com>
Cc: General Manager - LOCSD <gm.locsd@gmail.com>, soneill@awattorneys.com, mtucker@awattorneys.com, "Tom
Fayram (tom.fayram.locsd@gmail.com)" <tom.fayram.locsd@gmail.com>, Julie Kennedy <julie.kennedy.locsd@gmail.com>,
Julie Kennedy <julie.kennedy6@gmail.com>, grparks@mac.com, Lisa Palmer <lisa@lpalmerconsulting.com>,
ninastormo19@gmail.com

Hi Guy,

I spoke with my Mom a few minutes ago and she told me that she would donate $330.22 towards the purchase of the
PA system that I have communicated with you about. With Kathryn and Paul's donation of $500.00 the LOCSD will
pay $0.00 for this needed PA system.

Why is my Mom doing this? Her phone call with you today left her with the impression that LOCSD would pay $830.22 for
the system when the reality was that the LOCSD would pay $330.22. Additionally, she was not confident at the end of the
day that you would buy a system that could meet her needs or those of the community.

So, I am writing to you to ask for the shipping address that the LOCSD would like to use to receive the PA system for use
at the LOCSD Board Meetings. Please provide it to me as soon as possible as I don't want to miss the sale that Rockville
has on this equipment.

Thank you,
A

PS
Please note that Rockville audio has videos on how to set up the equipment which are very easy to understand.

On Tue, Feb 13, 2024 at 2:49 PM Anna Marie Gott <anna.marie.gott@gmail.com> wrote:
Hi Guy,

The donation is restricted to this PA system or another one that Kathryn approves of. So, the money cannot be used
for something else. I suggest that you ask the Districts attorneys what the requirements are for accepting a gift that:
benefits the agency, enhances the ability of the public to access district meetings, and allows the district to meet its
obligations to provide access to its meetings under the Brown Act Section 54953(g) and federal Americans with
Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sec. 12132). Why? I am confident that they will say the Board can't accept money for
one thing and then try to spend it on something else without approval from the donor.

Please do contact my Mom and her friend Willie Mueller ( ) about their need for accommodation at District
meetings. Willie has also complained to me about her inability to hear what is being said at the meetings. And both
have asked me on multiple occasions to mention this during public comment, which I have done, and both want this
issue resolved now. I will let them both know to expect a phone call from you this week. - If you require that Willie write
an email to you, or make a phone call about this, please let me know ASAP and I will contact her.

This District is also aware that others have also recognized the need for a PA system for District meetings, but the
District refused to use one that was provided by Tom Nelson. Why? I don't know - especially when I have been making
public comments about this need for over 18 months. (The system Tom offered is no longer available as it was given
away.)

Let me be clear on a few things, my Mother and Willie have sat in the front row and a few rows back when seats are not
available. Meetings they have attended have held as few as a dozen people and well over 50 people. In each case they
have reported to me that they cannot clearly hear what is being said by the Board, special speakers, the public, or you.
Additionally, after I contacted Willie today she told me she has a hearing aid and even with it she estimated that she
can only hear 50% of what is being said by anyone. Furthermore, the District can't even supply Willie with a hearing

Agenda Packet 
Page 86 of 124

mailto:anna.marie.gott@gmail.com


2/24/24, 10:52 AM Gmail - Re: $500.00 Donation to Purchase PA System for LOCSD Meetings

https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ik=b7c34f4d46&view=pt&search=all&permthid=thread-f:1790188502540161726%7Cmsg-f:1791021993351301668… 2/4

loop, which is typically what those with hearing aids need. Why? Hearing loops require an amplified system which the
District doesn't have. - Hearing loops alone are hundreds of dollars.

I recall that you have authority to make purchases without Board approval and there is a limit, but I believe that it is
more than $350.00, which is approximately the difference between the PA system Kathryn has offered to help subsidize
through her donation. Additionally, the LOCSD can accept this donation at the meeting and you can purchase the
equipment prior to the meeting in order to use the system at the meeting. So, my recommendation is that you confirm
the need (again) and either buy the entire system that I sent information on, OR find a system that meets the needs of
community members, and one that Kathryn agrees to, in order for the District to receive the donation, OR have the
District pay for a PA system itself.

As for the Board, I highly doubt the Board would not accept a donation for this PA system. Why? It is free money and
the Board must make reasonable accommodations for my Mom and her friend Willie and this by any measure is a
reasonable accommodation  - especially when someone else is paying for the vast majority of the total costs. -
Also, please remember that the offers for the PA system are as long as supplies last and rise once this inventory is
gone.

Best,
A

RE: Brown Act Section 54953(g) and  federal Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sec. 12132)
Effective January 1, 2023, Government Code Section 54953(g) requires that all public agencies have and implement a
written procedure for receiving and swiftly resolving reasonable accommodation requests for individuals with
disabilities, consistent with the federal Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sec. 12132), and resolving
any doubt in favor of
accessibility.

Does the District have a written procedure? If the answer is no then it needs one and I suggest that this be on the next
agenda.

On Tue, Feb 13, 2024 at 12:04 PM Kathryn Lohmeyer Rohrer <lohrohrer@gmail.com> wrote:
Guy,

We’re happy to make a donation to be used for equipment for the stated purpose.  

Grants are given (and accepted and used) for limited and specific purposes all the time. If you think there is some
special law that applies to CSDs so that they can use any donation in any way they deem appropriate, please direct
me to that law. Otherwise, it is my understanding that the LOCSD, like any other individual or entity, can either accept
a grant/gift offered for a specific purpose or decline to accept it. District Counsel should be able to advise the Board
on this. 

Sincerely, 
Kathryn Lohmeyer Rohrer
Sent from my iPhone

On Feb 13, 2024, at 11:13 AM, General Manager - LOCSD <gm.locsd@gmail.com> wrote:

 
Kathryn,

I removed most of the Board to avoid any potential Brown Act discussion.

I too have been travelling, just returning yesterday. I'll speak with Anna Marie's mother later this week to get a feel for
her needs. There are several ways we can potentially accommodate her needs, with a PA system most certainly
being one.

Setting aside any discussion about accommodations, know that I do not have the authority to accept donations in this
manner. Consequently, it will be on the next Regular meeting agenda. That way I can get direction from the Board.
Recall from the POLO donation discussion, that the Board also has limits as to how it can accept donations. If my
memory serves, they can suggest a way they might use the donation (as was done with the POLO grant); however,
technically the Board can use the donation in any way it deems appropriate.

Guy 

Agenda Packet 
Page 87 of 124

mailto:lohrohrer@gmail.com
mailto:gm.locsd@gmail.com


2/24/24, 10:52 AM Gmail - Re: $500.00 Donation to Purchase PA System for LOCSD Meetings

https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ik=b7c34f4d46&view=pt&search=all&permthid=thread-f:1790188502540161726%7Cmsg-f:1791021993351301668… 3/4

On Mon, Feb 12, 2024 at 12:05 PM Kathryn Lohmeyer Rohrer <lohrohrer@gmail.com> wrote:
Hello, Guy --

Just checking in about this.  I was out of town all week last week to deal with family healthcare issues out of state,
and I am just catching up on email.

Regarding the below, we remain happy to make the donation to the IRLC as outlined below to support the LOCSD
in providing the requested accommodation under the Brown Act.  

Please let us know how you would like to proceed.  I am happy to send the check to the IRLC this week.

Sincerely,  Kathryn

On Tue, Feb 6, 2024 at 1:59 PM Anna Marie Gott <anna.marie.gott@gmail.com> wrote:
Guy, 

I have mentioned a number of times during public comment that my Mother, and some of her neighbors who
have attended the LOCSD board meetings, cannot clearly hear what the Board, Staff or members of the public
say during meetings because the meetings are not amplified. To date, the Board has taken no action to make
any accommodations to ensure these meetings are accessible to members of the public who are hard of
hearing. 

Under the Brown Act the LOCSD is required to make accommodations for the members of the public upon
written request. Today, I am making a formal request that the LOCSD make the necessary arrangements to
accommodate my Mother's needs by the next regular board meeting which will be held on February 28, 2024. -
My Mother can be reached at  or  if you have any questions.

I have mentioned during public comment that Kathryn Lohmeyer Rohrer, who has been cc'ed, has graciously
offered to donate money to the LOCSD to help purchase a PA system. She is willing to donate $500.00 to the
Independent Living Resources Center which will send a check to the LOCSD upon the receipt of her check and
the Districts purchase of the PA system identified below. - Jennifer Griffin, the Executive Director of the ILRC,
has been cc'ed.

The PA system below was not chosen lightly. I did a substantial amount of research to find a PA system that
could meet the needs of the LOCSD. Furthermore, this equipment is on sale now (while supplies last), offers free
shipping, has a 90 day return policy in case there are any problems, and has videos showing how to set up the
equipment. 

The LOCSD could try to find another PA system that meets the needs of community members, but I doubt that it
would be less expensive. Kathryn may be willing to donate money towards the purchase of a different PA
system, but she must agree to the components in advance of the purchase.

If you have any questions about the PA system please contact me as Kathryn is out of town until this Friday. If
you have any questions about my Mothers experience during board meetings and her inability to clearly hear
what is being said please contact her.

Sincerely,
Anna Marie Gott
 

 

ROCKVILLE PRO SOUND & AUDIO
Two speakers, 3 mics, and a wireless mic system came out to be $395.95 + taxes for the equipment. 

https://www.rockvilleaudio.com/rpg122k-rwm65u/

We should buy:
2 cases for the speakers and stands @ $54.95 each. ($109.90)

https://www.rockvilleaudio.com/tb12/
1 50ft speaker cable to connect the speakers. (25 is too short to place a speaker on each side of
the room.) ($39.95)

https://www.rockvilleaudio.com/rockmix-10fx/
Est Total: $545.80 + tax 

Agenda Packet 
Page 88 of 124

mailto:lohrohrer@gmail.com
mailto:anna.marie.gott@gmail.com
https://www.rockvilleaudio.com/rpg122k-rwm65u/
https://www.rockvilleaudio.com/rpg122k-rwm65u/
https://www.rockvilleaudio.com/tb12/
https://www.rockvilleaudio.com/tb12/
https://www.rockvilleaudio.com/rockmix-10fx/
https://www.rockvilleaudio.com/rockmix-10fx/


2/24/24, 10:52 AM Gmail - Re: $500.00 Donation to Purchase PA System for LOCSD Meetings

https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ik=b7c34f4d46&view=pt&search=all&permthid=thread-f:1790188502540161726%7Cmsg-f:1791021993351301668… 4/4

 A mixer ($129.95) and cables are likely needed for Zoom. (I know from experience that the public can't
always hear what the Board, Staff, and the public say during the meetings via Zoom.)

Mixer: https://www.rockvilleaudio.com/rockmix-10fx/
Cables: 2 3ft cables Female to Male XLR Mic Cable ($23.90): https://www.rockvilleaudio.com/rcxfm3p-bl/

 1 20ft cable Female to Male XLR Mic Cable ($14.95): https://www.rockvilleaudio.com/rcxfm20e-b/
A Case ($48.95):  https://www.rockvilleaudio.com/mb1916/
(NOTE: This case is to hold the mixer and the mic and Dual UHF 15 Channel system to keep the boxes
together.)

Est Total: $217.75 + tax

Grand Total: $830.22 (All Equipment Listed Above: $762.55 + $67.67 tax.
Shipping is free.)
A tabletop microphone stand is needed for Guy. This could be purchased for around $30 but they don't have
them at Rockville. A stand for the public and another for the Board could be purchased, but I don't think this is
needed as one person speaks at a time and the mic can be passed around between Board Members and the
public for public comment.

The system above would have 3 microphones. One for the Board, Guy, and the public. Two loudspeakers are
needed due to the size of the room and number of people at some meetings. Most meetings only one
loudspeaker would be needed but for anything over 25 people the second speaker should be set up. 

Rockville has videos that show exactly how to set up the equipment which are easy to follow. 

--
Kathryn Lohmeyer Rohrer

--
Guy Savage
General Manager
Los Olivos Community Services District
PO Box 345, Los Olivos, CA 93441
(805) 500-4098
www.LosOlivosCSD.com

Agenda Packet 
Page 89 of 124

https://www.rockvilleaudio.com/rockmix-10fx/
https://www.rockvilleaudio.com/rockmix-10fx/
https://www.rockvilleaudio.com/rockmix-10fx/
https://www.rockvilleaudio.com/rcxfm3p-bl/
https://www.rockvilleaudio.com/rcxfm3p-bl/
https://www.rockvilleaudio.com/rcxfm20e-b/
https://www.rockvilleaudio.com/rcxfm20e-b/
https://www.rockvilleaudio.com/mb1916/
https://www.rockvilleaudio.com/mb1916/
http://www.losolivoscsd.com/


General Manager’s Notes and Comments Regarding PA System 
 
Overall, if the District wants to purchase a Public Address (PA) system for general uses, this system appears to be 
effective and could possibly meet general amplification needs. It is relatively portable and appears straightforward 
to set up. While I have reviewed the videos that are provided on-line and briefly spoken to the vendor, I only 
completed a very cursory review of PA systems. Given that prior attempts to use a PA system were not successful, I 
was not comfortable simply purchasing a system or performing more detailed research on potential systems 
without Board direction. Should the Board wish to purchase a PA system, I highly recommend further investigation 
to ensure that any purchased system will meet the District’s needs. My prior experience includes oversight of a 
very significant upgrade to the Board of Supervisors’ chambers at the County of San Luis Obispo. A large learning 
from that experience was that there are a LOT of nuances regarding microphones, speakers, and their interaction 
with existing technologies that must be considered. For example, some microphones are best for public speakers, 
others for board members, and still others for activities such as singing karaoke.  
 
As noted in the related email, the proposed purchase has very specific caveats on which type equipment (a PA 
system) may be purchased using the donated funds. Counsel can confirm and/or clarify; but, I believe this may 
usurp your Board’s authority as spelled out in Community Special Districts Law. For reference, I would point you to 
Gov Code section 61000 et seq, which states, in part: 

     “(a) Except as provided in Section 61040.1, a legislative body of five members known as the board of 
directors shall govern each district. The board of directors shall establish policies for the operation of the 
district. The board of directors shall provide for the implementation of those policies which is the 
responsibility of the district’s general manager. “ (Sec 61040). 

This donation is essentially telling you how you must expend funds (and run the District). It goes even further by 
funding most, but not all, of the total purchase and on-going expenses required to purchase the proposed 
equipment configuration. Given this approach, it is essentially requiring the District to use its funds to pay the rest 
of the bill. Thus, as previously stated, it may usurp your Board’s authority to govern the District. 
 
The related email also references two governmental sections related to Americans with Disability Act (ADA) 
requirements. Neither section requires, as is stated in the email, “…that all public agencies have and implement a 
written procedure for receiving and swiftly resolving reasonable accommodation requests…” 

California Government Code Section 54953(g), which reads: 
    “The legislative body shall have and implement a procedure for receiving and swiftly resolving requests 
for reasonable accommodation for individuals with disabilities, consistent with the federal Americans with 
Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sec. 12132), and resolving any doubt in favor of accessibility. In each 
instance in which notice of the time of the meeting is otherwise given or the agenda for the meeting is 
otherwise posted, the legislative body shall also give notice of the procedure for receiving and resolving 
requests for accommodation.” 

Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sec. 12132) which reads:  
    “Subject to the provisions of this title, no qualified individual with a disability shall, by reason of such 
disability, be excluded from participation in or be denied the benefits of the services, programs, or 
activities of a public entity, or be subjected to discrimination by any such entity.” 

With respect to 54953(g), current agendas direct the public to contact the District by phone or email. As both the 
email address and phone are both managed by the General Manager, procedure would dictate that the General 
Manager receive and resolve requests. If the General Manager has questions, he is reasonably expected to ensure 
outreach to the person making the request and prompt resolution of the accommodation request. If the General 
Manager has questions about what is legally required, he is free to consult with District Counsel. While there has 
been prior commentary from community members about the need for ADA accommodations, to my knowledge, 
this is the first actual request for an accommodation. Consequently, both actions were taken by me (individual 
outreach to requestors and discussion with Counsel).  
 
I first reached out to Ms. Gott’s mother, Pat Gott. Pat noted that she and others have asked the Board and other 
presenters to speak up as they have difficulty hearing. Pat repeatedly said that the Board and staff are 
“whispering” when they speak. She also noted that she often does not understand what the Board is talking about. 

Agenda Packet 
Page 90 of 124



She asked questions about the proposed PA system. When I informed her that the system proposed costs over 
$800 and that only a portion of the costs would be covered by a possible donation, she said that it was too much 
and that the money should be spent on the sewer. I asked about which meetings she will be attending. She did not 
realize that we have several meetings a month, when you include subcommittee meetings. She stated she would 
only attend the 6PM Regular Board meetings, but would not be attending all of them. I also reached out to Willie 
Mueller regarding her concerns and needs for accommodation. She too noted that it sounds like people are 
whispering. In my discussion with her, I told her I was working on a couple of different potential short-term 
solutions and that it was up to your Board to provide direction about where to go longer-term. 
 
The email notes that the PA system will help address the sender’s concerns about the District’s ability to meet ADA 
requirements. I would note that there are other potential solutions to meeting ADA requirements. These solutions 
could include (in no particular order): 
1. Having those experiencing hearing issues sit closer to the dais. 
2. As the meeting is currently broadcast via Zoom, those having hearing issues could listen to the meeting via the 

Zoom broadcast. They could experience some minor lags in audio but it would be negligible in my experience. 
Should a member of the public not have headphones, the District could provide them. I performed a very 
quick Amazon search for wired and wireless (Bluetooth) headphones with at least a 4-star rating. Simple wired 
headphones can be purchased for under $5.00. Basic wireless headphones can be purchased for under $15.00. 
Both types are cheaper if multiple pairs are purchased simultaneously. 

3. Personal sound amplifiers. These devices are essentially a small microphone and headset. The user points the 
microphone in the direction of the speaker and the sound is amplified to their headset. Given the current 
technologies, significant background noise elimination can be achieved using these devices. An Amazon search 
for sound amplifiers with at least a 4-star rating shows a wide range of costs per unit – many in the $60-99 
range. 

4. Wireless audio or FM systems can also be used. These systems essentially take the audio output from a laptop  
that is connected to the Zoom or a sound mixer and broadcast it to individual receivers – think tour guides and 
tourists. The last time I checked, these could be purchased for less than $200 for a transmitter and 4-6 
receivers. As with personal sound amplifiers, these are often tuned to eliminate background noise. 

5. More traditional assistive listening systems can also be purchased and implemented. It has been several years 
since I had cause to research these systems. They systems often rely on neck loops that interface with telecoils  
(T-coils) that are present in modern hearing aids or cochlear implants. These systems can be very costly and 
are generally targeted for larger venues than those used by the District. 

 
Related to the specific proposal, I called Rockville Audio and Sound to ask a few questions about the system. They 
are an east coast company that is open from 9-5 Eastern. They claim 24/7 support, but the support person I spoke 
to was unable to answer even basic questions. Instead, she kept referring me back to the on-line documentation 
and owner’s manual. She offered to take my number and have someone call me back tomorrow. It has been nearly 
a week, and despite repeated attempts to reach someone, I have not spoken to a salesperson or someone who 
could answer my technical questions. Given this, I have serious concerns that if we experience issues with the 
system during a meeting, we will not have technical support beyond what members of the public or staff can 
provide. 
 
Other comments/concerns include the following: 
1. Where will the equipment be stored when not in use? Rockville did provide the following information on the 

two main components in the proposal: 
            The RPG122K is 60 pounds total and 48" x 17" x 15.5". 
            The RWM65U is about 5 pounds and 16.2" x 12" x 2". 
To date, I have been fine storing and transporting one small crate of equipment. I am hesitant to commit to 
storing this much equipment at my home and transporting it on a regular basis. Simply put, this amount of 
equipment will not fit in the closet where I currently store District equipment. And, at over 65 pounds is not 
something I really want to be responsible for moving around regularly. Unlike other local jurisdictions such as 
the City of Santa Barbara, we do not have multiple physical locations nor 1000 employees to deal with these 
types of important considerations.  

Agenda Packet 
Page 91 of 124



If a smaller and lighter-weight system can be identified I will consider storing it. Another option would be to 
store it at another location or at the meeting venue. 

2. With regards to meeting venues, Board members may recall me reporting in 2022 that St. Mark’s was 
considering an update and upgrade to its existing systems. With the departure of Father Day, it is my 
understanding that those plans are on hold. When I previously asked St. Mark’s representatives about 
whether the District could be allowed to make changes to Stacy Hall, I was told that they would not allow it 
until they had a plan in place.  
Related to the Los Olivos Grange Hall, prior conversations with their representatives have suggested that they 
would be open to discussion about permanent installation of a system in the meeting hall area. They viewed it 
as a potential win-win since there are other meetings held in the facility that may be able to leverage a 
permanently installed PA system. The Grange Hall currently charges us $50 per meeting. However, savings 
from the time required to store, transport, setup, take-down, transport, and store the system could offset 
these costs (see my next comment). Note that if your Board considered permanently moving its Regular 
Meetings to the Grange, it could result in having to change future meeting dates as there are other entities 
that use the Grange, particularly on the 3rd Wednesday of the month – which would create a conflict on those 
rare months were the District meets on the 3rd Wednesday instead of the 2nd Wednesday. The obvious 
workaround would be to move meetings from “the Wednesday following the second Tuesday of each month” 
to simply be “the second Wednesday of each month.” 

3. As noted, setup of the system seems fairly straightforward. However, when you include the time to load the 
system into a car, transport it to meetings, unload the system, and set it up it is likely going to take an 
additional 10-15 minutes in total. Similarly, an additional 10-15 minutes to put everything away. At my current 
rates, that equates to roughly $45-75 per meeting of additional expense to the District. 

4. Purchase of equipment such as this also requires things like spare batteries, extension cords, stands, 
replacements, and so on. Consequently, the noted provided system costs and related donation(s) are not 
going to cover everything required to purchase, use, and maintain the system over time. 

5. It is unclear what issues we may have with feedback between Zoom participants and the PA system. If 
excessive issues occur and cannot be resolved, you may need to shift to a broadcast only approach to Zoom. 
We already experience feedback issues on a fairly regular basis and amplification of sound in the “primary” 
meeting room may exacerbate the problem. 

6. There are other microphone / PA systems available. For example, I called SYCSD to find out what they had 
implemented. Their system includes 8 UHF channel gooseneck microphones and a speaker specifically 
designed for meetings such as ours. The microphones are currently listed at $269.99 on Amazon. The 
compatible speaker is around $120. If you search Amazon for “pa system with wireless microphone and 
speakers” you will find a plethora of possibilities, many that include two microphones and a speaker for less 
than $300. 

 
In closing, while the decision to purchase any system is the Board of Directors, I would say that I generally support 
the use of a PA system for certain meetings. In particular, a PA will likely be helpful when we get to upcoming 
workshops. I am not certain that a PA system is required for all meetings of the District, such as those where only a 
few members of the public are present. My recommendation would be that your Board discuss and consider its 
needs for a PA system, then decide which system would best meet those needs. The proposal appears to jump to 
solution based on their perception of needs and requirements. If your Board does decide a PA system is desired, I 
would recommend you consider whether you want to engage a professional sound engineer (such as was done at 
SYCSD) to help design a system. A sound engineer will ask questions such as how many microphones are needed, 
who will be using the microphones and for what purpose, what type of amplification is desired, and so on. 
 
Importantly, using a PA system will require a significant behavior change by the Board, staff, and the public. In my 
experience, most people do not like to use a microphone and many use them incorrectly. It will fall to the chair of 
meetings to ensure that people at the dais and public commenters successfully make the shift to the use of 
microphone(s).  

Agenda Packet 
Page 92 of 124



01245.0001/920763.1  

RESOLUTION NO. 24-01 
 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE LOS OLIVOS COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
ACCEPTING DONATION FROM THE INDEPENDENT LIVING RESOURCE 

CENTER, INC. 
 

WHEREAS, the mission of the Independent Living Resource Center, Inc. (ILRC) 
is to promote independent living and full access for individuals with disabilities through 
advocacy, education and action in our communities; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the Independent Living Resource Center (ILRC) is a private non-

profit organization providing disability advocacy and independence increasing or 
maintaining services to Ventura, Santa Barbara, and San Luis Obispo Counties; and, 

 
WHEREAS, Los Olivos Community Services District was formed by local voters 

in 2018 pursuant to Cal Gov Code 61000 et seq., to provide a funding mechanism for 
the construction and operation of facilities needed to collect, treat, and dispose of 
sewage, wastewater, recycled water, and storm water within the Los Olivos Community 
Services District service area; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Independent Living Resource Center, Inc. desires to donate up 

to $500.00 to Los Olivos Community Services District for the purpose of purchasing a 
Public Address (PA) system; and 
 

WHEREAS, while the Los Olivos Community Services District shall maintain sole 
discretion over the expenditure of donated funds, its Board of Directors intends to use 
such donated funds the purchase of a Public Address (PA) system. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the Los 
Olivos Community Service District, as follows: 
 

The Los Olivos Community Services District board accepts the donation of up to 
$500.00 from the Independent Living Resource Center, Inc. (ILRC) to be used for the 
purpose of purchasing a Public Address (PA) system, which expenditure will be made 
in the sole discretion of the LOCSD board. 

 
 
 
 
 

[THIS SECTION INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK] 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Packet 
Page 93 of 124



01245.0001/920763.1  

I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing Resolution was passed and adopted by the 
Board of Directors of the Los Olivos Community Services District at a regularly scheduled 
meeting held on the 28th day of February 2024, by the following vote: 

 
AYES:                
 
NOES:             
 
ABSENT:             
 
ABSTAIN:             
 
 

       
ATTEST: 
 

___________________________________ 
GUY W. SAVAGE 
General Manager / Board Secretary 

 
 
 
LOS OLIVOS COMMUNITY SERVICES 
DISTRICT 
 
 
By:        
      Julie Kennedy, Board President 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 

 
By:        
      Aleshire & Wynder LLP, District Counsel 
 
 
I, Guy W. Savage, General Manager/Board Secretary of the Los Olivos Community 
Services, Santa Barbara County, California, DO HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing is a true 
and accurate copy of the Resolution passed and adopted by the Board of Directors of the Los 
Olivos Community Services District on the date and by the vote indicated herein.  

Agenda Packet 
Page 94 of 124



01245.0001/920763.1  

RESOLUTION NO. 24-02 
 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE LOS OLIVOS COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
ACCEPTING DONATION FROM PATRICIA GOTT 

 
WHEREAS, Ms. Patricia Gott is an individual who resides within the boundaries 

of the Los Olivos Community Services District; and, 
 

WHEREAS, Ms. Patricia Gott is a trustee for the GOTT CHARLES/PATRICIA 
TRUST, which, as of the 2023 working roll for the County of Santa Barbara, was the 
owner of record for parcels 135-082-018, 135-110-009, 135-110-023, 135-110-024, 
and 135-110-025 which are within the boundaries of the Los Olivos Community 
Services District; and, 

 
WHEREAS, Los Olivos Community Services District was formed by local voters 

in 2018 pursuant to Cal Gov Code 61000 et seq., to provide a funding mechanism for 
the construction and operation of facilities needed to collect, treat, and dispose of 
sewage, wastewater, recycled water, and storm water within the Los Olivos Community 
Services District service area; and 

 
WHEREAS, Ms. Patricia Gott desires to donate up to $330.22 to Los Olivos 

Community Services District for the purpose of purchasing a Public Address (PA) 
system; and 
 

WHEREAS, while the Los Olivos Community Services District shall maintain sole 
discretion over the expenditure of donated funds, its Board of Directors intends to use 
such donated funds the purchase of a Public Address (PA) system. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the Los 
Olivos Community Service District, as follows: 
 

The Los Olivos Community Services District board accepts the donation of up to 
$330.22 from Ms. Patricia Gott to be used for the purpose of purchasing a Public 
Address (PA) system, which expenditure will be made in the sole discretion of the 
LOCSD board. 

 
 
 
 
 

[THIS SECTION INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK] 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Packet 
Page 95 of 124



01245.0001/920763.1  

I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing Resolution was passed and adopted by the 
Board of Directors of the Los Olivos Community Services District at a regularly scheduled 
meeting held on the 28th day of February 2024, by the following vote: 

 
AYES:                
 
NOES:             
 
ABSENT:             
 
ABSTAIN:             
 
 

       
ATTEST: 
 

___________________________________ 
GUY W. SAVAGE 
General Manager / Board Secretary 

 
 
 
LOS OLIVOS COMMUNITY SERVICES 
DISTRICT 
 
 
By:        
      Julie Kennedy, Board President 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 

 
By:        
      Aleshire & Wynder LLP, District Counsel 
 
 
I, Guy W. Savage, General Manager/Board Secretary of the Los Olivos Community 
Services, Santa Barbara County, California, DO HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing is a true 
and accurate copy of the Resolution passed and adopted by the Board of Directors of the Los 
Olivos Community Services District on the date and by the vote indicated herein.  

Agenda Packet 
Page 96 of 124



 

 

 

 

 

 

DIRECTO
R REPO

RTS 
ITEM 12 – DIRECTOR REPORTS 

Agenda Packet 
Page 97 of 124



Commissioners: Jay Freeman, Chair ◆ Craig Geyer ◆  Joan Hartmann   ◆ James Kyriaco ◆ Jorge Magana   ◆  Bob Nelson       

◆  Jenelle Osborne  ◆  Alice Patino, Vice-Chair  ◆  Jim Richardson  ◆  Shane Stark   ◆  Das Williams Executive Officer:  Mike Prater 

LAFCO  
Santa Barbara Local Agency Formation Commission 

105 East Anapamu Street ◆ Santa Barbara CA  93101 
805/568-3391 ◆ FAX 805/568-2249 
www.sblafco.org ◆ lafco@sblafco.org 

February 20, 2024  

 

TO:  Santa Barbara County Independent Special Distrits 

Subject: Notice of Results for the Regular and Alternate Special District Member 
Nomination  

 
The deadline for filing election ballots for the Regular Special District Members to Santa Barbara 

LAFCO ended at 5 :00 PM on Monday, February 19, 2024. There was a total of 31 eligible 

Independent Special Districts that filed ballots by the deadline. One Nomination was received 

for the Alternate Member seat of the Independent Special Districts Members that filed 

Nominations by the deadline. Pursuant to Government Code section 56332(c)(2), “[at] the end of 

the nomination period, if only one candidate was nominated for a vacant seat, that candidate 

shall be deemed appointed” to the Commission. 

 

The results of the mailed ballot elections are attached in Attachment A. 

 

The results are as follows: 

 

LAFCO Regular Special District Member Votes (31 Votes Total): 

25 Votes  Craig Geyer, Goleta West Sanitary District 

5 Votes Dorinne Lee Johnson, Montecito Sanitary District 

1 Votes Jorge Magana, Mission Hills Community Services District 

 

LAFCO Alternate Special District Member Nomination (1 Form Received 1/3/24): 

Presiding Officer Steve Dietrich, Mission Hills Community Services District  

 

By virtue of receiving the majority of the votes cast, Mr. Geyer was elected as a Regular Special 

District Member of the Commission with a term to expire on March 1, 2028. By virtue of 

receiving only one nomination Mr. Magana is deemed appointed as the Alternate Special 

District Member of the Commission with a term to expire on March 1, 2028. 

Please contact the LAFCO office if you have any questions. 

Sincerely, 

 

Mike Prater 

Executive Officer 

 

Cc: LAFCO Commissioners 

Agenda Packet 
Page 98 of 124

http://www.sblafco.org/
http://www.sblafco.org/
http://www.sblafco.org/


Delegates, Nominations & Votes for LAFCO Special Member 
Voting Period Called For by mailed Ballot ends February 19, 2024 
 

No Special District Voted for: Date 
1 CACHUMA RESOURCE CONSERVATION   Craig Geyer 1/17/24 
2 CARPINTERIA CEMETERY  Craig Geyer 1/26/24 
3 CARPINTERIA SANITARY   Craig Geyer 1/26/24 
4 CARPINTERA/SUMMERLAND FIRE 

PROTECTION 
Craig Geyer 2/5/24 

5 CARPINTERIA VALLEY WATER Craig Geyer 2/15/24 
6 CUYAMA COMMUNITY SERVICES Dorinne Lee 

Johnson  
2/15/24 

7 EMBARCADERO MUNICIPAL IMPROVEMENT Craig Geyer 1/30/24 
8 GOLETA CEMETERY  Craig Geyer 1/29/24 
9 GOLETA SANITARY  Craig Geyer 2/7/24 
10 GOLETA WATER  Craig Geyer 1/5/24 
11 GOLETA WEST SANITARY  Craig Geyer 1/11/24 
12 ISLA VISTA COMMUNITY SERVICES  Craig Geyer 2/16/24 
13 ISLA VISTA RECREATION AND PARK   Craig Geyer 1/31/24 
14 LOMPOC CEMETERY  Craig Geyer 1/24/24 
15 LOMPOC HEALTH CARE  Craig Geyer 1/26/24 
16 LOS ALAMOS COMMUNITY SERVICES  Craig Geyer 1/31/24 
17 LOS OLIVOS COMMUNITY SERVICES Craig Geyer 2/1/24 
18 MISSION HILLS COMMUNITY SERVICES  Jorge Magana 1/5/24 
19 MONTECITO FIRE PROTECTION  Craig Geyer 1/23/24 
20 MONTECITO SANITARY Dorinne Lee 

Johnson  
1/12/24 

21 MONTECITO WATER  Dorinne Lee 
Johnson  

1/24/24 

22 MOSQUITO AND VECTOR MANAGEMENT  Craig Geyer 2/1/24 
23 SAN ANTONIO BASIN WATER   Dorinne Lee 

Johnson  
1/16/24 

24 SANTA BARBARA METRO TRANSIT Craig Geyer 2/1/24 
25 SANTA MARIA PUBLIC AIRPORT  Craig Geyer 1/26/24 
26 SANTA MARIA CEMETERY Craig Geyer 2/14/24 
27 SANTA MARIA VALLEY WATER 

CONSERVATION  
Craig Geyer 2/16/24 

28 SANTA YNEZ COMMUNITY SERVICES  Craig Geyer 1/31/24 
29 SANTA YNEZ RIVER WATER CONSERVATION  Craig Geyer 2/1/24 
30 SUMMERLAND SANITARY Dorinne Lee 

Johnson  
2/1/24 

31 VANDENBERG VILLAGE COMMUNITY 
SERVICES  

Craig Geyer 2/7/24 

 
Total Number of Nominations Returned 
# Nominations Returned  
1 Craig Geyer – Goleta West Sanitary District (REG) 
2 Steve Dietrich – Mission Hills CSD  
(REG & ALT) 
1 Woody Barrett – Montecito Sanitary District (REG) 
 

Number of Votes for Each Nominee 
 
Mailed Ballot Called for Ballots Due Feb 19, 2024  Invalid or Late Ballots after 5pm 
#31 Total Ballots cast      # Total Ballots ineligible 
 #25 Ballots for Nom #1 (Geyer) 
 #1 Ballots for Nom #2 (Magana) 

#5 Ballots for Nom #3 (Johnson)  

Agenda Packet 
Page 99 of 124



The voting member should submit his or her ballot directly to LAFCO by hand or U.S. mail to 

Natasha Carbajal, Santa Barbara LAFCO, 105 East Anapamu Street, Room 407, Santa Barbara 

CA 93101, or via email to lafco@sblafco.org, or Fax to (805) 568-2249 

INDEPENDENT SPECIAL DISTRICTS SELECTION COMMITTEE 

Submit No Later than 5:00 pm, Monday, February 19, 2024 

OFFICIAL BALLOT No. 1 

Election of Regular Special District Member on Santa Barbara LAFCO 

Vote for one of the following Regular Special District Member nominees: 

 Craig Geyer, Incumbent – Goleta West Sanitary District 

 Jorge Magana – Mission Hills Community Services District 

 Dorinne Lee Johnson – Montecito Sanitary District 

Name of Independent Special District 

Signature 

Print Name  

Title (please check one) 

 Presiding Officer of the Special District Board 

 Board member alternate designated by Special District 

Board to vote in this election.  (Gov. Code sec.  

56332(a).)  

Date:  _______________________ 

Each returned ballot shall be signed by the presiding officer or his or her alternate as 

designated by the district governing body.  (Gov. Code sec. 56332(a) & (c)(5).) 

Los Olivos Community Services District 

Lisa Bertero Palmer

X

X

February 1, 2024

Agenda Packet 
Page 100 of 124

http://www.sblafco.org/#myModal


 

 

 

 

 

 

G
M

 AN
D DE REPO

RTS
 

ITEM 12B – GM AND DE REPORTS 

Agenda Packet 
Page 101 of 124



Summary Project Status Report 

Audit (Moss, Levy & Hartzheim) Budget:   Schedule:  
Waiting for bills from M, L & H – work complete 
Performed initial outreach to MLH for 2023 Audit effort – contract on tonight’s agenda for approval. 
REGEN – 30% Hybrid Collection Engineering Design Budget:   Schedule:  
Check-in meetings with REGEN continue, 15% deliverable on tonight’s agenda 
Groundwater Monitoring Wells Budget:   Schedule:  
• Wells drilled week of February 2, 2024 
• Well development completed February 22, 2024 
• Samples taken and sent to lab for testing. 
• Minor site clean-up still required, will be completed once ground dries out. 
• Continue to provide monthly status reports to CCRWQCB. 

 

Other: 
Continued technical discussion with the City of Solvang. Anticipate an agenda item next month for 
further Board discussion. Talked with Dunn about the issues they are having with their system. 

Agenda Packet 
Page 102 of 124



 

$0.00

$50,000.00

$100,000.00

$150,000.00

$200,000.00

$250,000.00

$300,000.00

$350,000.00

Los Olivos CSD Cash Balance History

$225,860 

Agenda Packet 
Page 103 of 124



3490 -- Los Olivos CSD 225,859.90 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 225,859.90

Total Report 225,859.90 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 225,859.90

Cash Balances As of: 2/1/2024
Accounting Period: OPEN

Selection Criteria: Fund = 3490

Layout Options: Summarized By = Fund; Page Break At = Fund

Fund

2/1/2024
Beginning
Balance

Month-To-Date
Cash

Receipts (+)

Month-To-Date
Treasury

Credits (+)

Month-To-Date
Warrants and

Wire Transfers (-)

Month-To-Date
Treasury
Debits (-)

2/1/2024
Ending

Balance

County of Santa Barbara, FIN Last Updated:  2/1/2024 12:15 AM Page 1 of 1
Agenda Packet 

Page 104 of 124



Revenues
Taxes
3066 -- Special Tax Assessment 227,650.00 140,740.21 -86,909.79 61.82 %

Taxes 227,650.00 140,740.21 -86,909.79 61.82 %

Use of Money and Property
3380 -- Interest Income 744.00 1,620.52 876.52 217.81 %

Use of Money and Property 744.00 1,620.52 876.52 217.81 %

Intergovernmental Revenue-Other
4840 -- Other Governmental Agencies 0.00 30,000.00 30,000.00 --

Intergovernmental Revenue-Other 0.00 30,000.00 30,000.00 --

Revenues 228,394.00 172,360.73 -56,033.27 75.47 %

Expenditures
Services and Supplies
7090 -- Insurance 2,934.00 2,932.81 1.19 99.96 %
7324 -- Audit and Accounting Fees 2,500.00 425.50 2,074.50 17.02 %
7430 -- Memberships 1,300.00 1,244.00 56.00 95.69 %
7460 -- Professional & Special Service 78,886.00 27,322.59 51,563.41 34.64 %
7508 -- Legal Fees 45,529.00 15,040.76 30,488.24 33.04 %
7510 -- Contractual Services 98,643.00 53,755.28 44,887.72 54.49 %
7530 -- Publications & Legal Notices 1,750.00 0.00 1,750.00 0.00 %
7671 -- Special Projects 0.00 573.64 -573.64 --

Services and Supplies 231,542.00 101,294.58 130,247.42 43.75 %

Expenditures 231,542.00 101,294.58 130,247.42 43.75 %

Financial Status As of: 2/1/2024 (59% Elapsed)
Accounting Period: OPEN

Selection Criteria: Fund = 3490

Layout Options: Summarized By = Fund, LineItemAccount; Page Break At = Fund

Line Item Account

6/30/2024
Fiscal Year

Adjusted Budget

2/1/2024
Year-To-Date

Actual

6/30/2024
Fiscal Year
Variance

6/30/2024
Fiscal Year

Pct of Budget

Fund 3490 -- Los Olivos CSD

County of Santa Barbara, FIN Last Updated:  2/1/2024 12:15 AM Page 1 of 2
Agenda Packet 

Page 105 of 124



Changes to Fund Balances
Decrease to Residual Fund Balance
9601 -- Residual Fund Balance-Inc/Dec 3,148.00 0.00 -3,148.00 0.00 %

Decrease to Residual Fund Balance 3,148.00 0.00 -3,148.00 0.00 %

Changes to Fund Balances 3,148.00 0.00 -3,148.00 0.00 %

Los Olivos CSD 0.00 71,066.15 71,066.15 --

Net Financial Impact 0.00 71,066.15 71,066.15 --

Financial Status As of: 2/1/2024 (59% Elapsed)
Accounting Period: OPEN

Selection Criteria: Fund = 3490

Layout Options: Summarized By = Fund, LineItemAccount; Page Break At = Fund

Line Item Account

6/30/2024
Fiscal Year

Adjusted Budget

2/1/2024
Year-To-Date

Actual

6/30/2024
Fiscal Year
Variance

6/30/2024
Fiscal Year

Pct of Budget

Fund 3490 -- Los Olivos CSD

County of Santa Barbara, FIN Last Updated:  2/1/2024 12:15 AM Page 2 of 2
Agenda Packet 

Page 106 of 124



Assets & Other Debits
Assets
0110 -- Cash in Treasury 154,050.07 317,173.58 245,363.75 225,859.90
0240 -- Interest Receivable 743.68 1,620.52 2,364.20 0.00

Total Assets 154,793.75 318,794.10 247,727.95 225,859.90

Total Assets & Other Debits 154,793.75 318,794.10 247,727.95 225,859.90

Liabilities, Equity & Other Credits
Liabilities
1010 -- Warrants Payable 0.00 2,296.00 2,296.00 0.00
1015 -- EFT Payable 0.00 98,279.44 98,279.44 0.00
1210 -- Accounts Payable 0.00 100,575.44 100,575.44 0.00
1730 -- Unidentified Deposits 0.00 30,000.00 30,000.00 0.00

Total Liabilities 0.00 231,150.88 231,150.88 0.00

Equity
2200 -- Fund Balance-Residual -154,793.75 0.00 0.00 -154,793.75
2410 -- Est Revenues/Oth Fin Src 0.00 231,542.00 0.00 231,542.00
2510 -- Appropriations/Oth Fin Use 0.00 0.00 231,542.00 -231,542.00
2710 -- Revenues/Other Fin Sources 0.00 144,069.17 316,429.90 -172,360.73
2810 -- Expenditures/Other Fin Uses 0.00 101,294.58 0.00 101,294.58

Total Equity -154,793.75 476,905.75 547,971.90 -225,859.90

Total Liabilities, Equity & Other Credits -154,793.75 708,056.63 779,122.78 -225,859.90

Total Los Olivos CSD 0.00 1,026,850.73 1,026,850.73 0.00

General Ledger Trial Balance As of: 2/1/2024
Accounting Period: OPEN

Selection Criteria: Fund = 3490

Layout Options: Summarized By = Fund; Page Break At = Fund

Beginning Balance
7/1/2023

Year-To-Date
Debits

Year-To-Date
Credits

Ending Balance
2/29/2024

Fund 3490 -- Los Olivos CSD

County of Santa Barbara, FIN Last Updated:  2/1/2024 12:15 AM Page 1 of 1
Agenda Packet 

Page 107 of 124



Revenues
Taxes
3066 -- Special Tax Assessment 227,650.00 140,740.21 -86,909.79 61.82 %

Taxes 227,650.00 140,740.21 -86,909.79 61.82 %

Use of Money and Property
3380 -- Interest Income 744.00 1,620.52 876.52 217.81 %

Use of Money and Property 744.00 1,620.52 876.52 217.81 %

Intergovernmental Revenue-State
4339 -- State-Other 0.00 75,000.00 75,000.00 --

Intergovernmental Revenue-State 0.00 75,000.00 75,000.00 --

Intergovernmental Revenue-Other
4840 -- Other Governmental Agencies 0.00 30,000.00 30,000.00 --

Intergovernmental Revenue-Other 0.00 30,000.00 30,000.00 --

Miscellaneous Revenue
5895 -- Other-Donations 0.00 20,000.00 20,000.00 --
5909 -- Other Miscellaneous Revenue 0.00 20.00 20.00 --

Miscellaneous Revenue 0.00 20,020.00 20,020.00 --

Revenues 228,394.00 267,380.73 38,986.73 117.07 %

Expenditures
Services and Supplies
7090 -- Insurance 2,934.00 2,932.81 1.19 99.96 %
7324 -- Audit and Accounting Fees 2,500.00 425.50 2,074.50 17.02 %
7430 -- Memberships 1,300.00 1,244.00 56.00 95.69 %
7460 -- Professional & Special Service 78,886.00 27,322.59 51,563.41 34.64 %
7508 -- Legal Fees 45,529.00 15,040.76 30,488.24 33.04 %

Financial Status As of: 2/20/2024 (64% Elapsed)
Accounting Period: OPEN

Selection Criteria: Fund = 3490

Layout Options: Summarized By = Fund, LineItemAccount; Page Break At = Fund

Line Item Account

6/30/2024
Fiscal Year

Adjusted Budget

2/20/2024
Year-To-Date

Actual

6/30/2024
Fiscal Year
Variance

6/30/2024
Fiscal Year

Pct of Budget

Fund 3490 -- Los Olivos CSD

County of Santa Barbara, FIN Last Updated:  2/20/2024 12:09 AM Page 1 of 2
Agenda Packet 

Page 108 of 124

gusavage
Highlight

gusavage
Highlight

gusavage
Highlight

gusavage
Highlight

gusavage
Highlight



7510 -- Contractual Services 98,643.00 53,755.28 44,887.72 54.49 %
7530 -- Publications & Legal Notices 1,750.00 0.00 1,750.00 0.00 %
7671 -- Special Projects 0.00 573.64 -573.64 --

Services and Supplies 231,542.00 101,294.58 130,247.42 43.75 %

Expenditures 231,542.00 101,294.58 130,247.42 43.75 %

Changes to Fund Balances
Decrease to Residual Fund Balance
9601 -- Residual Fund Balance-Inc/Dec 3,148.00 0.00 -3,148.00 0.00 %

Decrease to Residual Fund Balance 3,148.00 0.00 -3,148.00 0.00 %

Changes to Fund Balances 3,148.00 0.00 -3,148.00 0.00 %

Los Olivos CSD 0.00 166,086.15 166,086.15 --

Net Financial Impact 0.00 166,086.15 166,086.15 --

Financial Status As of: 2/20/2024 (64% Elapsed)
Accounting Period: OPEN

Selection Criteria: Fund = 3490

Layout Options: Summarized By = Fund, LineItemAccount; Page Break At = Fund

Line Item Account

6/30/2024
Fiscal Year

Adjusted Budget

2/20/2024
Year-To-Date

Actual

6/30/2024
Fiscal Year
Variance

6/30/2024
Fiscal Year

Pct of Budget

Fund 3490 -- Los Olivos CSD

County of Santa Barbara, FIN Last Updated:  2/20/2024 12:09 AM Page 2 of 2
Agenda Packet 

Page 109 of 124



California Central Coast Chapter APWA 

2023 Project of the Year Awards 
 

 

 

Submittal Deadline February 2, 2024 
(Electronic submittals only) 

Project Name 

_________________________________________ 

Project Completion Date 
Must be substantially complete (90%) and available for public use as of 
November 2, 2023. 

_________________________________________ 

Public Agency 

_________________________________________ 

Project Category 
Structures 
Transportation 
Environment 
Historical Restoration/Preservation 
Disaster or Emergency Construction/Repair 

Project Division 
< $5 Million 
$5 - $25 Million 
$25 - $75 Million 
> $75 Million

Managing Agency 

_________________________________________ 
Name 

_________________________________________ 
Title 

_________________________________________ 
Agency/Organization 

_________________________________________ 
Address (if PO Box, include street address) 

_________________________________________ 
City State/Province Zip/Postal Code 

_________________________________________ 
Phone Fax 

_________________________________________ 
E-mail

 
 

Public Works Project of the Year Award 
Nomination Form 

Primary Contractor 

_________________________________________ 
Name 

_________________________________________ 
Title 

_________________________________________ 
Agency/Organization 

_________________________________________ 
Address (if PO Box, include street address) 

_________________________________________ 
City State/Province Zip/Postal Code 

_________________________________________ 
Phone Fax 

_________________________________________ 
E-mail

Primary Consultant 

_________________________________________ 
Name 

_________________________________________ 
Title 

_________________________________________ 
Agency/Organization 

_________________________________________ 
Address (if PO Box, include street address) 

_________________________________________ 
City State/Province Zip/Postal Code 

_________________________________________ 
Phone Fax 

_________________________________________ 
E-mail

Los Olivos CSD Groundwater Monitoring Well Program

February 22, 2023

Los Olivos Community Services District

X

X

Guy Savage

General Manager

Los Olivos Community Services District

PO BOX 345, LOS OLIVOS

Los Olivos, CA                    93441

(805) 500-4098

GM.LOCSD@GMAIL.COM

BC2 Environmental

1150 W. Trenton Ave

Orange, CA                    92867

(714)744-2990

Tim Thompson & Andy Lapostol

Principal Water Resources Consultants

GSI Water Solutions, Inc.

418 Chapala Street, Suite H

Santa Barbara CA            93101

805.979.3088 

tthompson@gsiws.com

Scott Traub

General Manager

Agenda Packet 
Page 110 of 124



California Central Coast Chapter APWA 

2023 Project of the Year Awards 
 

 

Public Works Project of the Year Award 

Criteria 

Purpose The Central Coast Chapter APWA Public Works Project of the Year Award was established to promote 

excellence in the management, administration, and implementation of public works projects by 
recognizing the alliance between the managing agency, the consultant/architect/engineer, and the 
contractor who work together to complete public works projects. 
Awards are given in four divisions: 
1. Projects less than $5 million
2. Projects of $5 million, but less than $25 million
3. Projects of $25 million to $75 million
4. Projects more than $75 million

And five categories: 
1. Structures—to include new public structures or the preservation or rehabilitation of existing public
structures including, municipal buildings and parks.
2. Transportation—to include roads, bridges, mass transit that serve any or all modes of travel, including
bicycles and foot traffic.
3. Environment—to include treatment and recycling facilities, landfill reclamation projects, and sewer
projects.
4. Historical Restoration/Preservation—to include historical restoration, preservation, and adaptive reuse
of existing buildings, structures, and facilities, that are 75 years or older to qualify as historical.
5. Disaster or Emergency Construction Repair—to include the techniques and timing for safety,
community relations, environmental protection, adverse conditions, and additional considerations.

Eligibility Public works projects must be developed, owned, and maintained by public agencies. To be eligible for 

nomination, a project must have been “substantially completed” and available for public and/or agency 
use within two calendar years prior to nomination. If a project has multiple phases or segments, then 
“substantially completed” will be construed as that point when the final phase or segment is 90% 
completed and available for public and/or agency use. 

A project may only be nominated once for recognition as “Project of the Year” under any category. 

Selection Criteria to be used in the selection process include: 
1. Use of good construction management techniques and completion of the project on schedule
2. Safety performance and demonstrated awareness of the need for a good overall safety program for
workers and the public during and after construction, where applicable
3. Community relations as evidenced by efforts to minimize public inconvenience due to construction,
safety precautions to protect public lives and property, provision of observation areas, guided tours, or
other means of improving relations between agency and the public.
4. Demonstrated awareness for the need to protect the environment. This includes any special
considerations given to particular environmental concerns raised during the course of the project, as well
as climate change and/or resiliency components for long-term community benefit.
5. Unusual accomplishments under adverse conditions including, but not limited to age or condition of the
facility, adverse weather, soil or other site conditions over which there is no control.
6. Additional conditions deemed of importance to the public works agency, such as exceptional efforts to
maintain quality control and, if value engineering is used, construction innovations as evidenced by time
and/or money saving techniques developed and/or successfully utilized.
7. Use of alternative materials, practices, or funding that demonstrates a commitment to sustainability,
climate change resiliency, and/or use of sustainable infrastructure rating system or the equivalent.

The Project of the Year Committee reviews the nominations and selects the award winners. 

Nominations  Nomination of projects can be made by the managing entity. Refer to the Supporting Data Form for more 

directions. 

Deadline  February 2, 2024 (Electronic Submittals Only) 

Presentation  A designated representative of the public agency, contractor, and consultant are presented a plaque at 

the Awards Recognition Ceremony at the Chapter Awards Ceremony tentatively scheduled for March 14th 
2024. Agenda Packet 

Page 111 of 124



California Central Coast Chapter APWA 

2023 Project of the Year Awards 
 

 

Please address each of the following areas in your 
nomination, adhering to the sequence below when 
possible.  

• Completion date contained in contract. Any time
extensions granted should be addressed in the
submittal.

• Construction schedule, management, and
control techniques used. Use of alternative
materials, practices of funding that demonstrates
a commitment to sustainability.

• Safety performance including number of lost-
time injuries per 1,000 man-hours worked and
overall safety program employed during the
construction phase.

• Environmental considerations including special
steps taken to preserve and protect the
environment, endangered species, etc., during
the construction phase.

• Community relations – a summary of the efforts
by the agency, consultant and contractor to
protect public lives and property, minimize public
inconvenience and improve relations.

• Unusual accomplishments under adverse
conditions, including but not limited to, adverse
weather, soil or site conditions, or other
occurrences over which there was no control.

• Additional considerations you would like to bring
to the attention of the project review panel, such
as innovations in technology and/or
management applications during the project.

NOTE: Supporting documentation is limited to 20 pages, 
exclusive of photographs and nomination form. 
Photographs will be used for promotional purposes by 
the association. Submittal should include nomination 
form and supporting documentation form, and 
photographs. No letters of recommendation please. 
Simultaneous nomination of the same project in both 
Public Works Project of the Year and SC/RC Project of 
the Year or in two categories is not permitted.  

Nominations not chosen in a specific year for Public 
Works Project of the Year-Small Cities/Rural 
Communities Award cannot be resubmitted in a 
subsequent year in the other category.  

 

Public Works Project of the Year Award 
Supporting Data Form 

Nominated by: 
Projects that involve or reside within two or more chapters locations 
can be co-nominated. 

_________________________________________ 
Name 

_________________________________________ 
Title 

_________________________________________ 
Agency/Organization 

_________________________________________ 
Address (if PO Box, include street address) 

_________________________________________ 
City State/Province Zip/Postal Code 

_________________________________________ 
Phone Fax 

_________________________________________ 
E-mail

Additional Plaques 
One plaque is provided to you by the Chapter. Additional 
plaques are available for $70 but must be ordered in 
advance. (If you would like it mailed, we ask that you pay 
for shipping.) 

Number of Additional Plaques 

Submittal Process 
Email PDF to Nina Buelna at nbuelna@cityofgoleta.org 

Due Date: February 2, 2024, at 5:00 PM 
Late submittals may be considered at the discretion of 
the reviewing committee. 

A confirmation email will be sent when your submittal 
has been received, within 24 hours. If you have not 
received confirmation, please email Nina Buelna.  

Douglas Pike, PE

Principal Engineer (LOCSD District Engineer)

MNS Engineers, Inc

201 Industrial Way, Suite A

Buellton, CA                  93427

(805) 331-3553

dpike@mnsengineers.com

Agenda Packet 
Page 112 of 124

mailto:nbuelna@cityofgoleta.org


Los Olivos Community Services District  
 

Groundwater Quality Improvement Program 
& Groundwater Sampling Well System Construction 

 
 
“Los Olivos is the first community in the County of Santa Barbara to tackle head-on its 
designation as one of a number of “Special Problem Areas” in the County for 
contaminated groundwater” 
 
Project Background and Description 
Los Olivos is the first community in the County of Santa Barbara to tackle head-on its designation as 
one of a number of “Special Problem Areas” in the County for contaminated groundwater exceeding 
minimum concentration levels (MCL’s) for nitrates.  
 
To address this issue the community is proactive and determined to address this contamination with 
an appropriate multi-phased and multi-pronged approach to improve groundwater quality. The first 
priority was to develop a system of groundwater quality monitoring wells with a recommended 
program of water quality testing. This program established a baseline for contaminants in the 
shallow aquifer and permits on-going testing of groundwater quality. This is critical to accomplish 
prior to implementing the planned conversion of septic systems to sewer collection and treatment in 
the high density commercial and residential areas within the District. 
 
The County of Santa Barbar Environmental Health Services were a key partner and facilitated 
funding for the project. Another key partner was the Regional Water Quality Control Board (RWQCB). 
The RWQCB provided staff review and recommendations for the project. The County of Santa 
Barbara approved and permitted the installation of the wells in the County road right-of-way. The 
Drilling Contractor was BC2Environmental from Orange, CA for all wells. 
 
Description of the project Elements 
 
“The purpose of this Plan is to develop a system of groundwater quality monitoring 
wells with a recommended program of water quality testing.” 
 
Groundwater Monitoring Program Goal 
The GSI Ground Water Monitoring Plan was conceived by the CSD as a required first and essential 
step in resolving the groundwater quality issues. The purpose of this Plan is to develop a system of 
groundwater quality monitoring wells with a recommended program of water quality testing. This 
program established a baseline for contaminants in the shallow aquifer and permits on-going testing 
of groundwater quality.  
 
We know there are groundwater quality issues existing in the aquifer upstream of Los Olivos, and this 
network of test wells will define groundwater quality migrating into the District vs. what exists within 
the District and leaves the District. This tool will allow a meaningful measurement of the District’s 
existing septic systems contribution to the groundwater quality issues now and as ineffective septic 
systems are phased out. 
 
Develop a Hydrogeological Conceptual Model 
The objective of this task was to develop a hydrogeological conceptual model (HCM) that evaluated 
and describe local groundwater conditions and help inform the development of the Groundwater 

Agenda Packet 
Page 113 of 124



Monitoring Plan. In addition to determining any critical data gaps, the HCM was valuable in 
identifying if any existing wells may be used for sampling or aquifer testing, and locations of future 
test wells, injection wells, or percolation basins. The HCM included an evaluation of the following: 

1. Geology at Proposed Well Sites and surrounding area 

2. Depths and hydrogeologic characteristics of aquifers and aquitards 

3. Horizontal and vertical groundwater flow gradients 

4. Recent and historical water level data 

To develop the HCM, data from available hydrogeologic reports and online databases were 
collected and reviewed. These data were augmented with relevant resources from ongoing work 
being conducted by GSI related to the Groundwater Sustainability Plan for the Eastern 
Management Area of the Santa Ynez Groundwater Basin. Available studies were also used to 
inform the HCM. The information gathered were used to inform the site selection of the injection 
wells. Results of HCM development were incorporated into Groundwater Monitoring Plan. 
 
 
“The Groundwater Monitoring Plan established existing groundwater quality 
conditions in the District’s area to track changes over time as the septic to sewer 
conversion project is developed.” 
 
Preparation of the Groundwater Monitoring Plan 
The Groundwater Monitoring Plan established existing groundwater quality conditions in the 
District’s area to track changes over time as the septic to sewer conversion project is developed and 
implemented. Development of the Groundwater Monitoring Plan included: 

1. Collection of well construction, water level, and water quality data 
2. Identifying existing wells suitable for water quality sampling 
3. Identify existing wells suitable for groundwater gradient calculations 
4. Identifying data gaps 
5. Recommending locations for additional monitoring wells 
6. Establishing a sampling program and schedule to collect baseline and future water quality 

data 
7. Outline reporting requirements and frequency 

The monitoring plan established monitoring frequencies and protocols, the location and number 
of monitoring sites, and necessary water quality sampling parameters. 

 
Install Initial Two Monitoring Wells 
The first two wells were established on the upstream boundary of the groundwater flows, and were 
the pathfinders for the process of permitting, implementing construction and successful testing. The 
wells were successfully established and yielded immediate and helpful results, with one well 
demonstrating Nitrates present but below MCLs. And the other demonstrating nitrates right at the 
MCL level. This was a significant milestone, as it represented the first “official” professional 
sampling and testing of the shallow groundwater basin in many years. 

During construction, GSI staff were onsite for the duration of drilling to log the cuttings, collect soil 
samples, and oversee installation of the monitoring well. The well was installed to a depth of 
approximately 75’ below ground surface. The diameter of the PVC monitoring well casings are 2 
inches. Anticipated data to be collected during sampling includes: water levels, water quality 

Agenda Packet 
Page 114 of 124



samples (to be analyzed by a full-service environmental laboratory certified by the state of 
California), and soil samples for geotechnical laboratory testing. GSI worked with the District to 
identify which laboratory tests are appropriate before the site investigations take place. 

 
 
  

Agenda Packet 
Page 115 of 124



Installation of 3 Additional Monitoring Wells 
3 additional new groundwater monitoring wells were constructed to expand the Los Olivos 
Community Services District’s (District) existing groundwater monitoring network. The general 
locations for new monitoring wells were identified in the groundwater monitoring plan prepared by 
GSI. Initially, the District coordinated with the Regional Water Quality Control Board (RWQCB) to 
select the preferred locations for the three (3) new 
monitoring wells. GSI coordinated with the District to 
refine the locations of each well based on site-specific 
considerations. 

GSI coordinated with BC2 Environmental (the same 
drilling contractor to install the first two monitoring wells) 
to obtain quotes, coordinate permitting and establish a 
drilling schedule for the construction and development of 
the new monitoring wells. 

GSI staff were onsite for the duration of drilling to log the 
cuttings, collect soil samples, and oversee installation of 
the monitoring wells. The wells were installed to a depth 
of approximately 70 to 80 feet below ground surface, 
Data that was collected during construction included 
water levels, depth-specific chip trays for each borehole, 
and water quality samples (to be analyzed by a full-
service environmental laboratory certified by the state of 
California). 
 
  

Monitoring Well Loca�ons (5) 

Agenda Packet 
Page 116 of 124



Treated Wastewater Injection Feasibility Analysis 
This work builds upon the work conducted during development of the District’s Groundwater 
Monitoring Program. The well development supported a feasibility assessment of a potential 
injection project which would include installation of a series of wells to inject highly treated recycled 
water from the District’s planned wastewater treatment facility into the underlying aquifer. 
 
 
“Construction of the test wells provided valuable data in assessing appropriate 
effluent disposal strategies.” 
 
Effluent Disposal Study 
This work also builds upon the work conducted during development of the District’s Groundwater 
Monitoring Program. Construction of the test wells provided valuable data in assessing appropriate 
effluent disposal strategies. The objective of this work was to identify and evaluate several 
alternatives for disposing of wastewater effluent that is generated by the District’s planned 
wastewater treatment facility. 
Consultants GSI and Confluence ES evaluated the following five options for effluent disposal: 

1. Percolation ponds 
2. Percolation chambers 
3. Shallow aquifer injection well(s) 
4. Alamo Pintado Creek outfall 
5. Partial disposal by sale for reclaimed water use For each option. 

The developed soils data from the well development, along with the hydrogeological model and 
groundwater quality test data, added to environmental considerations, permitting considerations, 
land area required, and cost provided information allowing ranking of these options. 

 
Budget of Project Elements 
 
The following was the budget for the Project: 

1. Development of the Groundwater Quality Monitoring Program (GSI) 
a. Develop a Hydrogeological Conceptual Model    $  13,200 
b. Ground Water Management Plan Preparation   $  16,700 

2. Well Construction Phase (GSI) 
a. Construction and Sampling of Initial Two Wells   $  22,000 
b. Construction of Three Wells and Sampling   $  36,700 

3. Treated Water Injection Feasibility Analysis (GSI)   $  12,254 
4. Effluent Study (Confluence & GSI)     $  39,500 
5. Project Management, Permitting  (Contract Staff)   $    9,000 

PROJECT COST    $150,354 
 
Award Application Specific Criteria: 
 

• Completion date contained in contract. Any time extensions granted should be addressed in 
the submittal. 
 
All work including development of Groundwater Management Plan and completion of the first 
two wells and testing was completed February 22, 2022. 

 
 

Agenda Packet 
Page 117 of 124



• Construction schedule, management, and control techniques used. Use of alternative 
materials, practices of funding that demonstrate a commitment to sustainability. 

 
 

Project was permitted by District contract staff in cooperation with County EHS and County 
Roads and Encroachment Permit office. The construction project was managed by GSI. They 
had at least one hydro-geologist on-site at all times managing the drilling effort, sampling 
depths and frequency during well development, and observing, sampling and logging bore-
hole soils and groundwater depth. 

 
 

• Safety performance including number of lost time injuries per 1,000 man-hours worked and 
overall safety program employed during the construction phase. 

 
A safety plan was implemented and not injuries or safety issues were experienced. A traffic 
control plan was prepared and submitted by the District during permitting, and was 
implemented by the contractor. 
 
 

“The project is itself an environmental mitigation project to assist in the ultimate goal 
of remediating/resolving groundwater quality issues.” 
 

• Environmental considerations including special steps taken to preserve and protect the 
environment, endangered species, etc., during the construction phase. 

 
The project is itself an environmental mitigation project to assist in the ultimate goal of 
remediating/resolving groundwater quality issues. The development of the wells was an 
environmentally exempt activity as it created groundwater quality test wells to facility 
remediation of an environmental problem.  

 
 

• Community relations – a summary of the efforts by the agency, consultant, and contractor to 
protect public lives and property, minimize public inconvenience and improve relations. 

 
All planning and steps toward implementation were developed and decided through publicly 
posted District Meetings. Additionally, the District has held numerous public workshops 
updating the community on progress toward septic conversions to sewer collection and 
treatment, and the development of these test wells and the overall Groundwater Monitoring 
Program. Wells were developed in locations that would not impact the neighbors visually, or 
impede traffic, bicycle, or pedestrian traffic. 
 

 
“The forming of a new Community Services District to accomplish this task is also 
rare and takes a tremendous amount of effort, community involvement and various 
environmental regulator support to accomplish..” 
 

• Unusual accomplishments under adverse conditions, including but not limited to, adverse 
weather, soil or site conditions, or other occurrences over which there was no control. 

 

Agenda Packet 
Page 118 of 124



o Septic-to-sewer conversions affecting an entire community are somewhat rare. The 
forming of a new Community Services District to accomplish this task is also rare and 
takes a tremendous amount of effort, community involvement and various 
environmental regulator support to accomplish. As mentioned, this is the first 
“special Problem Area” for groundwater contamination to make this challenging 
effort. 

o Finding funding for such an undertaking is difficult and arduous. Thanks to funding 
partners at EHS and the State Water Board, this project has been able to get a foot-
hold. 
 

 
“This Board, through this project, the first constructed phase of the overall effort, has 
shown that there is a will, and there is a way.” 
 

• Additional considerations you would like to bring to the attention of the project review panel, 
such as innovations in technology and/or management applications during the project. 

 
“Firsts” This project, although standing alone is still valuable to the public, is part of an 
emerging greater effort. The “firsts” that this project is accomplishing include: 
 
1. The first “Special Problem Area” to tackle a principal cause and resolve groundwater 

quality issues in Santa Barbara County. 
2. The first Technical “state-of-the-art” groundwater quality improvement project conducted 

by a newly formed small CSD. The project includes strategic documentation of 
background contamination, groundwater hydrogeology modeling, and testing to monitor 
and prove the solution moving forward. 

3. All that is being accomplished is under the leadership of a uniquely talented and 
qualified relatively new Board of Directors made up of residents in their community. 
Board members and contract staff have included licensed Civil Engineers, an 
Underground contractor, a book-keeper, a project development consultant, retired 
assistant county administrator, and local professionals and business leaders. 

4. There is much left to do, and many believed “it could not be done” but this Board, 
through this project, the first constructed phase of the overall effort, has shown that 
there is a will, and there is a way. 
 

  

Agenda Packet 
Page 119 of 124



  
  

Agenda Packet 
Page 120 of 124



  

Agenda Packet 
Page 121 of 124



 

Agenda Packet 
Page 122 of 124



2/21/24, 10:12 AM Gmail - APWA Awards Ceremony 3/14

https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ik=b7c34f4d46&view=pt&search=all&permthid=thread-f:1791529710163327896%7Cmsg-f:1791529710163327896… 1/2

Guy Savage <gm.locsd@gmail.com>

APWA Awards Ceremony 3/14
1 message

Sainz, Julie <julie.sainz@stantec.com> Wed, Feb 21, 2024 at 9:17 AM

Good morning,

 

The Los Olivos Community Services District project that you/your team worked on has been nominated for an award at
our APWA CA Central Coast Chapter’s yearly Project and Professional of the Year Celebration! We cordially invite you
to attend this annual event.

 

The awards will be held on Thursday March 14th from 12-2pm at the Santa Maria Radisson Hotel at 2455 Skyway Dr.,
Santa Maria, CA.

 

Here is the link to register: https://centralcoast.apwa.org/event/2023-project-professional-of-the-year-celebration/

We hope to see you/your team there! Award winners will be notified a week before the event.

 

Thank you,

 

Julie Sainz

Civil Designer

Direct: (805) 357-1356

julie.sainz@stantec.com

 

Stantec

2646 Santa Maria Way Suite 107

Santa Maria CA 93455-1776

 

 

 

The content of this email is the confidential property of Stantec and should not be copied, modified, retransmitted, or used for any purpose except with Stantec's written authorization. If you are not

the intended recipient, please delete all copies and notify us immediately.

Agenda Packet 
Page 123 of 124

https://www.google.com/maps/search/2455+Skyway+Dr.,+Santa+Maria,+CA?entry=gmail&source=g
https://www.google.com/maps/search/2455+Skyway+Dr.,+Santa+Maria,+CA?entry=gmail&source=g
https://urldefense.com/v3/__https:/centralcoast.apwa.org/event/2023-project-professional-of-the-year-celebration/__;!!Ifs0MJmijOm0!r6Qbj24LJtE-32H_cLWqpv2AawbNQDWOy0myoxBMHAnd3xVilbKopjPCxQPqF81VbC2uuarym3R9ltCNDKBDD1-U$
https://urldefense.com/v3/__https:/centralcoast.apwa.org/event/2023-project-professional-of-the-year-celebration/__;!!Ifs0MJmijOm0!r6Qbj24LJtE-32H_cLWqpv2AawbNQDWOy0myoxBMHAnd3xVilbKopjPCxQPqF81VbC2uuarym3R9ltCNDKBDD1-U$
https://urldefense.com/v3/__https:/centralcoast.apwa.org/event/2023-project-professional-of-the-year-celebration/__;!!Ifs0MJmijOm0!r6Qbj24LJtE-32H_cLWqpv2AawbNQDWOy0myoxBMHAnd3xVilbKopjPCxQPqF81VbC2uuarym3R9ltCNDKBDD1-U$
https://urldefense.com/v3/__https:/centralcoast.apwa.org/event/2023-project-professional-of-the-year-celebration/__;!!Ifs0MJmijOm0!r6Qbj24LJtE-32H_cLWqpv2AawbNQDWOy0myoxBMHAnd3xVilbKopjPCxQPqF81VbC2uuarym3R9ltCNDKBDD1-U$
mailto:julie.sainz@stantec.com
https://www.google.com/maps/search/2646+Santa+Maria+Way+Suite+107+%0D%0A+Santa+Maria+CA+93455-1776?entry=gmail&source=g
https://www.google.com/maps/search/2646+Santa+Maria+Way+Suite+107+%0D%0A+Santa+Maria+CA+93455-1776?entry=gmail&source=g
http://www.stantec.com/
http://www.stantec.com/


2/21/24, 10:12 AM Gmail - APWA Awards Ceremony 3/14

https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ik=b7c34f4d46&view=pt&search=all&permthid=thread-f:1791529710163327896%7Cmsg-f:1791529710163327896… 2/2

 

Agenda Packet 
Page 124 of 124


	2024-2-28 Agenda Los Olivos CSD Regular Meeting
	6a
	6a minutes
	x6a

	2024-1-10 Minutes Los Olivos CSD Regular Meeting

	6b
	6b
	6b invoices
	x6B.pdf

	5
	5Invoices
	2024-01-11 A&W Invoice 83365
	2024-01-22 CountyOfSantaBarbara Invoice N55777
	2024-01-24 MNS Invoice 85320
	LOCSD.180392.00 District Support Services Invoice: 000000085320

	2024-02-01 Savage Invoice 20241
	20241 Invoice - Savage
	20241 Invoice Detail - Savage
	Sheet1

	Gmail - Re_ Request regarding hours
	Grainger Online Order - WEB2484585265
	Paint and sign receipts
	gas bill - mw



	2024-01-24 MNS Invoice 85320-Revised
	LOCSD.180392.00 District Support Services Invoice: 000000085320



	7
	7 REGEN
	Los Olivos - Basis of Design Hybrid Collection Analysis Rev 1.0
	Los Olivos Collection Estimate Option A
	Los Olivos Collection Estimate Option B
	Los Olivos Collection Estimate Option C
	Los Olivos Collection Estimate Option D

	8
	8 Wells
	MW-3 MW-4 MW-5 Locations
	Slide Number 1

	MW-3 soil boring log-DIGITAL
	MW-3 Soil Boring Log
	MW-3 Soil Boring Log - Copy

	MW-4 soil boring log-DIGITAL
	MW-4 Soil Boring Log
	MW-4 Soil Boring Log - Copy

	MW-5 soil boring log-DIGITAL
	MW-5 Soil Boring Log
	MW-5 Soil Boring Log - Copy


	9
	9 audit contract
	MLH Audit - Engage23

	10
	10 activities
	LOCSD Roadmap 24-02
	W-Regen
	Sheet5


	11
	11 donations
	Gmail - Re_ $500.00 Donation to Purchase PA System for LOCSD Meetings_Redacted
	PA System
	Resolution 24-01 - Accepting Donation from ILRC
	Resolution 24-02 - Accepting Donation from Patricia Gott

	12
	12 director
	Notice of Results 2024 Special District Election
	LAFCO_Mailed Ballot - Regular Special District Member_LOCSD_Palmer_020124

	12b
	12b
	12b GM Reports
	6xxx
	FinDataChart
	Cash Balance
	Financial Status
	Trial Balance

	Financial Status - 95k
	2023-POY-Award-Nomination LOCSD Groundwater Monitoring Well Program Submittal
	2023-POY-Award-Nomination LOCSD Groundwater Monitoring Well Program.pdf
	Project Background and Description.pdf
	Develop a Hydrogeological Conceptual Model
	Preparation of the Groundwater Monitoring Plan


	Gmail - APWA Awards Ceremony 3_14

	Summary Project Status Report 24-02




